STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
3/19/2019 10:00 A.M.

26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA

MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JAY CARMONA VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners for
the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey County
Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and during this
meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted agenda.

All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Pursuant to
NRS 241.020 (2)(d)(6) Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, the public body may combine
two or more agenda items for consideration, and the public body may remove an item from the
agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time. Any member of the Board
or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and acted
upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1 CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
2, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of the Agenda for March 19, 2019.




DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of the Minutes for February 5, 2019.
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of the Minutes for February 19, 2019.
CONSENT AGENDA

I For possible action, approval of first reading for general business license for Tom
Redican, 2nd Line of Defense (CCW Instruction). 3260 Six Mile Canyon Rd., Virginia
City, NV 89440.

Il For possible action approval of claims in the amount of $3,184,297.89.

III For possible action, approval of Assessor's recommended corrections to unsecured
2017-18 Tax Roll for overassessment.

IV For possible action approval of business license first readings:
A. SPECIALIZED SAFETY SERVICES - Consulting / 5000 Reggie Road ~ Reno, NV
B. THORNTON TOMASETTI, INC. - Consulting / 650 California Street Ste 1400 ~
San Francisco, CA
C. GREAT BASIN SOLAR, LLC - Contractor / 50 Butte Place ~ Reno, NV
D. MAJOR D’'S CLEANING - Home Business/ 1820 Harte Road~ Virginia City
Highlands, Reno NV
E. SAPHIRA EDUCATION ASSOCIATES, LLC Home Business/ 26800 Riverview
Road, VCH, Reno NV
F. PEERLESS CONSTRUCTION, LTD- Contractor / 1475 Old Hot Spring Drive~
Carson City, NV
G. MELODY HOOVER PHOTOGRAPHY - General / 633 Rock Island Drive ~
Dayton, NV
H. WILD WEST BURGERS - General/ PO Box 117 ~ Nixon, NV 89424
[. NUWAVE INTERNATIONAL - Construction / 1875 Coronado Ave ~ Signal Hill,
CA
]. RELIABLE MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS, LLC - General/ 555 Milan Way ~
Reno, NV
K. MISBEEHAVEN FARM, LLC - Home Business/ 144 Elizabeth Lane ~ Dayton,
NV
L. ODELL’S BIG OKIE TACO (dba) - General/ 877 Scott Dr ~ Fernley, NV
M. FLIPPIN’S TRENCHING, INC - Contractor/ 2645 Marion Drive ~ Las Vegas,
NV
N. 1-888-4-ABATEMENT, INC - Contractor/ 3158 Luyung Drive ~ Rancho
Cordova, CA
O. FIREHOUSE CREAMERY - General/ 171 South C Street~ VC, NV
P. NNE CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 4990 Victory Blvd. ~Elko, NV
Q. CJ] GUELDNER - Home Business/ 720 Sutro Springs Road ~ Dayton, NV




7. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment):
a. Committee/Staff Reports
b. Update on legislative items of interest to Storey County

8. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

9; DISCUSSION ONLY/NO POSSIBLE ACTION (Public Comment Allowed):

County Commissioner Interviews with the top 3 applicants for the position of County
Manager. Those applicants, in order of appearance are Ron Knecht, Austin Osborne
and Merena Works. Each applicant will be allotted approximately 60 minutes under
the following format:

-Chairman Opening Remarks (5 Minutes)

-Candidate Self Introduction and Opening Remarks (5 Minutes)

-1 Question from each Commissioner w/ Follow-up Questions from them allowed*
(45 Minutes)

-Closing Statement by the Candidate (5 Minutes)

(* 5 Minutes per question is anticipated in a “round robin” style allowing for a total of
9 questions, not including follow-up questions)

Candidates Osborne and Works have consented to excuse themselves from the
meeting while candidates scheduled ahead of them are interviewed. After completion
of an interview, that candidate may choose to stay for the remainder of the meeting.
Public Comment will be allowed under the customary 3 minute guideline. Additional,
comments made in the form of a question will most likely not be answered. We
encourage the Public to attend the previously announced candidate meet-and-greet
the evening before which is currently scheduled to begin at 6:00 pm at the Bucket of
Blood to get any specific questions answered by any or all candidates.

10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Selection of a candidate to serve as the next County Manager, conditioned upon
passing the background investigation and successful negation of salary with the
current County Manager and Board Chairman. The Board may also direct the current
County Manager and our Consultant to take action(s) for other properly related
matters.

11.  DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Renewal of Residential Construction Tax as requested by the Storey County School
District




12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Selection of an Auditor for Storey County for the year ended June 30, 2019.
13. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY LIQUOR LICENSE BOARD
14.  DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

First reading for non-profit on-sale liquor license for the Escurial Masonic Lodge #7.
PO Box 34, Virginia City, NV 89440.

15.  RECESS TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of business license second readings:

A. WINGS N THINGS, LLC - Food Truck / 1213 Jacob Ln ~ Fernley, NV

B. H & D CONSTRUCTION, LLC - Contractor / PO Box 10025 ~ Reno, NV
C.] HARRIS INDUSTRIAL - Water Services / 3151 Sturgis Road ~ Oxnard, CA
D. 295 CABLING, LLC - Contractor / 1359 Lublin Drive ~ Sparks, NV

E. PAC MACHINE CO. INC Contractor / 8570 23rd Ave ~ Sacramento, CA

F. ELKO OVERHEAD DOOR - Contractor / 1076 River Street ~ Elko, NV

17. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

18. ADJOURNMENT OF ALL ACTIVE AND RECESSED BOARDS ON THE AGENDA

19. CLOSED SESSION

Closed session involving Storey County Board of County Commissioners and the
Storey County Fire Protection District Commissioners. Call to Order Closed Session
meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of conferring with:

a. County management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations with the
Storey County Employees' Association Comstock Chapter, AFSCME Local 4041. This
meeting will begin immediately after the regular meeting of the Board of County
Commissioners.

b. Fire Protection District management and legal counsel regarding labor
negotiations with the Storey County Firefighter's Association IAFF Local 4227. This
meeting will begin immediately after the regular meeting of the Board of County
Commissioners.

NOTICE:
» Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.
e Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.
¢ Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.




¢ Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

¢ Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

¢ In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil
rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and
institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from
discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including
gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/parental status,
income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for
prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all
bases apply to all programs). Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or
incident.

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program
information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact
the responsible Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or
contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program
information may be made available in languages other than English.

To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination
Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at

http:/ / www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing cust.html and at any USDA office or write a
letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form.
To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or
letter to USDA by:

(1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights
1400 Independence Avenue, SW
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or

(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.

~ Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners” Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.




CERTIFICATION OF POSTING

I, Vanessa Stephens , Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before 3/14/2019; Virginia City Post
Office at 132 S C St, Virginia City, NV, the Storey County Courthouse located at 26 S B St, Virginia City,
NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located at 145 N C St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City
Highlands Fire Department located a 2610 Cartwright Rd, VC Highlands, NV and Lockwood Fire
Department located at 431 Canyon Way, Lockwood, NV.

By Vi da(te phoad

Vanessa Stephens Clerk-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: March 19, 2019 Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min.
Agenda Item Type: Regular Agenda

L.

&

Title: Approval of the Minutes for February 5, 2019.

Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted.

Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk Contact Number: 775.847.0969

Staff Summary: Minutes are attached for review.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: No

Legal review required: No

Reviewed by:

§v”; Department Head Department Name: Clerk

County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

FEBRUARY 5, 2019 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MEETING MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JAY CARMONA VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

ROLL CALL: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman Gilman (via phone), Commissioner Carmona,
County Manager Pat Whitten, Clerk/Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, Deputy District Attorney Keith
(via phone), Administrative Officer/Planning Director Austin Osborne, Virginia City Tourism
Director Deny Dotson, Project Manager Mike Northan, Community Relations Director Cherie
Nevin, IT Director James Deane, Fire Chief Jeff Nevin, Sr. Building Inspector Pete Renaud

1. CALL TO ORDER CLOSED SESSION AT 9:00 A.M.
Session cancelled.

2. CALL TO ORDER MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
Meeting was called to order by Commissioner McBride at 10:00 A.M.

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Commissioner Marshall McBride led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of the Agenda for February 5, 2019
Public Comment:
None

Motion: | make a motion to approve the Agenda for February 5, 2019, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Commissioner Carmona, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

5. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of the Minutes for December 4, 2018.
Public Comment:
None




Motion: [ make a motion to approve the Minutes for December 4, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved
by: Commissioner Carmona, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

6. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of the Minutes for December 18, 2018.
Public Comment:
None

Motion: [ make a motion to approve the Minutes for December 18, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved
by: Commissioner Carmona, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

7. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of the Minutes for January 7, 2019.
Public Comment:
None

Motion: I make a motion to approve the Minutes for January 7, 2019, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Commissioner Carmona, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

8. CONSENT AGENDA
I For possible action, cancelation of the March 5, 2019 County Commission Meeting due
to Commissioners and Staff attending the annual National Association of Counties
Legislative Conference in Washington D.C.

II For possible action, approval of the Justice Court Quarterly Report.

Il For possible action, approval of Assessor's Recommended Corrections to 2018-19
Secured Tax Roll for Exemptions.

IV For possible action, approval of claims in the amount of $4,694,456.36.

V For possible action, approval of Business Licenses first readings:
A. AAA FIRE SPRINKLER - Professional / 630 Kregge Ln ~ Sparks, NV
B. SLONE GEAR INTERNATIONAL, INC - General / 714 East Monument Ave ~
Dayton, NV
C. ATCO INDUSTRIES, INC - General / 7200 Fifteen Mile Road ~ Sterling Heights,
MI
D. CSG ELECTRIC LLC - Contractor / 600 Valle Verde ~ Sparks, NV
E. “C” STREET MASSAGE - Massage/ 240 C Street ~ Virginia City, NV
F. CASS NV, LLC - General/ 2555 USA Parkway ~ McCarran, NV
G. WINBCO TANK COMPANY - 1200 East Main Street ~ Ottumwa, IA
H. PINYON POTTERY, LLC - 4250 Hobart Road ~ Carson City, NV
I. CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS HOLDING, LLC - Contractor/ 9335 Prototype
Drive, Reno, NV




VI For possible action, approve Memorandum of Understanding between The Nevada
Rural Counties Retired and Senior Volunteer Program, Inc. and Storey County and
authorize County Manager to sign the Memorandum of Understanding,.

Motion: [ make a motion to approve the Consent Agenda for February 5th, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Commissioner Carmona, Seconded by: Vice Chairman Gilman, Vote: Motion carried
by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

9. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
VCTC Director Deny Dotson:
¢ The UNR mining competition will be held March 20 thru 23. This is a new event this year - all
hotels are booked.
e “The Devil Made Me Do [t” Saloon Craw] is set for February 9%
¢ The Father/Daughter Day and Dance will be held at the end of the month. Due to past large
turnout, there will be two shows.

Community Services Director Cherie Nevin:
« Emergency generator project at the High School has been completed and is up and running.
This will allow the school to be a site for emergency evacuations if needed.

e Senior Service Focus Groups to discuss senior services will be held as follows:
o February 21, 5pm to 6pm, at Lockwood Community Center
o March 12, 6pm to 7pm, at Highlands Fire Station
o March 21, 5pm to 6pm, at Mark Twain Community Center
o April 4, 5pm to 6pm at Virginia City Senior Center

Operations/Projects Coordinator Mike Northan:
o Public Works crew is doing a great job keeping roads clear.
» Plans and cost estimates are being drawn up for a new Director’s office at Pipers Opera House.
» There is an effort to repair and replace the stairs at the Sharon House.
» A general improvement plan is being drawn up for the Fairgrounds.
The architect is working on a digital 3D model for the new Justice Center.
A necessary easement has been obtained for the Six Mile Drainage project - this will reduce
costs for that portion of the project. A meeting with the engineer is scheduled for next week.
« Original window sashes have been restored and installed at Pipers. A couple of windows had
to be reproduced.

Fire Chief Jeff Nevin:

o The Fire Department responded to 175 service calls - 129 EMS related, in January.

e Personnel are being trained on nine new defibrillators recently received. These replace 2006
units.

» Fuels grant continues, finishing in Bailey Canyon and moving to the Highlands. Fire
personnel will be at Homeowners Association meetings to answer questions.

e Open burning continues in Mark Twain and Painted Rock. Call Virginia City Fire Station for
permits.

o U Call/We Haul trailers are available to residents.




James Deane, IT Director:

» 75% of this year’s capital expenditures have gone to replacing firewalls for the fiber at the
courthouse and jail.

» HP Enterprise nimble storage devices have been installed. Storage is expected to last the next
5 years.

e HP switching has also been installed at the courthouse and the jail - this should last 10 years.

e These purchases should significantly reduce next year’s budget.

¢ Rapid progress is being made with wiring at the cottage and Pipers. The wiring will allow
leveraging of the phone and internet system in the court house - a new phone system will not
be necessary for the cottage or Pipers.

o There is a lot of unseen success with the new (Tyler) Incode System. There have been no major
technical problems.

» Another success is with the (Tyler) Eagle Recorder System - there haven’t been any technical
support problems from the Recorder’ Oftice.

e The County is well-positioned for the future - using “cutting edge” technology.

« Plans are to replace the exchange (Outlook) server with Office 365 in the next budget year.

Mike Nevin, Special Projects Manager:

e Metin Gold Hill, and down to Dayton, with NDEP staff to determine any outflow to the
Carson River. They are confident that it does not reach the river. Follow up meetings will be
held with NDEP.

¢ Staff met with USDA regarding the possibility of using the $555,000 leftover from the
waterline towards the replacement and repair of the water tanks. NDEP has issued a notice
regarding the condition of the tanks. Cost figures from the engineer should be available by the
end of the week. USDA is in agreement as they want to see a completed project.

Sr. Building Inspector Pete Renaud:
e There were 78 inspections for the month of January.
o The cell tower in the Highlands has been completed and is up and running,.

Administrative Officer/Planning Director Austin Osborne:

e The County’s lobbyist group in Washington is meeting with the BLM regarding the Lands Bill
which is moving forward. Language for the National Historic Preservation Act is also being
worked on.

o The Dayton Valley area Master Plan studies are 80% complete. There still needs to be
validation but the areas of flooding can be seen. Some substantial issues were expected -
modeling is showing there is a reasonable expectation for a lot of mitigation. This is good
news for the Mark Twain community.

e The USGS continues the underground water study in the Highlands. An update is expected at
the February or March Planning Commission.

County Manager Pat Whitten:

e The March 5t BOC meeting is cancelled due to attendance at the NACO Legislative meeting in
Washington DC. Vice Chairman Gilman will attend group meetings with members of Nevada
NACO. Thank you also to Vice Chairman Gilman for attending a “surprise” NACO meeting
in Las Vegas.

¢ Thank you to the entire Public Works crew for all their work in the recent snow storms.

4




» Meetings have been held with Comptroller Gallagher, Deputy District Attorney Loomis, and
TRI attorney Bob Sader, to determine payment sources.

e There have been discussions with the Sheriff and attorney Bob Morris about cleaning up the
brothel ordinance.

¢ The last two items are key projects Mr. Whitten would like to get done prior to retirement.

10. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - Public Comment)
Vice Chairman Gilman:
+ The NACO conference in Las Vegas was very rewarding. He was assigned to the Legislative
Committee, and will be calling in every Friday reviewing all of the bill drafts and potential
impact.

11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution 19-524 approving Notice of
Completion and Acceptance of the Five Mile Waterline Replacement Project.

Community Relations Director Cherie Nevin said this Resolution closes out substantial completion of
the waterline replacement project. The (USDA) permanent loan will not be closed at this time due to
the need to use remaining funds for the water tanks.

Motion: I, Jay Carmona, move to approve Resolution 19-524 Notice of Completion and Acceptance
of the Five Mile Waterline Replacement Project, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner
Carmona, Seconded by: Chairman McBride...

Public Comment:
Mike Nevin: There’s a couple of outstanding items - completion of the fencing and re-seeding of a
portion of Ophir - as long as they’re completed within the warranty period, it is good with USDA.

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)
12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of National Radon Action Month Proclamation

Cherie Nevin, on behalf of UNR Cooperative Extension, explained this is an annual program
presented each January. Free test kits are available at Virginia City Senior Center and Lockwood
Community Center until the end of February. Residents are urged to test for radon.

Ms. Nevin read the Proclamation:

WHEREAS many Storey County residents don’t know about radon, yet need to know, for the safety
and health of their families, as radon is a colorless, odorless, naturally occurring radioactive gas that
is the primary cause of lung cancer among nonsmokers; the second leading cause of lung cancer for
smokers; and

WHEREAS, the U.S. EPA estimates 21,000 people in the U.S. die each year from lung cancer caused
by indoor radon exposure, and lung and bronchus cancer kill more people in a year than any other
cancer; and

WHEREAS, radon kills more people than secondhand smoke, drunk driving, and home fires
combined; and




WHEREAS, any home in Storey County may have elevated levels of radon, even if neighboring
homes do not, and living in a home with an average level of 4 picocuries per liter of air poses a
similar risk of developing lung cancer as smoking a half a pack of cigarettes a day; and
WHEREAS, testing is the only way to know if a home has an elevated radon level, and testing is easy
and inexpensive, and when identified, homes can be fixed; and

WHEREAS, University of Nevada Cooperative Extension, the Nevada Division of Public and
Behavioral Health, and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency support efforts to encourage all
Storey County residents to test their homes for radon, mitigate elevated levels of radon, and have
new homes built with radon-reducing materials and features.

NOW, THEREFORE, We, the Storey County Board of Commissioners do hereby proclaim January
2019 as “National Radon Month” in Storey County, Nevada

Public Comment:
None

Motion: [, Jay Carmona, make a motion to proclaim January 2019 as National Radon Action Month
in Storey County, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner Carmona Seconded by: Vice
Chairman Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

13. PUBLIC HEARING AT 10:30 A.M.: Hold public hearing to consider public comments on
proposed lease of that portion of Pipers Opera House known as the Old Corner Bar to VC Ponderosa
Saloon LLC for a monthly rental amount of $1800.00 until December 31, 2021 with a two year renewal
term.

Chairman McBride: This is a public hearing to consider public comments on the proposed lease of
the Old Corner Bar to VC Ponderosa Saloon LLC. The time is 10:47 A.M.

Public Comment:

None

County Manager Whitten: The current lessees are model renters. They bring people up to B Street
playing a pivotal role in adding to the number of visitors off of C Street. The rent is fair and
reasonable. There are a few additions to the terms. Staff recommends renewing the lease.

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible action to approve lease
of Old Corner Bar to VC Ponderosa Saloon LLC for a monthly rental of $1,800.00 per month
until December 31, 2021 with a possible two year renewal.

Public Comment:
None

Chairman McBride disclosed that he has a liquor establishment within proximity of this
establishment - his vote on this item does not affect this business any more than on anyone else with
the same licensing.

Vice Chairman Gilman made the same disclosure.




Motion: I, Jay Carmona, move to approve the proposed lease between Storey County and the
Ponderosa Saloon LLC, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner Carmona Seconded by:
Vice Chairman Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Possible approval of contract for professional
services between Michael Workman and Storey County regarding due diligence review of
TRIGID change in governance, and authorize the County Manager to sign evidencing
approval.

Vice Chairman Gilman, holding a pecuniary interest in the subject matter, recused himself
from discussion and vote on this item.

County Manager Whitten explained that TRIGID legal counsel has asked if (the County)
would consider changing the governance structure of the GID Board of Trustees. The County
is not taking over the GID. The Board of County Commissioners can sit as the governing
board. There is no recommendation regarding a change in governance being made at this
time. The County needs an independent person to provide information and recommendations
regarding the process. Mike Workman, retired Lyon County Water Services Director, is being
recommended. The GID has agreed to reimburse Mr. Workman'’s fee up to $10,000.

Public Comment:

Sam Toll, Gold Hill resident: Agrees with this suggestion and is concerned with the
conditions of roads and sewer pipes in that area. Mr. Toll asked about the financial
relationship (liability) between the County and the GID.

Deputy District Attorney Loomis said there is no County liability for operations of the GID, a
separate government agency. It is the governance that is proposed to be changed. The County
is not obligated to take on the debt of the GID.

Mr. Whitten explained the GID has taxing authority and could raise taxes and/ or raise rates if
needed. The County is not talking about taking over the GID, only having the (County)
Commissioners be the governing board.

Mr. Toll asked if Commissioner Gilman would be on that Board.

Mr. Whitten: That would have to be determined. This item is just to approve Mr. Workman's
contract and his recommendations.

Nicole Barde, Storey County Resident asked for a description of the scope of work Mr.
Workman would be doing.

Mr. Whitten: The main goal would be to validate the accuracy of information and
recommendations from engineer Brent Farr. He would look at the capital improvement plan,
previous NDEP approvals for a water system, among other things. He would be out there to
validate what is being seen by others. This does not include roads which are separate. Sewers
are the GID’s, they have never been the County’s.




Motion: I, Jay Carmona, move to approve the contract for professional services between
Michael Workman and Storey County, and authorize the County Manager to sign, Action:
Approve, Moved by: Commissioner Carmona, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Review and possibly appoint Samuel K. Ward Real
Estate Appraisers & Consultants to appraise the Crystal Bar (Visitor Center) located at 86
South C Street in Virginia City.

Deny Dotson, Virginia City Tourism Commission Director, explained the VCTC bought the
Black & Howell building site with plans to build a new visitor center. The VCTC Board would
like to have the Crystal Bar location appraised to see if there are options to sell, lease, or
whatever. Pursuant to NRS a list of appraisers was put together and Mr. Ward was chosen.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: 1, Jay Carmona, move to approve the appointment of Samuel K. Ward Real Estate
Appraisers & Consultants to appraise the Crystal Bar (Visitor Center) located at 86 south C Street in
Virginia City, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner Carmona Seconded by: Vice
Chairman Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Appointment of Bill Lewis to serve on the Storey
County Board of Equalization for a term of 3 years.

Clerk Vanessa Stephens indicated this appointment should have been included at the January
BOC meeting,.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I, Jay Carmona, move to approve the appointment of Bill Lewis to serve on the Storey
County Board of Equalization for a term of 3 years, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Commissioner Carmona Seconded by: Vice Chairman Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Review and Possible Approval of Agreed - Upon
Procedures presented by Eide Bailly Certified Public Accounting Firm pertaining to audit
engagement with Tesla.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher said these procedures state what is going to be done in the Tesla
audit. Tesla is in a tax-free zone. Mr. Gallagher explained the procedures for tax payments in
the tax-free zone which ultimately end up with the County paying back the taxes to the
businesses in the tax-free zone based on an audit. These are procedures allowed by the
Department of Taxation. Tesla pays for the audit.




Public Comment:
None

Motion: I, Jay Carmona, move to approve the Agreed - Upon Procedures presented Eide
Bailly Certified Public Accounting Firm pertaining to sales tax audits of Tesla for
reimbursement by Storey County to Tesla, and allow the Comptroller to sign such document,
Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner Carmona, Seconded by: Vice Chairman
Gilman....

Public Comment:
Sam Toll: Will these audits be available to the public?

Mr. Gallagher: They (audits) are private.

Mr. Whitten commented the (audits) are not available to the County, but the GOED site has a
lot of information.

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

19. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Review and possible approval of the Storey County
property tax rate for 2019-2020.

Mr. Gallagher explained the County’s tax rate must be submitted to the Department of
Taxation during February. The rate is used for 2019-20 property tax estimates. The County’s
tax rate is no greater than a lot of others - there are only three counties with lower rates.

Mr. Whitten commented that the County’s key financial advisors have advised against a tax
rate decrease because there are governors on raising rates back up if that would become
necessary. Discussions have been held with the individual Commissioners regarding what
could be done for those people in need of services by utilizing tax funds where there would be
the most impact.

Chairman McBride said the current tax rate has been the same since 2008. Taxes have gone up
only because property values have increased.

Public Comment:

Sam Toll: Is encouraged that the tax rate is remaining the same and appreciates Mr. Whitten’s
comment about maximizing services for people who need it most and suggests including the
Community Chest. The direct impact on the Senior Center and Community Chest is some of
the best spent money in the County.

Motion: I, Jay Carmona, motion to approve the Storey County property tax rate of 3.4607% for
the fiscal year 2019-2020, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner Carmona Seconded
by: Vice Chairman Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)




20. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Review of the 2nd Quarter 2018 Unaudited Budget
to Actual Review.

Comptroller Gallagher: This will be a discussion only, no action - no public comment, item as
this review is unaudited.

Mr. Whitten said there should be discussion.

Mr. Gallagher presented a summary of the budget for the first six months of the fiscal year -
reviewing each fund and department. Expenditures are at 43% - rather than 50%, thanks to
department heads. Mr. Gallagher also reviewed the special revenue funds. He reviewed
options to control overages and augmentations.

Vice Chairman Gilman said he feels the County is on the right track and is very encouraged
with the County’s financial position. Mr. Gallagher and department heads have done a great
job in controlling expenditures.

Public Comment:
None

21. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Possible action to approve repair of Canyon Way by
Cemex at no cost to County and to sign Waiver, Release and Hold Harmless Agreement
waiving permits and fees.

Project Manager Mike Northan explained that Cemex is offering to repair Canyon Way at no
cost to the County to enable traffic to access Cemex’s stone quarry. It is requested that permits
and fees for working in the County right-of-way be waived.

Chairman McBride commented that it would be less expensive to waive permits and fees than
to have the County repair the road.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I, Jay Carmona, move to approve the repair of Canyon Way by Cemex and waive the
requirements that Cemex obtain permits or licenses, pay fees, and authorize the Public Works
Director to sign the Waiver, Release and Hold Harmless Agreement, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Commissioner Carmona Seconded by: Vice Chairman Gilman, Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

22. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Special Use Permit 2018-056 is a request by the
applicant to allow for construction of a 90-foot high wireless commercial communication
facility, including a tower, equipment shelters and other associated equipment. The tower will
be configured as a water tower to disguise the proposed antenna equipment. The tower and
associated equipment will be located on an approximate 35" x 35" leased area on Storey County
property. The subject property is located at 160 E. Toll Road, Virginia City, Storey County,
Nevada and having Assessor’s Parcel Number 002-023-11.

10




Planner Kathy Canfield presented this application for a commercial, wireless communication
tower. A Special Use Permit is required as the height is over 45 feet in a public zoned area.
AT&T will be utilizing a 35'x35” area. The equipment will be designed to look like a water
tower and will be up to 90 feet high. No property owner objections were received, staff and
Planning Commission recommend approval.

Mr. Loomis indicated that a licensing of the area (to AT&T) is being worked on rather than a
lease of the area. The licensing agreement can be approved at a later date.

Ms. Canfield recommended modifying Condition I to indicate this change.

AT&T representative, Carl Jones, was in attendance via phone.

Mr. Whitten thanked AT&T for bringing cell coverage to this area.

Public Comment:

Sam Toll said he is encouraged this project is going through and asked how much the lease is,
and would this involve the Jeep Posse. Mr. Toll encourages AT&T to bring internet services in
the area into the 21¢ century.

Mr. Osborne: $2,900 per month, the same as the existing Verizon lease.

Mr. Whitten: This has not been discussed with the Jeep Posse - we are not that far yet. That
will most likely be decided through the budget process.

Ms. Canfield read the findings of fact:

1)

3)

This approval is for Special Use Permit 2018-056, a request by the applicant to allow for
construction of a 90-foot high wireless commercial communication facility, including a tower,
equipment shelters and other associated equipment. The tower will be configured as a water
tower to disguise the proposed antenna equipment. The tower and associated equipment will
be located on an approximate 35" x 35’ licensed area on Storey County property. The subject
property is located at 160 E. Toll Road, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada and having
Assessor’s Parcel Number 002-023-11.

The Special Use Permit conforms to the 2016 Storey County Master Plan for the Public
Facilities designated area in which the subject property is located. A discussion supporting
this finding for the Special Use Permit is provided in Section 2.D of this staff report and the
contents thereof are cited in an approval of this Special Use Permit. The Special Use Permit
complies with the general purpose, goals, objectives, and standards of the county master plan,
the zoning ordinance and any other plan, program, map or ordinance adopted, or under
consideration pursuant to the official notice by the county.

The proposed location, size, height, operations, and other significant features will be
compatible with and will not cause substantial negative impact on adjacent land uses, or will
perform a function or provide a service that is essential to the surrounding land uses,
community, and neighborhood.

11




4) The Special Use Permit will result in no substantial or undue adverse effect on adjacent

property, the character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, public improvements,
public sites or right-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, and general
welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the

implementation of the provisions and policies of the county master plan, this title, and any
other plans, program, map or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to an
official notice, by the county, or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide
growth and development.

5) The proposed use in the proposed area will be adequately served by and will impose no
undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities, or services provided by the

county or other governmental agency having jurisdiction in the county.

6) The Special Use Permit, with the recommended conditions of approval, complies with the

requirements of Chapters 17.03.150 - Special Use Permit, 17.12 - General Provisions, and 17.15

Public Zone.

7) The Comstock Historic District has reviewed and approved the proposed project at their
October 8, 2018 meeting.

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, the
Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate by
the Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of approval, I, Jay
Carmona, move to approve Special Use Permit 2018-056 to allow for construction of a 90-foot
high wireless commercial communication facility, including a tower, equipment shelters and
other associated equipment. The tower will be configured as a water tower to disguise the
proposed antenna equipment. The tower and associated equipment will be located on an
approximate 35’ x 35’ licensed area on Storey County property. The subject property is located
at 160 E. Toll Road, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada and having Assessor’s Parcel
Number 002-023-11, also note revision to Condition I, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Commissioner Carmona Seconded by: Vice Chairman Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

Vice Chairman Gilman said he is celebrating this action. Great communication is the heart of
health, safety, and welfare for everyone.

Mr. Jones thanked the County for consideration of this project.
23. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Update on County Manager Selection Process.

Mr. Whitten reviewed the status of this selection process prepared by Linda Ritter including
posting on governmentjobs.com and the Storey County website. 13 applications/letters of
interest have been received to date. Applications will be reviewed - the top 10 will be
interviewed by two panels - one with Storey County citizens and one with staff members who
work closely with the Storey County manager. Mr. Whitten has chosen the staff panel and the
Board has selected the citizens panel. Ms. Ritter will propose interview questions which will
be picked by the panels. Target dates for interviews will be during the last two weeks of

12




February. Mr. Whitten mailed announcements to 16 Nevada counties and to some cities. Mr.
Whitten reviewed perspective names of staff and citizen panels.

Public Comment:
None

24. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of business license Second Readings:
A. REED ELECTRIC & FIELD SERVICE - Contractor / 5375 Louie Ln ~ Reno, NV

B. AQUA METALS, INC - General / 160 Denmark ~ McCarran, NV

C. CAMBRIDGE BUILDERS, INC - Contractor / 500 E. Ridge Rd ~ Griffith, IN

D. WOOKIEE ENTERPRISES LLC - Home / 21270 Fey Rd ~ Reno, NV

E. INTEGRATED ARCHIVE SYSTEM, INC - General / 1121 N. San Antonio Rd ~ Palo Alto, CA
F. FLOWSERVE US INC - General / 5215 N. O’Connor Blvd ~ Irving, TX

G. CINCINNATI TEST SYSTEMS - General / 10100 Progress Way ~ Harrison, OH

H. KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC - General / 421 Fayetteville St ~ Raleigh, NC
I. K & C CONSTRUCTION LLC ~ Contractor / 701 Schaad Ln ~ Dayton, NV

]J. BROWN & READ ENGINEERING, INC - Contractor / 1000 Telegraph ~ Reno, NV

K. FINEST, LLC - Contractor / 4551 E. Fifth St ~ Carson City, NV

L. HUNT & SONS, INC - General / 5750 S. Watt Ave ~ Sacramento, CA

M. BURLITH COMPETIONS LLC - Home business / 257 Ave De La Emerald ~ Sparks, NV
N. SNOW MOLDING - Home Business / 2499 Cartwright ~ VC Highlands, NV

O. ROBERT ELECTRIC INC - Contractor / 774 Mays Blvd ~ Incline Village, NV

P. SCREEWAVE SERVICES INC - Home Business / 2440 Enterprise Road ~ Reno, NV

Q. HECTORS HANDYMAN SERVICE - Home Business / 1390 Main St ~ Virginia City, NV
R. VIP COLLISION CENTER, LLC - General / 100 Gentry Way ~ Reno, NV

S. VAN DYKE BALER CORP - General / 78 Halloween Blvd ~ Stamford, CT

T. NATIONWIDE BOILER INC - General / 42400 Christy Street ~ Fremont, CA

U. DAIWA ENGINEERING COMPANY - General / 1-2-1 Minami ~ Osaka, JP

V. SIMPLE POWER LLC - Contractor / 2187 Market St ~ Reno, NV

W. INTERMOUNTAIN TRAILER - General / 5510 W. Lampert Lane ~ West Valley City, UT
X. CREVO JAPAN CO., L.TD - General / 5966 Kamimaki ~ Nagano, JP

Public Comment:

None

Motion: I make a motion to approve Items A. through X., Action: Approve, Moved by:
Commissioner Carmona, Seconded by: Vice Chairman Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

25. PUBLIC COMMENT:

Sam Toll: Congratulations to Jay Carmona on his new position as Commissioner. Mr. Toll said he is
excited to hear about the reconstruction of stairs at the Sharon House and he is also happy about the
steps the County is taking regarding the TRI GID. Thanks to Public Works for the great job clearing
snow. Mr. Toll discussed a public records request he sent to the Department of Taxation regarding
the division of tax revenues within the County so it can be determined where the funds are coming
from - TRI and the C Street merchants. He commented that he heard Commissioner Gilman was
going to be a cannabis farmer in TRL. Mr. Toll has been a proponent of using hemp in industrial
applications.

13




Mr. Toll once again requested Public Comment to be held at the beginning of Commission meetings.
26. ADJOURNMENT of all active and recessed Boards on the Agenda
Chairman McBride adjourned the meeting at 12:10 P.M.

Respectfully submitted,

By: \/LLH N dﬂ{%ﬂ)\iﬂ\:\

Vanessa Stephens Clerk-Treasurer

14




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: March 19, 2019 Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min.
Agenda Item Type: Regular Agenda

1.

2.

Title: Approval of the Minutes for February 19, 2019.

Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted.

Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens

Department: Clerk Contact Number: 775.847.0969

Staff Summary: Minutes are attached for review.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: 0

Legal review required: No

Reviewed by:

_@ Department Head Department Name: Clerk

County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

FEBRUARY 19, 2019 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MEETING MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JAY CARMONA VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

ROLL CALL: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman Gilman, Commissioner Carmona, County
Manager Pat Whitten, Comptroller Hugh Gallagher, Deputy Clerk/ Treasurer Sarah Burnet,
Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis, Administrative Officer/Planning Director Austin
Osborne, Project Manager Mike Northan, Sheriff Gerald Antinoro, Community Services Director
Cherie Nevin, Planner Kathy Canfield, Community Chest Director Erik Schoen, Senior Center
Director Stacey Gilbert, Fire Chief Jeff Nevin and Community Development Director Gary Hames.

1. CALL TO ORDER MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
Meeting was called to order by Commissioner McBride at 10:09 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Chairman Marshall McBride led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for February 19, 2019.
Public Comment:
None

Motion: I make a motion to approve the Agenda for February 19, 2019,, Action: Approve, Moved
by: Vice Chairman Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner Carmona, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Consent Agenda for February 19, 2019.
Public Comment:
None




Motion: [ make a motion to approve the Consent Agenda for February 19, 2019, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Vice Chairman Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner Carmona, Vote: Motion carried
by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

5. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
Operations/Projects Coordinator Mike Northan:
e Public Works crews are working today to remove snow and widen roads.
e There was minor flooding in the usual areas which are being monitored with pre-emptive
action being taken.

Stacey Gilbert Senior Center Director:
¢ Free radon kits are available at Virginia City and Lockwood Senior Centers.
¢ Senior Services Focus Groups are scheduled: February 21+, 5pm-Lockwood Senior Center;
March 12t, 6pm-Virginia City Highlands Fire Station; March 21, 5pm-Mark Twain
Community Center; April 4%, 5pm -Virginia City Senior Center. All are open to the public.

Community Chest Director Erik Schoen:

e Thank you to the Fire Department for help in preventing water from coming into the building.

o The library and technology center is open from 10AM to 4PM.

 Groups are encouraged to use the library - space is available for meetings and can be reserved
for evenings.

» Work is being done on two opioid spike strategic plans. This will help identify core health and
human service infrastructure needs.

+ The Roseanne Cash concert is almost sold out.

» Community Chest was chosen by Blockchains to be the recipient of its “blocked shot” promo
at Wolfpack basketball games.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher:
e Reviewed some of the interesting Bill Draft Requests (BDR's) being considered at the
Legislature. Review of BDR’s will be presented as an agenda item at future meetings.

Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis:
e Decisions on two Open Meeting Law complaints have been received. Both were found to have

no violation.

County Manager Pat Whitten:
o Reminder, there is no Commission meeting on March 5t due to the NACO Legislative
Conference in Washington DC.
e Update on County Manager selection process:
o Staff and citizen interview panels have been selected.
o Panel interviews will be held on February 26
o 18 applications were received, 9 with sufficient qualifications, 7 are scheduled to be
interviewed. The top three, or so, will be presented to the Commission.
o Applicants will bear all travel costs. Three applicants live out of state.
Position announcements have been removed at this time.
o Panel recommendations will be taken to the Board of Commissioners for public
interview on March 19,




6. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - Public Comment)
None

7. DISCUSSION ONLY/NO ACTION: Switch Presentation to Virginia City Silver Bricks FIRST
Robotics.

Adam Kramer from Switch presented the Virginia City Silver Bricks team with a $9,000 check as
sponsorship for the first Lego League Team in Nevada to qualify for the championship robotics
games held in Houston, Texas. This donation will enable the team to make the trip. Switch has
sponsored robotics teams throughout Nevada.

Chairman McBride congratulated the team and said the County is very proud of them.

Mr. Whitten thanked Switch for what they are doing, the robotics team, and Commissioner Carmona
for making this happen.

8. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration of Approval for Option and License
Agreement between Storey County (Licensor) and New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC (Licensee), for
the right to use a portion of property owned by Storey County and located at 160 East Toll Road
(APN 002.023.11), Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada, for the purposes of a commercial wireless
communications facility.

Austin Osborne thanked Deputy District Attorney Loomis for his involvement in this agreement.
This is a license agreement for a small portion of land near the Ice House for installation of a cell
tower. This is a 20 year agreement, with 5-year automatic renewal, and is $1900 per month, with a
3% increase per year.

Chairman McBride commented that under the SUP, the licensee agreed to put something related to
Virginia City, such as “Muckers”, on the tower.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and other findings deemed appropriate by
the Board of County Commissioners, I, Lance Gilman, move to approve Option and License
Agreement between Storey County (Licensor) and New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC (Licensee), for
the right to use a portion of property owned by Storey County and located at 160 East Toll Road
(APN 002.023.11), Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada, for the purposes of a commercial wireless
communications facilit, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Gilman, Seconded by:
Commissioner Carmona, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

9. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Review and possible approval of Auditors
Recommendations pertaining to Storey County audit report for the period ended June 30, 2018.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher reviewed the audit recommendations provided by auditors DiPietro &
Thornton. Expenditures exceeded appropriations in seven special revenue funds and two enterprise
funds. The auditors recommended monitoring expenditures to prevent this in the future. Mr.

3




Gallagher said his office will continue to meet and work with the Tourism Commission on a regular
basis, or as needed, if expenditures are out of hand.

Mr. Gallagher gave explanations for departments whose expenses were over appropriations.

In the audit, the auditor also made comments regarding Cash and Investment Accounts, assistance
by the auditor with the audit report, and the collectability of ambulance receivables which will be
audited on a monthly basis.

Public Comment:
None

10. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY LIQUOR BOARD

11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of first reading for On-Sale, Off-Sale &
Cabaret Union Brewery Virginia City, LLC. Applicant Lisa Mathney. Place of business: 63 C
St., Virginia City, NV 89440.

Sheriff Antinoro said this is the first reading of the on-sale, off-sale for Cabaret Union Brewery.
Background checks need to completed and work is still being done on the actual building.

Public Comment:
None

Chairman McBride disclosed he has a liquor license on C Street in proximity to the applicant -
voting on this item in no way would affect applicant any differently than any other applicant
coming before this Board.

Vice Chairman Gilman made the same disclosure.

Motion: I motion to approve the first reading for On-Sale, Off-Sale & Cabaret Union Brewery
Virginia City LLC, applicant Lisa Mathney, place of business 63 North C Street, Virginia City, NV
89440, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner
Carmona, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

12. ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible acceptance of deed of
dedication from Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC, a southern portion of existing Amsterdam Court
at the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC, at the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, McCarran, Storey
County, Nevada.

Vice Chairman Gilman recused himself from discussion and vote on this item.

Austin Osborne explained there are three actions regarding Amsterdam Court. This item is a deed
and dedication of approximately one acre of land facilitating a portion of Amsterdam Court from
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center to Storey County to become a road. This road does not meet County

4




standard, therefore it is requested that it not be subject to the TRI payback under the Development
Agreement. This road goes into the NV Energy power plant and does not serve any purpose other
than access to a couple of driveways. This dedication is for the sum of $10. It is believed in the future
this road could be used for access to housing and other uses.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I, Jay Carmona, make a motion to approve
acceptance of deed of dedication from Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC, a southern portion of
Amsterdam Court at the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada, as
described in Deed of Dedication and Exhibit “ A" of this report. The parties recognize that this is not
subject to the TRI payback, Action: Approve, Moved by: Chairman McBride, Seconded by:
Commissioner Carmona, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible acceptance of Grant,
Bargain, and Sale Deed, that being a northern portion of existing Amsterdam Court from
Sierra Pacific Power Company, doing business as NV Energy, to Storey County. The subject
property is located at McCarran, Storey County, Nevada, and is described in Exhibit “A” to
Grant, Bargain, and Sale deed in the report.

Mr. Osborne explained this property is the connector from Waltham Way to what was just
accepted in the previous item - it is not subject to payback and is outside of the TRIC park.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I, Lance Gilman, motion to approve
acceptance of Grant, Bargain, and Sale Deed, a northern portion of existing Amsterdam Court from
Sierra Pacific Power Company, doing business as NV Energy, to Storey County, a parcel described in
Exhibit “A” to Grant, Bargain, and Sale Deed, of this report, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner Carmona, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible conveyance of
easement from Storey County (grantor) to Sierra Pacific Power Company, doing business as
NV Energy (grantee), conveying a perpetual right and easement to construct, operate, add to,
modify, maintain, and remove aboveground and/ or belowground communications facilities
and electric line systems upon, over, under, and through property described in Exhibit A and
Exhibit B of this report at McCarran, Storey County, Nevada.

Mr. Osborne said Sierra Pacific Power is requesting an easement on the property referenced in
the previous items.

Public Comment:
None




Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I, Lance Gilman, motion to approve
acceptance of Grant of Easement from Storey County (grantor) to Sierra Pacific Power Company,
doing business as NV Energy (grantee), a perpetual right and belowground communications facilities
and electric line systems upon, over, under, and through property described in Exhibit A of this
report, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner
Carmona, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Special Use Permit (2019-001) request to operate a
home enterprise. The home enterprise will consist of beekeeping (with a maximum of 20
hives), a greenhouse to grow produce and an aqua farm structure for raising fish. No retail
sales of product will occur at the site. The property is approximately 2.70 acres in size and is
located at 144 Elizabeth Lane, Mark Twain, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number
(APN) 003-314-23.

Planner Kathy Canfield presented this Special Use Permit request for beekeeping, home
grown-produce, and aqua farm for raising fish. 20 bee hives have been requested for this 2.7
acre property. Research was conducted regarding beekeeping. Ms. Canfield reviewed the
information she received. Based on research, staff is recommending applicants be allowed to
have 10 hives. Applicants could apply for additional hives after review in two years. The
Planning Commission added a condition of a one year review to determine if there is any
impact on neighbors. They also added two other conditions. A letter was received in support
of the project.

Chairman McBride asked applicants if they would have adequate supply of water for the
number of bees 20 hives would have, and to also raise fish.

Applicant Stacy Grimes said there is a water source at each colony. Aaron Grimes described
the water system that would be installed. Mr. Grimes explained he wants to install a
greenhouse with water tanks to raise the fish. A cistern to collect water is being looked at with
a water system that would re-circulate. This should use minimal amount from the well.

Vice Chairman Gilman commented there may be an issue with the State regarding domestic
water use versus commercial.

Commissioner Carmona applauded applicants as bees are integral part of society.

Ms. Canfield pointed out that under the Conditions of Approval applicant must provide
documentation from the State Division of Water Resources showing adequate water rights
exist for all uses on this property.

Public Comment:

Steve Massicotte, Mark Twain resident: Commented that three businesses were being put on
one residential property impacting the area and expressed opposition and concern about
children in the area. The Board (Planning Commission) approved ten hives without
investigation. This is too much for a residential area and there is not enough food to sustain
the bees.




Kris Thompson, Storey County resident and Planning Commission member: The Planning
Commission considered, at length, the concerns about public safety. Mr. Thompson reviewed
the information presented by applicants at the Planning Commission meeting regarding the
number of bees and where they forage. The Planning Department staff did a lot of research of
this issue which was presented to the Commission. There is an environmental benefit to
having the bees.

Ms. Canfield indicated the number of ten hives is consistent with the Carson City ordinance
for this size property. No one in Carson City brought up any issues with this number of bees.

Commissioner Carmona said that parents of children who are allergic to bees most likely are
pro-active and send an epi-pen to school. To say children are in danger is going overboard.

Chairman McBride sees the concerns. If there are any issues, this SUP can be brought back to
the Board to be revoked.

Ms. Canfield read the findings of fact:
This approval is for Special Use Permit 2019-001 to operate a home enterprise. The home
enterprise will consist of beekeeping (with a maximum of 10 hives), a greenhouse to grow
produce and an Aqua farm structure for raising fish. No retail sales of product will occur at
the site. The property is approximately 2.70 acres in size and is located at 144 Elizabeth Lane,
Mark Twain, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-314-23.

The proposed project complies with the general purpose, goals, objectives, and standards of
the county master plan, this title, and any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted, or
under consideration pursuant to official notice by the county.

The proposal location, size, height, operations, and other significant features will be
compatible with and will not cause substantial negative impact on adjacent land uses, or will
perform a function or provide a service that is essential to the surrounding land uses,
community, and neighborhood.

The proposed project will result in no substantial or undue adverse effect on adjacent property,
the character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, public improvements, public
sites or right-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, and general welfare,
either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the
implementation of the provisions and policies of the county master plan, this title, and any
other plans, program, map or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to an
official notice, by the county, or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide
growth and development.

The proposed use in the proposed area will be adequately served by and will impose no
undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities, or services provided by the
county or other governmental agency having jurisdiction in the county.

The Special Use Permit conforms to the 2016 Storey County Master Plan for the Mark Twain
planning area in which the subject property is located. A discussion supporting this finding is

7




provided in Section 2.C of this staff report and the contents thereof are cited in an approval of
this Special Use Permit.

The conditions under the Special Use Permit do not conflict with the minimum requirements
in Storey County Code Sections 17.03.150, Special Use Permit and Section 17.40 E - Estate
Zone.

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by the Planning Commission and staff, the findings
of fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate by the Board of
County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of approval, I Lance Gilman, move to
approve Special Use Permit 2019-001 to allow for operation of a home enterprise. The home
enterprise will consist of beekeeping (with a maximum of 10 hives), a greenhouse to grow produce
and an aqua farm structure for raising fish. No retail sales of product will occur at the site. The
property is approximately 2.70 acres in size and is located at 144 Elizabeth Lane, Mark Twain, Storey
County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-314-23, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner Carmona, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of Storey
County Multidisciplinary Memorandum of Understanding to strengthen community support
and services for vulnerable populations in Storey County.

Stacey Gilbert, Senior Center Director, explained that several years ago various Storey County
departments and entities came together with the goal of strengthening community support
and services, including addressing specific needs and behavioral and health concerns and
increasing access to care for vulnerable populations in the County. The MOU sets forth the
basic terms which the agencies - The Storey County Multidisciplinary team (MDT) - agree to
participate in to meet the goals of the MDT. The team will focus on development and
sustainability within the community, as well as development and implementation of a
coordinated community response to those living with behavioral health issues, including
mental health and substance use disorders, as well as a large senior population. Other
counties have also formed teams to address these concerns.

Taylor Tremaine from Community Chest said her goal is to provide resources and contacts for
seniors, and those in need, at little to no cost.

Cherie Nevin, Community Services Director, commented this was the first time Storey County
has done this MOU. Many other counties and agencies are already participating in similar
support and services.

Public Comment:
Nicole Barde, Storey County resident said this is phenomenal and knowing the participants,
this will be a great success. Thank you.

Motion: I, Lance Gilman, move to approve the Storey County Multidisciplinary Team Memorandum
of Understanding, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Gilman, Seconded by:
Commissioner Carmona, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

8




18. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
BOARD

19. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of Storey
County Multidisciplinary Memorandum of Understanding to strengthen community support
and services for vulnerable populations in Storey County.

County Manager Whitten said this item is the same as the previous item but for the Fire
Protection District.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I, Lance Gilman, move to approve the Storey County Multidisciplinary Team Memorandum
of Understanding, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Gilman, Seconded by:
Commissioner Carmona, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

20. ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS

21. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of business license Second Readings:
Mr. Whitten, on behalf of Community Development, recommends approval of all items A. through I:

A. AAA FIRE SPRINKLER - Professional / 630 Kregge Ln ~ Sparks, NV

B. SLONE GEAR INTERNATIONAL, INC - General / 714 East Monument Ave ~ Dayton, NV
C. ATCO INDUSTRIES, INC - General / 7200 Fifteen Mile Road ~ Sterling Heights, MI

D. CSG ELECTRIC LLC - Contractor / 600 Valle Verde ~ Sparks, NV

E. “C” STREET MASSAGE - Massage/ 240 C Street ~ Virginia City, NV

E. CASS NV, LLC - General/ 2555 USA Parkway ~ McCarran, NV

G. WINBCO TANK COMPANY - 1200 East Main Street ~ Ottumwa, 1A

H. PINYON POTTERY, LLC - 4250 Hobart Road ~ Carson City, NV
. CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS HOLDING, LLC - Contractor/ 9335 Prototype Drive, Reno, NV

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I make a motion to approve Items A. through I, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner Carmona, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

PUBLIC COMMENT:
None

22. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
Chairman McBride said “Lady Muckers” are playing in regional tournaments on Wednesday at

Wooster.




23. ADJOURNMENT of all active and recessed Boards on the Agenda
Chairman McBride adjourned the meeting at 12:05 P.M.

Respectfully submitted,

By:ﬁwﬁﬁgh&_
V

anessa Stephens Clerk*Treasurer
24. CLOSED SESSION INVOLVING STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS AND THE STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
COMMISSIONERS

10




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 3/19/19 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ X ] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of 1% reading for general business license for Tom Redican, 2™ Line of Defense
(CCW Instruction). 3260 Six Mile Canyon Rd., Virginia City, NV 89440,

2. Recommended motion: | motion to approve the 1* reading for general business license for
Tom Redican, 2™ Line of Defense (CCW Instruction). 3260 Six Mile Canyon Rd., Virginia City,
NV 89440.

3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Administrative Assistant %
Department: SCSO Telephone: 775-847-0959

4, Staff summary: Approval of 1% reading for general business license for Tom Redican, 2™ Line
of Defense (CCW Instruction). 3260 Six Mile Canyon Rd., Virginia City, NV 89440,

5. Supporting materials: Sce attached Agenda letter

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available; Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

X__ Department Head DepartmeppName: Gerald Antinoro

L4

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
{] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[ ]

Agenda Item No.



STOREY COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE

Gerald Antinoro
Sheriff

March 6, 2019

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office
Pat Whitten, County Manager

Fr: Brandy Gavenda

Please add the following item(s) to the March 19, 2019 Commissioners Consent
Agenda:

LICENSE BOARD
First Reading:
A. General Business License - 2nd Line of Defense

PO Box 498
205 South C Street
Virginia City, NV 89440
Office: (775) 847-0959 Fax: (775) 847-0924



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 3/19/19 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent { X ] Regular agenda[ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of 1* reading for general business license for Tom Redican, 2™ Line of Defense
(CCW Instruction). 3260 Six Mile Canyon Rd., Virginia City, NV 89440.

2. Recommended motion: [ motion to approve the 1% reading for general business license for

Tom Redican, 2™ Line of Defense (CCW Instruction). 3260 Six Mile Canyon Rd., Virginia City,
NV 89440.

3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Administrative Assistant %

Department: SCSO Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary: Approval of 1® reading for general business license for Tom Redican, 2™ Line
of Defense (CCW Instruction). 3260 Six Mile Canyon Rd., Virginia City, NV 89440.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda letter
6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

__X__ Department Head WName: G/erild%z‘\.n_tim
4‘% - —_—

=

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denicd

Approved with Modifications
Continued

——
—_—

Agenda Item No. (0 I



STOREY COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE

Gerald Antinoro
Sheriff

March 6, 2019

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office
Pat Whitten, County Manager

Fr: Brandy Gavenda

Please add the following item(s) to the March 19, 2019 Commissioners Consent
Agenda:

LICENSE BOARD
First Reading:
A. General Business License — 2nd Line of Defense

PO Box 498
205 South C Street
Virginia City, NV 89440
Office: (775) 847-0959 Fax: (775) 847-0924



Commissioners
Agenda Action Report
Meeting date: March 19, 2019 Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min.
Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda
1. Title: For possible action approval of claims in the amount of $3,184,297.89.
2. Recommended motion: Approve as part of the consent agenda.
3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Treasurer Contact Number: 775-847-0969
4, Staff Summary: Claims are attached.
5. Supporting Materials: See attached
6. Fiscal Impact: 0
7. Legal review required: No
8. Rgviewed by:
_@ Department Head Department Name: Treasurer
__ County Manager Other Agency Review:
9. Board Action:
[ ] Approved [ | Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

Storey County Board of County




Check Register

Packet: APPKT00480 - 2019-03-01 AP Payment cw

By Check Number

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
Bank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank

101589 AIRGAS NCN INC 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 254.06 94955
405020 ALL COMSTOCK LLC 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 4,000.00 954956
400481 ALLISON, MACKENZIE, LTD 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 3,300.00 94957
100135 ALSCO INC 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 311.18 94958
404935 AMES CONSTRUCTION 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 650,928.00 94959
103061 ASSESSOR'S ASSOC OF NEV 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 200.00 94960
403619 ATE&T TELECONFERENCE SERVI 03/01/2018 Regular ¢.00 118.09 94961
405254 BARKDULL-SPENCER, ELAINE 03/01/2019 Reguiar 0.00 2,148.09 94962
405103 BATTLE BORN CONSULTING SE 03/01/2019 Reguiar 0.00 11,354.00 94963
404181 Board of Comissioners 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 215,000,.00 94964
404693 BOURNS PRODUCTIONS INC. 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 650.00 94965
100438 BULBMAN 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 38.76 94566
403671 BURRELL, SCOTT LEWIS 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 15.00 94967
100476 BURTON'S FIRE INC 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 1,230.31 94968
403268 CELLCO PARTNERSHIP 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 2,277.14 94969
403635 CENTRAL SANITARY SUPPLY 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 128.34 948970
405235 CHARTWELL STAFFING SERV 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 3,491.40 94971
100654 CINDERLITE TRUCKING CORP 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 8,428.45 94972
100505 CITY OF CARSON TREASURER 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 78.18 94973
405060 CLEAR CHANNEL QUTDOOR 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 225.00 54974
405134 CMC TIRE INC 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 159.74 94975
403822 COLLECTION SERVICE OF NEV 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 477.97 94976
100655 COMMUNITY CHEST INC 03/01/201% Regular 0.00 15,966.00 94977
99652 COMSTOCK CHRONICLE (VC) 03/01/2018 Regular 0.00 120.00 954978
405354 Crisis Collections Management, LLC  03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 679.06 94979
404466 DAIOHS USA INC 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 25.95 94980
405480 David M Julian MD 03/01/2019 Regular G.00 143.47 94931
100717 DELTA FIRE SYSTEMS INC 03/01/2019 Regular Q.00 280.00 94982
402905 DISH DB8S CORPORATION DISH NETV 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 102.04 94983
405286 Ecology and Enviornment, Inc. 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 7,921.00 94934
404547 ELLIOTT AUTO SUPPLY INC 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 2,224.88 94985
404002 ELLIQTT, LAWRENCE J 03/01/2019 Regular .00 172.39 94986
405008 ERICKSON THORPE & SWAINSTON L 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 1,673.50 94987
405484 Evident 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 63.50 94988
403216 FARR WEST ENGINEERING 03/01/2019 Regular Q.00 30,933.50 94989
403712 FAST GLASS INC 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 149.00 94990
404509 FASTENAL COMPANY 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 185.93 94591
403975 FERRELLGAS LP 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 4,496.13 94992
405264 FIDELITY SEC LIFE INS CO 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 222.13 94993
405436 FT Pub I, LLC 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 701.72 594994
404896 GOLDEN GATE/SET PETROLEUM 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 2,135.08 94995
101899 GRAINGER 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 130.04 94996
404508 GRANSBERY, TOM 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 562.50 94997
103470 GREAT BASIN TERMITE & PES 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 260.00 94998
404394 GTP INVESTMENTS LLC 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 632.66 94999
405322 H&E Equipment Services, inc 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 333.55 95000
404592 HARBIN, KURT B 03/01/2015 Regular 0.00 151.45 95001
404778 HAT, LTD 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 3,223.92 95002
102983 HD SUPPLY FACIL MAINT LTD 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 443,88 95003
403040 HENRY SCHEIN 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 2,328.05 95004
404366 HOMETOWN HEALTH 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 15,296.23 95005
403753 HOT SPOT BROADBAND INC 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 190.00 95006
102564 HYDRAULIC INDUSTRIAL SERV 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 67.55 95007
405165 ICS JAIL SUPPLIES, INC 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 32.50 95008



Check Register Packet: APPKT0O0480-2019-03-01 AP Payment cw

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number

405302 Institute for Enviornmental Health ir 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 350.00 95009

403540 INTERMOUNTAIN SLURRY SEAL, Inc. 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 5,340.10 95010

100885 IRON MOUNTAIN INFQ MGT IN 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 290.03 95011

403834 IT1 SOURCE LLC 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 154.31 95012

404771 ITS MY COMMUNITY STORE 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 135.10 95013

404583 JAMES C MCLENNAN MDPC 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 500.00 95014

103317 IBP LLC 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 1,135.37 95015

403563 JEFFERSON AUDIO VIDED SYS 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 4,265.00 95016

405263 KANSAS CITY LIFE INS CO 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 15.92 95017

404400 LERETA LLC 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 282.00 95018
101030 LIFE-ASSIST INC 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 17552 95019

404102 LIQUID BLUE EVENTS LLC 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 2,300.00 95020
404102 LIQUID BLUE EVENTS LLC 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 34,300.00 95021
404691 MARK TWAIN COMMUNITY CTR 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 1,666.67 95022
404088 METRO OFFICE SOLUTIONS IN 03/01/2019 Regutar 0.00 188.39 95023
404883 MORTON, JUNE & MICHAEL 03/01/2018 Regular 0.00 200.00 95024
405127 O'REILLY AUTO ENTERPRISES LLC 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 478.66 95025
404746 OTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 440,16 95026
404556 OUTFRONT MEDIA LLC 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 644 68 95027
103032 POWERPLAN 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 247.77 95028

405494 Price, lason James 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 1,250.00 95029
404064 PROFESSIONAL FINANCE CO | 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 246.89 35030
405456 Public Employees Retirement 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 1,546.02 355031
100348 PURCELL TIRE & RUBBER CO 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 4,155.33 85032
405458 Rapid Space, LLC 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 3,186.71 95033
402937 RAY MORGAN CO INC (CA) 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 222.70 95034
403608 RENO RADIOLOGICAL ASSOC. 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 44.75 95035
405492 Roberts, Terry 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 3,187.00 95036
405222 ROWE & HALES, LLP 03/01/2019 Regutar 0.00 1,220.00 95037
10026 RUPPCO INC 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 86.04 95038
405482 Saint Mary's Medical Group, Inc. 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 222.17 95039
101210 SBC GLOBAL SERVICES INC 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 4,011.61 95040
**Void** 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 0.00 95041

405081 SHERMARK DISTRIBUTORS INC 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 228.00 95042
101630 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 13,327.68 95043
**Void** 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 0.00 95044

403480 SLICK INDUSTRIES LLC DBA 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 108.00 95045
404195 SOUTHERN GLAZERS WINE & § 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 412.70 95046
403234 SPALLONE, DOMINIC) il 03/01/2015 Regular 0.00 228.53 95047
404871 STAR25TAR COMMUNICATIONS, LLC 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 2,002.17 95048
403892 SUN PEAK ENTERPRISES 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 91.00 95049
405185 THATCHER COMPANY 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 2,177.11 95050
404615 THE ANTOS AGENCY 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 500.00 95051
404473 THE DUBE' GROUFR INC 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 1,711.25 95052
404786 THE ROASTING HOUSE 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 20.00 95053
101786 THERMATEMP 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 140.00 95054
404845 THOMAS PETROLEUM LLC 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 3,209.68 95055
405076 UNITEDHEALTHCARE INS CO 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 1,142.71 95056
101845 US POSTOFFICE (VC) 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 120.00 95057
405468 USA Bath, LLC 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 328.79 95058
404486 USA CASH SERVICES MGT INC 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 104.30 95059
404828 V & T ROCK, INC 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 966.87 95060
403983 VCTC 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 59.24 95061
403894 VIRGINIA & TRUCKEE RR CO, INC. 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 32,345.24 95062
405298 VOTEC Corporation 03/01/2018 Regular 0.00 5,643.60 95063
101932 WASHOE CQ SHERIFFS OFFICE 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 875.00 95064
103009 WASHOE COUNTY SENIOR SERYV 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 1,396.88 95065
101920 WESTERN NEVADA SUPPLY CO 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 336.86 95066

404709 ZACH LYON CREATIVE, INC 03/01/2019 Regular 0.00 500.00 95067



Chack Register
Vendor Number
404295

Vendor Name

WELLS ONE COMMERCIAL CARD

Payment Type
Regular Checks
Manual Checks
Voided Checks
Bank Drafts
EFT's

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissners:

Payment Date
02/26/2019

Payment Type

Bank Draft

Bank Code AP Bank Summary

Payabie
Count
181

0

o]

15

0

196

Payment
Count

111

114

Discount
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

Packat: APPKTO0480-2019-03-01 AP Payment cw

Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
0.00 8,582.88 DFTDO00131

Paymaent
1,137,125.83
0.00

0.00
B,582.88
0.00

1,145,708.71

Chairman

Commissioner

Commissioner

Comptroller

Treasurer



Check R'eglstur Packet: APPKTO0480-2019-03-01 AP Payment cw

Fund Summary

Fund Name Period Amount
999 Pooled Cash Account 2/2019 8,582.88
999 Pocled Cash Account 3/2019 1,137,125.83

1,145,708.71



Check Register

Packet: APPKT(00443 - 2019-02-15 Direct Payable Michael Hohl
Motor cw

By Check Number

Vandor Number Vendor Name Paymaent Date Payrnent Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
Bank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank
405491 TM & KKH Inc 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 31,544.00 94939
Bank Code AP Bank Summary
Payshie Paymaent

Paymemt Type Count Count Discount Paymant

Regular Checks 1 1 0.00 31,544.00

Manual Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00

Voided Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00

Bank Drafts 0 0 0.00 0.00

EFT's 0 0 0.00 0.00

1 1 000  31,544.00

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissners:

Chairman Commissioner Commissioner

Comptroller

Treasurer



Check Register Packet: APPKT00443-2019-02-15 Direct Payable Michael Hohl Motor cw

Fund Summary

Fund Name Period Amount
999 Pogled Cash Account 2/2019 31,5443(1
31,544.00



Check Register

Packet: APPKT00439 - 2018-02-15 AP Payments cw

By Check Number

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount MNumber

Bank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank

404671 PORTER GROUP LLC 02/15/2019 EFT Q.00 6,000.00 10010
99672 ABC FIRE B CYLINDER SERVI 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 654.50 94811
10050 ADVANCED DATA SYSTEMS INC 02/15/2019 Regular Q.00 2,646.00 54812
101589 AIRGAS NCN INC 02/15/2013 Regular 0.00 143.32 94813
100135 ALSCO INC 02/15/2013 Regular Q.00 316.13 94814
100157 AMERICAN WATERWORKS ASSN 02/15/2019 Regular Q.00 433.00 94815
404935 AMES CONSTRUCTION 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 80,478.55 94816
405268 ARGENTUM PARTNERS, LTD 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 4,167.00 94817
99663 ATET MOSBILITY )l LLC 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 65.45 94818
403619 ATE&T TELECONFERENCE SERVI| 02/15/201% Regular 0.00 35.92 94819
405254 BARKDULL-SPENCER, ELAINE 02/15/2018 Regular 0.00 10,001.01 94820
100422 BOB BARKER COMPANY INC 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 62.07 94821
405201 BRIGGS ELECTRIC, INC 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 870.00 94822
403671 BURRELL, SCOTT LEWIS 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 66.00 94823
99763 CANYON GENERAL IMPROVEMENT | 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 56.20 94824
99720 CASELLE INC 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 202.00 94825
403268 CELLCO PARTNERSHIP 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 141.89 94826
403635 CENTRAL SANITARY SUPPLY 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 113.98 54827
405235 CHARTWELL STAFFING SERY 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 4,291.80 S4828
404779 CHURCHILL VINEYARDS, LLC 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 33,936.80 94829
100505 CITY OF CARSON TREASURER 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 20.00 94830
405134 CMC TIRE INC 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 765.00 94831
403822 COLLECTION SERVICE OF NEV 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 242.00 94832
99652 COMSTOCK CHRONICLE {VC) 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 752.25 94833
405216 CONVERGEONE, INC 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 273.60 94834
404466 DAICHS USA INC 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 281.60 94835
405209 DIPIETRC & THORNTON APC 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 46,500.00 594836
405210 DUNCAN, CANDY L 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 3,350.00 94837
405327 Easley, Jerry & Dolres G 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 94.39 943838
404547 ELLIOTT AUTO SUPPLY INC 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 1,156.63 94339
405483 Evident 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 290.35 94840
405180 FAIN, JESSICA 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 104.99 94341
403216 FARR WEST ENGINEERING 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 29.453.08 94842
404509 FASTENAL COMPANY 02/15/2018 Regular 0.00 26.47 94843
403975 FERRELLGAS LP 02/15/2018 Regular 0.00 2,165.65 94844
403975 FERRELLGAS LP 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 7,419.64 94845
404117 FLEET HEATING & AIR INCOR 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 531.00 394846
405489 Forcum, Lynn 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 91.52 954847
404896 GOLDEN GATE/SET PETROLEUM 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 987.75 94848
101899 GRAINGER 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 2,018.48 94849
404508 GRANSBERY, TOM 02/15/2019 Reguiar 0.00 585.00 94850
103470 GREAT BASIN TERMITE & PES 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 35.00 94851
404394 GTP INVESTMENTS LLC 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 410.06 94852
404778 HAT, LTD 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 1,357.44 94853
403040 HENRY SCHEIN 02/15/2019 Regular .00 304.49 94854
401186 HERRINGTOMN, EILEEN 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 13.28 94855
405490 Higashi-Pizzuto, Grace 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 16.82 94856
405293 Highland Electric and Lighting LLC ~ 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 68,308.00 94857
405302 Institute for Enviornmental Health Ir 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 365.00 94858
403834 IT1 SOURCE LLC 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 15,415.41 94859
404771 ITS MY COMMUNITY STORE 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 208.48 94360
103317 IBP LLC 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 1,008.87 94861
403613 JNA CONSULTING GROUP LLC 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 24,799.17 94862

100995 JONES WEST FORD 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 27,518.25 94863



Check Register Packet: APPKT00439-2018-02-15 AP Payments cw

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
103057 JUDGE EDWARD R JOHNSON 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 276.32 94864
405487 ludy Steele 02/15/201% Regular 0.00 163.51 94865
405224 KENNETH L DORR IR SOLE M 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 3,406.63 94866
101040 L N CURTIS & SONS 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 2,025.00 94867
101030 LIFE-ASSIST INC 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 180.48 94868
404102 LIQUID BLUE EVENTS LLC 02/15/2018 Regular 0.00 3,000.00 94869
404363 MA LABORATORIES INC 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 2,645.22 94870
405077 MACKAY MANSION 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 16.50 94871
103126 MEDICAL PRIORITY DISPATCH 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 85.00 94872
403629 MIGAN, TAMARA 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 87.53 94873
405339 Morraw, Jocelyn 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 1,500.00 94874
100471 MOUND HOUSE TRUE VALUE 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 174.25 94875
101228 NEV ADMIN BLDG & GROUNDS 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 3,897.34 094876
101226 NEV COMPTROLLER 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 9,823.50 94877
101226 NEV COMPTROLLER 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 632.32 94878
403317 NEV DEPT PUBLIC SAFETY 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 1,063.75 94879
101335 NEV DEPT TAXATION 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 71,38 94880
101220 NEV DIV OF MINERALS 02/15/2019 Regular .00 250.00 94881
103451 NEVADA JUDGES QF LIMITED 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 250.00 94882
404357 NEVADA OCCUPATIONAL HLTH 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 647.23 94883
101362 Nextel of California 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 23531 94884
102782 OFFICE DEPOT INC 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 5.47 S488S
402926 OFFSITE DATA DEPQT, LLC 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 335.55 94386
405127 O'REILLY AUTQO ENTERPRISES LLC 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 425.67 94887
404870 OSBORNE, JOAN 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 2,970.00 94888
403895 PETRINI, ANGELO D 02/15/2019 Regutar 0.00 7.00 94839
101435 PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL (LEA) 02/15/2019 Regular Q.00 1,190.97 94890
101439 PONDEROSA STAMP & ENGRAV 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 37.10 94891
101417 POST NEV 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 1,000.00 94392
403329 PROTECTION DEVICES INC 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 719.85 94393
405456 Public Employees Retirement 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 222,812.48 94394
103221 PUBLIC EMPLY RETIREMENT RETIRE 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 2,189.68 94895
100348 PURCELL TIRE & RUBBER CO 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 1,439.73 94896
404398 RAD STRATEGIES INC 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 65,450.00 54897
404153 RANDS & SOUTH LTD 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 115.50 94898
402937 RAY MORGAN CO INC {CA) 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 18.50 94859
102198 RAY MORGAN COMPANY (MO} 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 1,500.00 94900
404863 REFLISE, INC 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 283.65 94901
403943 RENG TAHOE TERRITORY 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 150.00 94902
404780 REPORTING SYSTEMS, INC 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 6518.00 94903
103063 RESERVE ACCOUNT 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 100.00 94904
405459 Ritter, Linda P 02/15/2019 Regutar 0.00 855.00 94905
10026 RUPPCO INC 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 215.22 94906
101210 SBC GLOBAL SERVICES INC 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 362.98 94907
405485 Schat Enterprises, LLC 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 6,708.90 94908
405081 SHERMARK DISTRIBUTORS INC 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 190.00 94909
102461 SIERRA CONTROL SYSTEMS 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 1,875.00 94910
102462 SIERRA ENVIRONMENTAL MONITOF 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 105.00 94911
403234 SPALLONE, DOMINIC 1 1 02/15/201% Regular 0.00 274,64 94912
101658 SPB UTILITY SERVICES INC 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 755.82 94913
101717 ST CO SCHOOL DISTRICT 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 502,888.23 94914
101745 5T CO WATER S5YSTEM 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 2,825.37 94915
402848 STAFFORD, MARK 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 17,545.00 94916
405475 Staples Contract & Commercial, Inc  02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 101.47 94917
101229 State of Nevada 02/15/2019 Regular .00 15.00 94918
403892 SUN PEAK ENTERPRISES 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 185.00 94919
405114 TAX MANAGEMENT ASSC INC 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 700.00 94920
405483 The Wedgwood Group, LLC 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 4,020.00 94921
101786 THERMATEMP 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 279.25 94922
404845 THOMAS PETROLEUM LLC 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 3,969.22 94923

403225 TRI GENERAL IMPROVEMENT 02/15/2018 Regular 0.00 305.05 94924



Check Register Packet: APPKTDO435-2018-02-15 AP Paymants cw

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Paymaent Amount Numbar
402935 TRUCKEE MEADOWS WATER 5YS 02/15/2019 Reguilar 0.00 49.95 94925
404522 UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 263.01 94926
405479 US imaging Inc 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 2,600.65 94927
101845 US POSTOFFICE (VC) 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 200.00 94928
405468 USA Bath, LLC 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 500.21 94929
404486 USA CASH SERVICES MGT INC 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 104.30 94930
404828 V & T ROCK, INC 02/15/201% Regular 0.00 1,211.67 954931
404455 WA STATE DEPT OF CORRECT 02/15/2018 Regular 0.00 77.25 94932
402820 WALKER & ASSOCIATES 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 2,274.00 94933
403150 WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 553.00 94934
101809 WEDCO INC 02/15/201% Regular 0.00 211.35 94935
103237 WESTERN ENVIRONMENTAL LAB 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 216.80 94936
101920 WESTERN NEVADA SUPPLY CO 02/15/2019 Regular 0.00 902.08 94937
405483 Yaghiegian, Dick & Lauren 02/15/201% Regular 0.00 200.00 54938
404295 WELLS ONE COMMERCIAL CARD 02/15/2019 Bank Draft 0.00 11,317.17 DFTO0C00113
Bank Code AP Bank Summary
Paysble Payment

Payment Type Count Count Discount Paymant

Regular Checks 196 128 0.00 1,201,987.13

Manual Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00

Voided Checks D 0 0.00 Q.00

Bank Drafts 19 1 0.00 11,317.17

EFT's 1 1 0.00 £,000.00

' 216 130 " 000  1,219,304.30

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissners:

Chairman Commissioner Commissioner

Comptroller

Treasurer



Check Register Packet: APPKT00439-2018-02-15 AP Payments cw

Fund Summary

Fund Name Period Amount
999 Pooled Cash Account 2/2019 1,219,304.30
1,219,304.30



Payroll Check Register

Report Summary
Pay Period: 2/4/2019-2/17/2019

Packet: PRPKT00209 - 2019-02-22 Payrol! cw
Payroll Set: Storey County - 01

Type . Count Amount
Regular Checks 2 2,141.22
Manual Checks 0 0.00
Reversals 0 0.00
Voided Checks 0 0.00
Direct Deposits 135 216,333.67
Total 137 218,474.89

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissners:

Chairman Commissioner Commissioner

Comptroller

Treasurer



Payroll Check Register

Report Summary
Pay Period: 2/4/2019-2/17/2019

Packet: PRPKT00212 - 2019-2-22 FIRE jm/tp
Payroll Set: Storey County - 01

Type Count Amount
Regular Checks 0 0.00
Manual Checks 0 0.00
Reversals 0 0.00
Voided Checks 0 0.00
Direct Deposits 32 86,492.73
Total 32 86,492.73

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissners:

Chairman Commissioner Commissioner

Comptroller

Treasurer



Vendor Number Vandor Name

Bank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank

405424 Optum Bank, Member FDIC

404300 INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE

404300 INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE
Paymant Type
Regular Checks
Manual Checks
Voided Checks
Bank Drafts
EFT's

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissners:

Paymant Date Paymeant Type

02/22/2019 Bank Draft

02/22/2019 Bank Draft

02/22/2019 Bank Draft

Bank Code AP Bank Summary

Payable Payment
Count Count Discount
0 0 0.00
0 0 0.00
0 0 0.00
3 3 0.00
0 o] 0.00
'3 3 0.00

Check Register

Packet: APPKT00444 - PRPKT00212 - 2019-2-22 FIRE jm/tp

Discount Amount

Payment
0.00

0.00

0.00
18,321.20
0.00

118,321.20

0.00
0.00
0.00

By Check Number

Payment Amount Mumber

2,137.50 DFT0000115
3,061.66 DFTDOOD116
13,122.04 DFTO000117

Chairman

Commissioner

Comptroller

Treasurer

Commissioner



egister

Fund

Name
Pooled Cash Account

Fund Summary

Period
2/2019

Packet: APPKTO0444-PRPKTO0212 - 2019-2-22 FIRE jm/tp

Amount
18,321.20
18,321.20



Payroll Check Register
Report Summary

Pay Period: 2/18/2019-3/3/2019

Packet: PRPKT00223 - 2019-03-08 Payroil cw
Payroll Set: Storey County - 01

Type Count Amount
Regular Checks 1 859.48
Manual Checks 0 0.00
Reversals 1} 0.00
Voided Checks 0 0.00
Direct Deposits 162 326,111.54
Total 163 326,871.02

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissners:

Chairman Commissioner Commissioner

Comptroller

Treasurer



Payroll Check Register

Report Summary
Pay Period: 2/18/2019-3/3/2019

Packet: PRPKT00228 - 2018-3-8 long
Payroll Set: Storey County - 01

Type Count Amount
Regular Checks 0 0.00
Manual Checks 0 0.00
Reversals 0 0.00
Voided Checks 0 0.00
Direct Deposits 7 2,258.27
Totai 7 2,258.27




Check Register

Packet: APPKT00487 - 2019-03-08 PR Payments cw

By Check Number

Vendor Number Vendor Nama Paymaent Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
Bank Coda: AP Bank-AP 8ank

300007 USAA 529 College Savings Plans {03/08/2019 EFT 0.00 50.00 10013
300003 AFLAC 03/08/2019 Regular 0.00 1,057.17 95068
300008 AFSCME Union 03/08/2019 Regular 0.00 60805 95069
300001 Colonial Life & Accident 03/08/2019 Regular 0.00 111.69 95070
404704 DVM INSURANCE AGENCY 03/08/2019 Regular 0.00 177.24 95071
405264 FIDELITY SEC LIFE INS CO 03/08/2019 Regular 0.00 1,44323 95072
404366 HOMETOWN HEALTH 03/08/2019 Regular 0.00 112,187.13 95073
405263 KANSAS CITY LIFE INS CO 03/08/2019 Regular 0.00 755.46 95074
300011 Nevada State Treasurer 03/08/2019 Regular 0.00 4.00 95075
103233 PUBLIC EMPLY RETIREMENT SYSTEM 03/08/2019 Regular 0.00 46.66 95076
102441 ST CO SHERIFF 03/08/2019 Regular 0.00 692.91 95077
300010 State Coliection & Disbursement Un 03/08/2019 Regular 0.00 197.70 95078
300006 Storey Co Fire Fighters Assoc 03/08/2019 Regular 0.00 1,200.00 95079
405076 UMNITEDHEALTHCARE INS €O 03/08/2019 Regular .00 7,895.67 95080
404639 VOYA RETIREMENT INS 03/08/2019 Regular 0.00 791150 95081
300005 Washington Naticnal Ins 03/08/2019 Regular 0.00 521.02 55082
300002 Western Insurance Speciaities 03/08/2019 Regular 0.00 363.34 95083

Bank Code AP Bank Summary

Payable Payment

Payment Type Count Count Discount Payment
Regular Checks 31 16 0.00 135,172.77
Manual Checks 0 a 0.00 0.00
Voided Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00
Bank Drafts v} 0 0.00 0.00
EFTs 1 1 0.00 50.00

32 17 0.00 135,222.77

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissners:

Chairman Commissioner Commissioner

Comptroller

Treasurer



Check Register Packet: APPKTO0487-2019-03-08 PR Payments cw

Fund Summary

Fund Name Period Amount
999 Pooled Cash Account 3/2019 ) 135,222.77
135,222.77



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: March 19, 2019 Estimate of time required: 0-5 mins

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: For Possible Action — Approval — Assessor’s Recommended Corrections to Unsecured
2017-18 Tax Roll for Overassessment

2. Recommended motion: Approval
3. Prepared by: Tobi Whitten
Department: Assessor’s Office Telephone: 847-0961
4. Staff summary: Desert Radiologists (DC 000007) was assessed an estimate per NRS 361.265
on the 2017-18 Unsecured Tax Roll. Our office has since received information that the
assets were reported by the lessor on a separate account and billed accordingly. The 2017-

18 unsecured taxes should be recalculated based on the information provided. No refund is
required at this time as payment on the 2017-18 billed estimate was never made.

5. Supporting materials: Please see attached letter with adjusted assessed value.

6. Fiscal impact: Unknown

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Assessor’s Office

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
(1 Approved
[1] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e p—
et bd

Agenda Item No. LO 17t



STOREY COUNTY COURTHOUSE

26 South 8 Street

P.O. Box 494

STOREY COUNTY ASSESSOR Virginla Oty, NV 89440

(775) 847-0961 Phone
(775) 847-0904 Fax
Assessor@storeyCounty.org

March 11, 2019
Memo to: Storey County Commissioners
Re: DC 000007, Desert Radiologists

The above referenced account was processed and billed Unsecured taxes for the 2017-18 tax year
based on an estimate of value assessed in accordance with NRS 361.265. Our office has since
received information from a Desert Radiologists representative that the assets on which the
estimate was based had been reported on a different account by the lessor (CM 001744), the
lessee being listed under a corporation name that was not immediately familiar to the appraiser
as associated with Desert Radiologists. The corrected amounts are as follows:

Original Revised
Acquisition Cost 500,000 -
Assessed Value 175,000 -
Unsecured Taxes| $ 6,056.23
Penalty/Interest| 5  605.62
Total Amount Due| $ 6,661.85

W ||
1

Pursuant to NRS 361.765, please approve this correction, and advise the Treasurer and/or
Assessor to delete the estimate-based 2017-18 bill for account # DC 000007. No refund is
required as payment on this account has not been made.

Thank You,
Tobi Whitten
Storey County Assessor’s Office

Storey County K an Equal Opportunity Provider



2017-18 Account # DC 000007 Owner DESERT RADIOLOGISTS PPO100CE

.3934P@PPF...;‘T.;.9f i (F2=2019-20 Fé6=Position to)
Category (*DL=Delete) " """ ' """} LST Description '~ '~~~ / Adl Abate%
§§g SERVERS- COMP EQUIPMENT Y05 **+*SRRVER EQUTPHENT ESTIMATE**¥

Asset# Loc

Year 2017 New X (X} Migrat _ (T/P) #-Mo 12 Deact __ Deact Date B

Cost 500,000 x Cst-Idx 1.000 x %-Good 100.0 x .35 = Assd val 175,000

Nosers Cepopred py Lessol - See () 1744

This year is an Archive Year Bottom
Totals: Cost 500,000 Assd Value 175,000 New Value 175,000
Fl0=0ther Func Fl2=Cancel Fl3=Acct Info Fl5aImprovements Fl6=Misc Notes
Fl7=Factoring History F20=Tax Years F23sExemptions Page Fwd/Back



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 03-19-19 Estimate of time required: 0- 5
Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1, Title; Business License First Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion: None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda} [ move to
approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request),

* 3. Prepared by: Sarah Dillon

Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff symmary; First readings of submitted business license applications are normally

approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioners’ meeting for approval.

S. Supporting materigls: See attached Agenda Letter
6. Fiscgl i

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:

District Attorney
8. Reviewed by
X t‘-l Department Name:
P

__ _Cou afm)er Other agency review:
9. Board action:

(] Approved (1 Approved with Modifications

(] Denied [1 Continued

Agenda Item No,

oL




Storey County Community Bebelopment
Business o Litenging

P O Box 526 - Virginia City NV 88440 « (775) 847-0966 + Fax (775) 847-0935 *mfield@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office March 11, 2019

Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Fr: Sarah Dillon
Please add the following item(s) to the March 19, 2019 COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:

OROZErANT-EOEATARS

SPECIALIZED SAFETY SERVICES — Consulting / 5000 Reggie Road ~ Reno, NV

THORNTON TOMASETT]I, INC. - Consulting / 650 California Street Ste 1400 ~ San Francisco, CA
GREAT BASIN SOLAR, LL.C — Contractor / 50 Butte Place ~ Reno, NV

MAJOR D’S CLEANING - Home Business/ 1820 Harte Road~ Virginia City Highlands, Reno NV
SAPHIRA EDUCATION ASSOCIATES, LLC Home Business/ 26800 Riverview Road, VCH, Reno NV
PEERLESS CONSTRUCTION, LTD- Contractor / 1475 Old Hot Spring Drive~ Carson City, NV
MELODY HOOVER PHOTOGRAPHY - General / 633 Rock Island Drive ~ Dayton, NV

WILD WEST BURGERS - General/ PO Box 117 ~ Nixon, NV 89424

NUWAVE INTERNATIONAL — Construction / 1875 Coronado Ave ~ Signal Hill, CA

RELIABLE MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS, LLC - General/ 555 Milan Way ~ Reno, NV
MISBEEHAVEN FARM, LLC - Home Business/ 144 Elizabeth Lane ~ Dayton, NV

ODELL’S BIG OKIE TACO (dba) — General/ 877 Scott Dr ~ Fernley, NV

. FLIPPIN’S TRENCHING, INC — Contractor/ 2645 Marion Drive ~ Las Vegas, NV

1-888-4-ABATEMENT, INC — Contractor/ 3158 Luyung Drive ~ Rancho Cordova, CA
FIREHOUSE CREAMERY - General/ 171 South C Street~ VC, NV
NNE CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 4990 Victory Blvd. ~Elko, NV

. CJ GUELDNER - Home Business/ 720 Sutro Springs Road ~ Dayton, NV

E¢: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office

Commissioners’ Office Comptroller’s Office




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: March 19, 2019 Estimate of time required: 3+ Hours

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X ] Public hearing required | ]

1. Title: DISCUSSION ONLY/NO POSSIBLE ACTION (Public Comment Allowed): County
Commissioner Interviews with the top 3 applicants for the position of County Manager. Those
applicants, in order of appearance are Ron Knecht, Austin Osborne and Merena Works. Each
applicant will be allotted approximately 60 minutes under the following format;

Chairman Opening Remarks (5 Minutes)

Candidate Self Introduction and Opening Remarks (5 Minutes)

1 Question from each Commissioner w/ Follow-up Questions from them allowed*

(45 Minutes)

Closing Statement by the Candidate (5 Minutes)
(* 5 Minutes per question is anticipated in a “round robin” style allowing for a total of 9 questions,
not including follow-up questions)
Candidates Osbormne and Works have consented to excuse themselves from the meeting while
candidates scheduled ahead of them are interviewed. After completion of an interview, that
candidate may choose to stay for the remainder of the meeting.
Public Comment will be allowed under the customary 3 minute guideline. Additional, comments
made in the form of a question will most likely not be answered. We encourage the Public to
attend the previously announced candidate meet-and-greet the evening before which is currently
scheduled to begin at 6:00 pm at the Bucket of Blood to get any specific questions answered by
any or all candidates.

2. Recommended motion: N/A
3. Prepared by: Pat Whitten
Department: Commissioners Telephone: 847-0968
4. Staff summary: The process is fully outlined in the above referenced agenda language. After

interviews are conducted, the next item on the agenda potentially provides for Board
action,

5. Supporting materials: - Process Summary from Linda Ritter Consulting
- Redacted Application Packets for each candidate
- Background Investigation Summary
- Unsolicited Correspondence received after panel interviews



6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: As budgeted Comptroller

7. Legal review required: No

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:

- Munty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—r—
[ S——

.
Agenda Item No. C/



-

Linda Ritter Consulting

775.720.2982  |in PinyonNew. m 4250 Hobart Road Carson City, NV. 89703

March 13, 2019

To: Storey County Board of County Commissioners

From: Linda Ritter
Linda Ritter Consulting

Re:  March 19,2019 Interview and possible selection of a new County Manager

Atyour March 19, 2019 regular meeting, you will be presented with 3 finalists for the
position of Storey County Manager - Ron Knecht, Austin Osborne and Marena Works.

The position announcement was posted on January 8, 2019 and was viewed over 230
times. The position announcement was also sent to every county, as well as to rural
cities in Nevada. As of February 1, 2019, we received a total of 20 applications and
expressions of interest. After reviewing the applications against the education and
experience requirements set forth in the position announcement, 8 applicants were
chosen for telephone interview. We received two more applications after these
interviews were completed, however, neither of those applicants possessed the
minimum experience requirements. Of the 8 interviewed by phone, 7 were selected
for interview with citizen and staff interview panels. Prior to the interviews, 3
candidates withdrew their names from consideration - one because of a promotion,
one because the Storey County residency requirement presented a hardship due to
prior commitments and one because the salary was not sufficient. The final 4
candidates were interviewed by the panels on February 26, 2019. The top two
candidates chosen by the panels were as follows:

Citizens Panel: Austin Osborne
Ron Knecht
Staff Panel: Austin Osborne

Marena Works



Prior to the panel interviews, the applicants prior employment and education were
verified by a third party. Social Security number, addresses, personal / professional
references and credit history has been checked for the 3 finalists. A copy of that
report, with personal information redacted, is attached to this memo for your review.
Other written references have been submitted directly the County Manager and will
be provided prior to the interviews.

At the interviews, you will have the opportunity to ask the candidates 3 guestions
each. Itisimportant that each candidate is asked the same question. All
Commissioners are welcome to ask follow-up questions, however, the question
should be a follow-up to the answer given by the candidate. A follow-up question
should not vary widely from the subject of the original question.

After the interviews, you will be given the opportunity to select one of these finalists
as the successful candidate, subject to passing a criminal background investigation
and successfully negotiating a salary. If the Board decides that none of these
candidates meet with your approval, you may direct staff to repeat the recruitment
process.



STOREY COUNTY

County Manager

EMPLOYMENT APPLICATION
An Equal Opportunity Employer

If you tireve yvou regunre an uccommodation during the sciccno process, please contct as o ke

appropriate arrangemenis

Name R_Q_A(A_L_D_ o _1;3_

Address

civ CARsoN CEeTYy.
Tetephone(s)  Hom QUGN - QU

FEmail address:

Position Applied for:

RGER.
How did you hew about this position?
O Other (explam)

[t oftered employment, when cin you ac available to begin?
O Part-Time

What type of employment will you aceept? B Full-Tine

Wilt you be avarlable for shift work?

Wil you be avaitable 1o work weekends andfor hobdays iWneeessaey! .
Have you been given a job deserption ar had the requirements of the joh explomed te vou?
Do you understand the job requirements? ..

Can you pertorin the requirements of this job vath ar without reasonable secommodation”

To qualhty fr employment, applicants must be ai least 18 years of age t]llt,\\ atherwise speciticd i the
1ob aneuncenent It offered employiment. can you furmish prawt af dee?

After an offer of employment, can vou submit veritication o your hgtl nght o work m the Uinted

States? T SRS A
,,(Aimy_.::) L

Listother numes, (Fany, vou have used.

0O Advertisement O Walk-In ﬂRLiuml (by who?y YAM( DUt

ILMMEDLATELY

O Temporary

(/\JA) M yes ONo

®ves OV
X ves OxNo

. NYC.\ O Nao
. R Ye ONo

HYL‘,\ C] No

. B Yes ONo

Date 2%. T Mt.u.\mngL?
State /\/l/ Llp(ode ‘,{/7(_9_-7;

Work ()

EDUCATION RECORD

Did you graduate from high school a1 receive o GED ceimticare?

MAvyes ONa

T

o, Degrev, or
(umrlnalu

Hours
. Larned

‘ Dip!
Location

_Suiool Name *

Husmgw"l echnig; 1If\’m1n?mal

l nl u[inwn\lli \Uuduuuduak]

B

| B?‘r JLk5

r&ﬁNO@D Y. smyeenCA_ -~ [ MS _éﬂm;,QMrmbe
STOUR TN Applican: N .%N KA}EMT

WY B,
PO By [ Ts

R Uy NN sidae

Major Licld of Study

cSMFKQAmcb e T Law Er gus, co

Cd



STOREY COUNTY

LICENSES (Optiona!, unles- required for the position for which you are now applving.s

st current licenses, certitications, or registeations cequired for the position tor which youdre appiyving. Indicate tvpes state
license numbers, and SXplration dates.

Troressrovar Mecomurear. Exeznesg - Smre or CA
e# . M2440Y  Exprecs OL/20/20 Bur wns pr renEL0:D)

Answer only if position requires,

Do you possess a valid driver's license? .

,E'ch 00 No

s, Jieense expines OF, 02’ 202 R lass C/ _ Restrictions (if uny) 0\/0(\}&)

For positions that require typing: Peertify that can type ata speed of WPM.
tn addinen to English, list any other language ahilities vou POSEESS,
Verbal fluency in _
Written Nuency in

List anv special skills you possess andeor eqiipment or oftice niwchines YOu cin uperate

Expergr Wrahess (A150 Tives) v EBeawonses, Favance, Teepnircon,
e o Per oy L ReGuamory Mamzes

OTHER INFORMATION

: ’ . .
Have you ever heen disciplined 1n oir entplovment related to waork place violence? ... .. [OYos No
I plo) F

If yos, please explain,

Do sou pesently use illegal Jdrugs?. L T R—i L 1,

Have you ever been employed by Storey County? o e, O Yes BNO

[ yes, piease provide the fatiowing mtormation:

Department Posteon Tile
Dutes of Fmployment o N Reason lor Sepatation ) )
Are vourelated o anyone who currently emmloyed hy Storey Couny ? Cee . OYe HNo
I yes, please provida the tollowing intogmation

Related person’s nane o o ) Department

Retatenshep

Storey Canney Mg pd Appacar: Noe %N K[\rﬂ\ H T—"—

PO T
WL ey N s 4an



STOREY COUNTY

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY

Provide information regarding all paid, military, and volunteer work and how 1t may be related to the position for which you
are applying. Describe your most racent posttzon first; then list wther posivons m erder held, beginnmyg with the most recent
Use asepusate bleck Tor cach posion, even 1f with the same employer Use wdditional shegts if necessary, Do NOT use
references such as “See Résumé” in place ofcomplcung this section.

May we contact all employers listed? (Attach a list of an cxv..epuona with an cxplanauon )... M Yes O No

P ntoyer STATE o Mizvapsc_ Miion Cé’ '
Address C&MLM&LWT From (MwYr) ¢ To (MorYr) c?lg'gg,gc?

Ciy EFuli-Tine ml';_hrs wk) O Past-Timwe (--30 hrs'wk)

State LV_M Zip Code gﬁ' 70 ‘_ _ ___ Salary g
Supervisor's Name, Title PWLE GF V H_[‘LF &_7(‘&1,, Telcp?on_cm
[al{ll.d Duties SN Ree 2

1=F ﬁ:ﬁm L OFFLeer MeMeER € Auprr Poa
Menperz , NDOT Po Mgugfd, Smrm é &Vf.%m
Mgugég; Boarn oF %ﬁm Abporrons. pETALL hﬂ'&LHED

RBrason for [eaviing mmwlq
Fpleyer Smrg(‘f A/V _Sr_gr OF I{CZ}HER Lq) Position | SEMNT

Addiess W .@1_07’% MosYn) O © *7 To (Morvr) Q[ [2005

ey m_&&s_l{%m O3 Full-Tume (30 hrswk) 12?4‘1-1 e (-3 hrs/wk)
e ANV awews st

Supervisor’s Name; Title ____ Telephone 77$_
Related Duties Mmrah &Bd‘ rfv\‘ANfE C@M a/féﬂgs Eﬂcﬂ C‘HMFZ GF Eﬁ(_ H XYR‘)

MATor FACCLETEES & N VESVIENT Copr 7 YERRS | Niso, &f TR, s 78w p iy Com
M{ﬂfﬁou} D TLIUTI AL TRESTDEWNTTAL St u&wﬁm Lorts { SEE ATACHET

ﬂ fli " PETR
Reuwson tor Leaving MM 7
tvioves NEvapa [psar Uerry TTEES Com/N _rositon Econenrsr

awess 0] [asr CAGSN SaeesT temooyn €/2.00) Towro\.)J/Zo;l_
Lty ( :ﬂt?ﬁnﬂN C\A:'f:r_ o _ H[-‘ull-TimclJO‘Lh wk) L3 Part-Time (30 hrs/wky

Ntate Zip Cade _89 ZO’ e . Sular

Supervisor's Name/ Title WQE_ML _ Telephone h

Related Duties

SENZOR /FROvCIPAL ECONOMEST IN FULL RANGE OF FINANOTAL , ECONOMIT Q’(JLI-'C.Y
TECHMNECAL fMALYSTS | EsP. CostyoF OAPD , FUE. OPER;q‘fIers,fK

')_:J
RECOVERY, ReveENUE *ZEQMREH ENT CosT hl-c.om rQ),chETZ ~S¢cE "'ﬁ*LHEDm,\
Reason ior Leaving Wﬁﬂrf_ s f
¥ :E A m:xel ﬂl‘ BEEEI -QIHEFEE' !

Apploani \J.IHIC‘KOM m EW

Siorey &auns | LRI B
i‘1 1 Hon,
P NA

il



STOREY COUNTY

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY

Provide information regarding all paid, military, and volunteer work and how it may be related e the position far which you
are applying, Descrilie your most recent posttion Jiest, then List other positions m arder Leld, begmmug with tie most recent,
Use o separate bluck tor each position, even if with the same cployer. Lse additional sheets it necessary, Do NOT use
references such as “Sec Résume” in place ofcomp!cling this section.

May we contact all employers listed? (Attach a list of any exceptions with un explanation.}.... & Yes O No

bt EscnencC & Technzar WRRRGRIT g 00 5 Foarm o T
Adddress j‘ﬁﬁ,&&tm‘ cgmz L From (Moryry (O ] ‘fqa To (Mo/Yr) Qg Z_._C?(J[

tany (%Fé&ué:sl::?( r7 M rudl-Time 1_3_1_"![1 hesiwky O Part-Time (+ 30 hrs/wk)

State CA Zip Code Salury W‘MED LU/B“).WE—
Supervisor's Name/Title (NOM E) Telephone ()}

Reiated Dutics — )

Fute FUNCTIONS oF CED 7 A SHALL CONSULTING BUsipESS] AMSO,EXPE T
WITNESS . Co'«{suurv ZMJP TESTIFIED FOR fliL RANGE oF PARTLES A/
REQULATRY, UTILITY Or ERERGY MATIERS, INCLW RING RECUALIRS L5TME —SEE

Reason lor Leaving MQYEW My & .wm 57&5’(;9;‘ Tmum [,‘ﬂ'_-ifdf' 4 )/ I ;@7%
Eingloge SFEC:TZLL” E ¢ EUOPIIC'S, 7 E . Position Mm&-&gﬂp&?&f’i’

Address g o o From (Mo/Yry _ To(Mo/¥ny ]
Crty lwm&_ e A Full-Time [3(‘14' hisewke) O Part-Time (230 lirsfwk)
State *04 S Code 7 . Sulny Vﬁ&cﬁp

Supervisor’s Name/Title [NJQME_)_ ] o Tedepiwne ¢

Rclalcdl)mlc.\'ESSE”UM\’/ THE SANME A TEHOEE AT Emm }??@ t:’K[t:PT'_fva
VOMT FES XCEO, T pIv MERTATE A TRICE ARD SETIEMENT b tepy 15 o s
BETWEEN PR CeNTRAL OFEILE L SKTE 1L ITE. OFFICES TN SF, SD.CKL PEYORE
HERLING Ak WS . RESPONSIBLE [oR BUSINE S DivEt o MEnT, MGHT - - SEE
Reason tur Leaving Hf'ﬂﬂi'l E‘mﬁ L(_)_ET'HWN:EM? W&@ _ ) M(,fﬂ

pETAL
Emplover FEABARA @EaDEiS EARLH )mc:l’(:slli(m RTa T PAL. o
Address From (Mo“YT1) ]2 [‘]%a To (Mo Yy ]0/[7 8)3/
fiig PﬁLO A;_@ ,Eml-'runer.s(_z{_ heswk) O Pae-Time (30 hisiwk)
swe _CA oo o | sy fhezET
Supervisor's Name/Title WO“E) ) Felepbone ()

Reldated Duties ) . .
ESsENTIALY SAME A3 AT SPEL TRUM ECOROMITS, WHICH SPun/ oFF
FrROM (YED.

Rewson tor | eaving "E E,&_(JME VFA:}’ (SPEC_WL'LM CC’QMQ[‘LL(_S’ ,ELJC',

_,—")
S ot Y. R Applican Naime A[)/U UE‘:(?HT_M



STOREY COUNTY

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY

Provide information regarding all ped, mtitary, and volunteor work and how it m ay Do related o the pmn m tor which you
are applying Desenbe your most recent position fiest: then Lst ethel pasttions 1y arder it Peyinnng with the most recent
Ve aseparate block tar cach position, even it with the same empioyer. Use additioral shets if mmmy Do NOT pse
references such as “Sce Résumé” in place of completin this section.

May we contact all employers listed? (Attach a list of any exceptions with an explanation.).... J¥ Yes O No

Lasagni Hinployr C&-—‘B‘{ML—MW Shwowont ' oition \SE[_[]DA}SQ?ER T PAL-
Address 7 L Fiom (M Yy U/’(’ 7‘1 To Mo Y, ‘ M—FS

Cay \SME&M( | -SCO o _ﬂlutl Time (er lraiwk; O Part-Tevie o+ 30 hrk/wk)

State C.A Zip Code Sulury m)
Supervisor™s Name/ litle RA‘{(J&!}W aw 4Wr’ I(.Ic.phnm ()
Bl Flulizs DUTPES sMILAR oTHEse AT VY PUC v 200)- 201 3
rbwsmz, m—a?uc I Mﬂo WD SUBSTANTIN. S PERYLSORY, A HEN T
muub%v & ON Au- 4 DIVITTIoN) MWAGEMENT Cor's A
e 2 EVALUATING PROFIESS oML { SUFRIRT PERSONNEL -

Reason 1or Leaving T_JZ)-W MUJW W@Sé { ‘)ﬂ]a“ ‘,]Mdgtf
Limployer ggkm&z&wmr &q MC}MMM@ P fR) GNH\U-GW \-ﬁ

Aditress - hemiMoys QY AW T To e g 198 Ldﬂ'IUE
Uity Wn l i g ESF'&SAQroﬁ'ﬂ Full-Tome 1306 hrsiwk) B Purt-Tamie 30 hesfwky

Stile M Zap Code ) Salary VMD

Supervisor’s Name/Title (MME) . ~ Telephore (

Relued Duties SEMY A, wmmw AT %Fmrzumﬁ( T ?ﬁoFESEW
d;@ﬂ@m ENT nzam rm Pb)?

E‘:»S m CoM’'A) oN
CONTIMUED T ammrzwﬁ L Wl e

Reason for feaving EMMWAT—M>M . _5“

o CA Ewveray Comttrmrm  rowo Gores Sg Ao Tra, I%mum
Address e 01979 e v /79
iy S 4 KAHEUTU A Ll e GJ_;rhmle O Part-Trme 30 hrs/wk) %Eﬂ'
State A 'Z Zip Coue ) Sabiry “

Supervisor’s Name/Titte S#ME_ Em C&HM%I&UEEUWI""'” {
Relared Duties PRDF'E%_E?NAL—PC’(HES AR TO THC:e LATER 1{7-'(/}7[((‘/ BT Noy
Muctt RBOUT RATEMNGING, TNSTEXD , £14( «CGA‘) &:scwmc ﬂWﬂé rosvk

ECONMILS , PHAANIAL;  TE HNIC»Q_}M rre:a@;, B
TECH) ECONS POLICY MRS e c:masr, BN VR, S s 06 X
Reusan for Teaving 754 MFEZ T W&mﬁ {'mz M}_ﬁzmpurx’a ﬁ%ﬁ




STOREY COUNTY
Employor SIME_OE’M&EZ'!BEY I ‘ ' 70

Address From (Mo/Yr) 2. To (Mo/Yr)

City T‘]‘*( R Full-Time (30 hrs/wk) ,& Part-Time (-:30 hedrwk) (¢ Mdlv"ﬁt(s
\

State N Zip Code g‘l 70[ L o Salary

SupervisorsName/’Trtle 'P’:Qq?)j: oE mﬂpm 1/0‘ Telephone (ﬂf

Related Duties R il i

At NORMAL DUTIE S 0F A STATE HEGLSLATER ¢ DETERMINE THE PuBirc INEReEs raw
T™™e Fijel RANGE OF MKITELS THAT COME DFFeRE THE LES TS [ A TL(RE AND ACT TU _‘;Em

THAT INTEREST. MEMBER o Gwn&rmﬂzs, Commegre K Mmmm oM

Reavon for Leaving Tm EN_DED o B s i ot S - '2%
P&ﬂhﬂf

REFERENCES

Name MAR.K‘. A Ma_p_)_‘i ) R o Phone# |

Address C/_“Kb&ﬂ] (_m Jﬂ, V SRR __
Nanwe f-k_jLI_“&’fu_,ﬁ (\.&M) HMM __ Phene#

Address V._RQ_WLA C‘ET( N gl“ O 'LBO,“ ,/,2.
Nime _J A_ﬂﬁ__g (Jﬁmnt Yt% e Phoned o

Address 7’_&@”5&&/4.},[_5 o e e o RS

Please stale below any other mfermation that would be helptul in determining your qualificalions for this position. You may

inelude segmificant accomplishments, previous carecr ghlights, or any other relevant information that i 15 nat requested in this
employment application,

S EE ATTACHEY ¢ CETIAGS OF » lkorgs.smmag ﬁm&m&s

B e s wmn o an %OMDQS&&WUAKP;L_.._ o
;.

RSOMAL
_ ﬁm k)T'EFTv? Fxpmm;

£ P YAIE
T \ UBLLE( NTIOWSS

jﬁjm‘ﬂ" .;:,]gy’ CEZ&(ZIHE
. HLKE,&A@QMQ

Storey Coants HEENTE Applicant Nume R_ }K =CH |
P(}WH..\ Iij( e OAI Nt(ﬂ;

Vo Uy, NV s



STOREY COUNTY
Faloye ’Daw& %ﬂmfmtﬂﬁ X,CEWMW > Economr =1

Addre; From iMory a& [?KQ FatMe Y £y ICIK’((

Uity mbm m wl-Time i3 i irsavwk) 00 far-Tune {30 hrv’\vk
St (:A_ Zin Code 5![!/*
Supervisor's Name. Title &ZL.

Related Ull[ltsm o T%E MthZ A__r— b"D gu-'-' Nb H k(EMW Laﬂb
EXPER T wm WPRK £ %Fmsramt_ CONALTANT: NuM ERotis oI (73,
CLESTS, CTABLY MpEL &, A COLNERATION R, LU ANT BEFORECPHC C e,

- Mogo;.’ M ELONOIS SHE®, ISCLUBING ME. « WERE Hiprp Pt

REFERENCES

Ninue J_:m LOHEELCK Phoned m
Addiess G&K}WR% A/],/

Vi (/ﬂRSON (l::ﬂ/ s
v LYW Hemrrex T~
v GARDNER I E NV

Please state below any aher lllrnllnlll a1 that would e belpfud w dete rmining som qualifications f lhl\; osition, You may

einde SamBeant aoeonplisinents, mey s vareer gl uhte o any ntl\u reicvunbinzannation that |

nolrcaussted in s
cmployment apoitcation

IA \povhig \.mu%” KA}E("]{]"



STOREY COUNTY

Fmploysr UWEW O E‘ a“d’_rb Puosition C‘% gx&&[(’ é’mm
Address Frion (Mo, Yr) M/Jqé Z To(Muy) O 1(177

o ﬁi&’\/&mwv ﬂl ull-Time (3 lJ_}_hls/wk) M Part-Time - 30 hrsAwk)

State Salary M‘&IOLLS

Supervisor’s Name/Title _Telephone ()

Related Dutres ENERGY Rs EMC@JJ\J I‘) 77, Fuse TIME; &mgm@ngp Srur
ﬁ'fsenﬂ‘)f A?;-O(“ Qj}ﬂ‘f F"{‘Jgz 72/%;;5” A>§f5mﬂ)r)ECDU 1970-T1 L. )w(z:m,
G‘R.L RETRIIRHYT [ e, Ivm{.. PT; "17’

200

AR P

REFERF.NCES

Name Phomned

\ddross

Nanmne

Address

Nare Phones

Adidress

Please state helow any other mformation that wouhi he nelpfyl
include significant aceo mplishnents L revious career g
emplovment application

Emviomg: Corver (fremis T “Voscrrouw: AseT Crry ENern-£er

From 0671972 T2 0571973

Lax. Upsva Nl C30rt sl fin) /H%Tﬂt(é- oHh
o L Sstfey LARI'
apw/ﬁzg Jonni Goaarl ) M vz e Thmet 1o

&"‘“@J ‘ TIrEs - wf‘@r—tb ON BAXEWAYs | JoRMA SANTTAR Y
| — SELLER SNSYZMS, ENEGy (SoNSERYAT IO,

Peurron CONVPOL., wzk@ﬁ’oumé LIRITY
NS | STREETS K rRepra ; PLANMIALS, ZON Ve

X‘mvrm& MATERS | ENC mr FERET, THEN FT’

in deternimi; T your gaaliications tor this pusition Y (RIS EIRS
ghiights, ar any other reley -t Intormabon that s nor requested in this




STOREY COUNTY

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Please READ ALL of the following statements and INITIAL EACH of the [mes 1o indicate you have read and understand
each of Lhe statements. It you have dny questions, contact Storey County Human Resources Department al (775 82 7-N0RK,

K

Allatters of emplovment and all mtornxnon regarding compensation and other ferins and canditions ar
mployment wilf be made 10 writig Verbal statements may not be reticd upon

This application 1s the property of Storey County and will become part of iy personnel (ile it 1 an hired.

1 authorize Storey County to conlact anv employer or individual that [ have listed on my employment application
and/or résume or mentoned dueing job interviews o vbtain from them any relevant informahion regarding iny
previous emgrlovment, nuliary service, criminal history. characteristics or traits necessary for job performance, or
ether relevant quabitications tor employment andior continued ctnployment with Storey County. In addiion, [
authorize Sterey County to conduct a background search which includes erimimal listory and military history. In
addition, 1f the position for which | am applying requres driving & vehicle, I authoreze Storey County o conduct o
Department ot Motar Velucles (DMV) search. {f the position for which T am applying involves contact with nunors
or with any persons having diminished capacity o care for themselves, a search off goverrment sex offender
registries may be conducted | further authorize Storcy County 1o contact any matitution and/or frcensing authorine
to verify my possession of education, licenses. and/or certificates which may quuithiy ine for employment,

I exchange for Storey County consideration of my employnent application, andsor any comtinued employment
with Storey County, | authonize anyene posscssing information to furmsh it Lo Storey County upon reguest, and [
release the orgamzations and all individuals providing the information or acquiring the 1 formation, including
Storey County. from all claums, liablity, and damages whatsoever claimed to be related 1o furnashing, ubraming, or
using said information. This eelease applies 1, but is not limited o, claims for defanation, libel shander. infliction
ot emotional distress, and miterterence with current oy nrospective economic relations.,

I further understand this consent will apply dunng the entire course of my anployment with Storey County <hould
I abtain such eanployment. T understand and agree this consent shall rermin 1 affect tndefinitely

I hereby certify that all statciments made i this application are rue. | understand that any false statenient of
material facts herem may cause torfeiture on my part of all rights w any employment with Storey County. |
understand that any misrepresentation, talsification, or matenal onussion of information may result in my filure o
receive an olfer. onif 1 have been lored, in my disimissal from employment regardless of Tength of empioyment. |
understand that neither this document nor any offer of empivyment from Starcy County constitutes an emplovinens
contract unless a speaific comract document w that effect s exceuted. | agree to undergo any job-relted physical
cxamimation and drug screcting upou conditional offer of cmployment. | tarther understand and agree that this
paragraph applics to any information suppiied by mc ata Later date a- purt of this application

Addinenally, my signature below certifics that the mrormation pravided is true and vorreet 1 the best ot my knowledge.

Signature of Applicant

_)Lﬁ@- \j\,}\ﬁlﬁ_c,m ~ Date 9_\(()?7@”%}\,}?\, 2,.0 I[{

NOTE: This Page MUST have original imitials and signature.
Photocopy ar typed versions not aceeptable.

7 o
Sew ety Pigsige Anpheant Nane KOU M'Ee},_i

Py boes [T

Rt NG Nl



NEVADA CONTROLLER

RoNx Kxecnr, MS, JD & PE

Ron Knecht, an economist, financial and policy analyst, Pro-
fessional Mechanical Engineer (registered in California) and
law-schood graduate, became Controller on January 5. 2015,
As Controller, he also serves on Nevada's Board of Finance,
Lxecutive Audit Committee and Department of Transpornta-
tion Board of Directors.

Ron, his Deputy and team cut Controller’s office spending
1 3% from the levels passed by the Legislature and Gover-
nor based on his predecessor’s request. While returning over
$1-million to the state treasury, they made innovations and
he wrote most of Nevada's tirst three Controller’s Annual
Reports (CARs), which won awards.

He inherited a troubled debt collection IT development proj-
ect based on a flawed contract. Ron and the team worked
tirelessly with the developer and others to twice renegotiate
the contract and successfully turn around the project. In the
first yedr using the new system, they increased debi collec-
tion revenues 3.5 times. Ron is also co-leading the business
process re-enginecring for all state agencies and develop-
ment of a huge all-functions enterprise resource manage-
ment 1T system (SMARI21) to fully integrate the agencies”
I'f' systems by 2022,

Ron wrote the detailed analysis showing why all of the new
CAR (a/k/a Popular Annual Financial Report, or PAFR)
should be included in Nevada's Comprehensive Annual Fi-
nancial Report (CAFR), as it now is. His Chief CAFR Ac-
countant required Nevada state and local agencies to reform
their reporting of pension-related information to fully con-
fonm to Government Accounting Standards Board require-
ments.

Ile led a leam that developed an alternative state budget in
20135 that would have obviated a tax increase. Since the Leg-
islature passed and the Governor signed Nevada’s largest
tax increase cver, he has led efforts o repeal the worst part
of the increase, the Commerce Tax. He has also led efTorts
to reform the forecasting of returns on state pension invest-
ments and expected employee counts to avoid a ¢risis duc 1o
underfunding.

Betore becoming Controller. Ron divided 44 working years
between public service and entreprencurial small business,
all in managerial/executive and scnior professional posi-
tions. He's been a founder, executive or director for 12 firms,
charttics, community-service and public-interest groups.

In previous jobs, he testified extensively as an expert witness
on a number of subjects. In 2012-14, 1986-2001 and 1976-
78, he was a consullant, expert witness and business exce-
utive. In 2001-12, he was a senior ¢cconomist at Nevada's
Public Utilities Commission. He held principal economics.
finance, policy and technology positions in 1978-86 at Cali-
fornia’s Energy and Public Utilities Commissions. and he
also served in management roles.

In 2009-13 he co-taught about ten two-day seminars for SNI.
Financial on utility finance, cost of capital, and economic
and policy issues for regulators, professionals. managers and
securitics analysts. In 1973-77, he was a Research Associ-
ate and Research Engineer at the University of Illinois. In
1972-73 he was Assistant City Engineer in Urbana, lllinois,
Nowadays he regularly speaks at institutional investor con-
terences.

Ron was elected to the Board of Regents of the Nevada Sys-
tem of Higher Education in 2006 and re-elected in 2012, For
two years each, he chaired the Budget & Finance and Au-
dit Commitiees: for seven years he was very active on the
Investment & Major Projects Committee, which oversees
$1-billion of endowment and operating funds. He served on
four other committees and on institutional presidential se-
lection and performance-review committees, chairing two of
thein. Ron was elected to the Nevada Assembly for 2002-04
from Carson City,

With some scholarship support. he worked his way through
undergraduate and early graduvate studies at the University
of llinois (BA. Liberal Arts & Sciences: mathematics ma-

Jor; physics & chemisty minor; 1971} Spending most of

his working career in San Francisco and Silicon Valley. he
paid his way at Stanford University (MS, Engineering Eco-
nomic Systems; 1989) and the University of San Francisco
(103; 1995) while working full time, He's been a columnist
for print and on-tine papers and has taught part-time at two
collepes.

The most important things in Ron’s life are his wife Kathy.
their teenage daughter Karyn, and their parents and families,
Raised in a small town in the Midwest. he was always ac-
tive in a wide range of athletics and outdoor activities - a
competitive distance runner in high school and college. He
enjoys bhallet, modern dance, symphony. opera, rock & roll,
country & western, theater and film. and he collects baseball
cards and pursucs other hobbies.

Q To see additioned information, visie: comtroller nv gov



Ron Knecht, MS, JD & PE(CA) — Bio Details

Professional, Managerial and Business Experience and Elected Office

Nevada State Controller and, as Controller. a member of Nevada’s: Board of Finance;
Board of Directors of Nevada Department of Transportation; and Executive Branch
Audit Committee — elected in 2014 to 2015-19 term

Member, National Association of State Comptrollers (NASC) and National
Association of State Auditors, Comptrollers and Treasurers (NASACT), 2015-present
Member of State Financial Ofticers Foundation, 2016-present; nominated for SFOF’s
Outstanding State Financial Officer award, 2018

Consultant in economic, financial, technical and policy analysis (CC, NV), 2012-14
Economist / Senior Economist, Resource and Market Analysis Division, Public
Utilities Commission of Nevada, 2001-12

Regent, District 9, Nevada System of Higher Education, elected to two terms and
served 2007-15; twice Chairman, Business & Finance and Audit Committees; served
on Investment & Major Projects, Health Sciences System, Research & Economic
Development, and Cultural Diversity & Security committees and various Presidential
search and performance review committees, chairing two

Assemblyman, District 40, Nevada Assembly (Carson and Washoe Cities), 2002-04;
Commerce and Labor, Government Affairs. and Transportation Committees
President, Economic & Technical Analysis Group (SF and Los Altos CA), 1990-2001
Board of Directors, Minimax Research Corporation (Campbell CA), 1988-94
Vice-President, Spectrum Economics, Inc. (Palo Alto & Mountain View CA), 1988-90
Principal, QED Research, Inc. (Palo Alto CA), 1986-88

Sentor Economist, Dames & Moore, Engineers & Consultants (San Fran. CA). 1986
Secction Supervisor, principal analyst (economics, finance, technical analysis and
policy) and member of all division management committees, California Public
Utilities Commission (San Francisco CA), 1979-86

Cofounder, Chairman, CEQ & CFO, The Rainbow Connection, Inc. Restaurant
{Springfield IL), 1979-83

Commissioner's Senior Advisor and then principal analyst (economics, technical
analysis and policy), California Energy Commission (Sacramento CA), 1978-79
Partner, Bertschi & Knecht Engineers & Consultants (IL and CA), 1976-86

Energy Research Engineer (1974-77); Center for Advanced Study Research Associate
(1973-74); Research Assistant (Economics, 1970-71; Social Work, 1971-72); Grader
& Consultant (Computer Science, 1969-71); Daily Illini Reporter (1971-72) and
Columnist (1973-75); Assistant to Dean of Student Services (1970-71); Student Senate
Oftice Manager (1968-69); hourly student non-professional employment, 1967-71 -
all at University of lllinois, Urbana-Champaign

Assistant City Engineer, City of Urbana IL, 1972-73

Education, Teaching and Professional Registration

University of San Francisco Law School, 1995: Juris Doctor

Stanford University, 1989: M.S., Engineering-Economic Systems

University of {llinois at Urbana-Champaign, 1971: B.A., Liberal Arts & Sciences
(major in Mathematics; minor in Physics & Chemistry): completed additional course
work in economics and engincering, plus Civil Engineering masters degree project
(American Nuclear Society award winner) in Power Generating Economics, 1977



Knecht Resume Detail
Page 2

Economics Instructor (Micro- and Macro-Economic Analysis), Western Nevada
Community College, Carson City, NV, 2003-06

Instructor, Regulatory & Legal Aspects of Telecommunications, for graduate students,
Golden Gate University, Sacramento CA, 1991

Registered Professional Mechanical Engineer, State of California, since 1986

Areas of Experience, Publication and Expert Testimony (~150 times; 25 jurisdictions)

Regulation: Electric; Natural Gas; Nuclear Power; Coal; Communications; Water,
Waste-water and Sewers; Insurance; Transportation; Environmental; Land Use;
Finance and Securities; Discount Rates for Public Policy and Business

Utilities: Ratemaking (all aspects); Finance; Strategic and Resource Planning and
Forecasting; Operations and Modeling; Operating and Facilities Certificates

Business Analysis and Management: Planning, Strategy, Finance, Valuations, Cost of
Capital, Market Power, and Operations

Regulatory and Industrial Change: Incentive-based Regulation; Industry De- and Re-
regulation and Restructuring; Public versus Private Provision of Services

Energy: Electricity, Natural Gas, Nuclear Power, Coal, Qil, Cogeneration,
Conservation, Renewables, Distribution Companies, Transmission and Independent
System Operators, Transportation and [ndustrial Use

Economics and Policy: Micro- and Macro-economic Analysis; Taxation, Budgeting
and Public Finance; Resources and Pollution; Transportation; Public Safety; Health
Care; Human and Social Services; Education

[.aw & Economics: Anti-trust; Due Diligence; Mergers and Acquisitions; Bankruptcy
Workouts; Litigation Settlement; Alternative Dispute Resolution; Diversification
Engineering Economics: Systems Analysis/Control; Optimization; Decision &
Probabilistic Analysis, especially as applied to Business and Public Policy

Other: Mechanical and Civil Engineering; Statistics; Program and Project
Management; Staff Supervision

Wrote chapter in Leadership Secrets of Government Financial Qfficials 2.0.
published 2017 by National Association of State Auditors, Comptrollers & Treasurers

Civic, Community, Charitable, Public and Professional Service

Endorsed by Nevada Republican State Convention as State Controller candidate, 2014;
also by Nevada Republican Assembly, Citizen Outreach, County Republican Parties,
Log Cabin Republicans and National Rifle Association; elected to 2015-19 term;
Republican candidate for re-election as Controller, 2018, numerous endorsements
Regular columnist, Nevada Appeal, Elko Daily Free Press, Lahontan Valley News and
other on-line and print papers), 2013-present; occasionally in S.F. Bay Area in 1990s
Speaker, panelist or moderator at numerous institutional tnvestor conferences, 2013-18
Co-instructor for SNL seminar on utility, finance, cost of capital, economic & policy
issues, 2009-13

Seminar Presenter, Utility Valuations, SNL Finance, New York, 2012-13

Board of Directors & Legislative Chairman, Carson City Court Appointed Special
Advocates for Children (CASA), 2005-15; Chairman of Board, 2013-15

Board of Directors, Carson City Kiwanis Club, 2002-04 and 2005-(07; member of
Club’s Scholarship Board, 2004-07: Member, Kiwanis Club, 2001-present
Co-sponsor, Carson High Schoo! Science Fair. 2004; cducation support, 2002-present



Knecht Resume Detail
Page 3

Carson City Republican Central Committee, 2001-2012; Chairman, 2005-07
Member, Western Economics Association International (WEAT), 1998-present
Member, Carson City Navy League Chapter, 2004-12

Carson City Chairman, Governor Jim Gibbons Re-election Campaign, 2010
Member and speaker at Society of Utility and Regulatory Financial Analysts
(SURFA), 2007-2009

Organizing Committee, Rutgers University Center for Research in Regulated
Industries annual Western Conference, 2005-2007

Civic, Community, Charitable, Public and Professional Service (continued)

Instructor, “Managing Your [.ife and Family Finances”, for clients of Friends in

Service Helping (FISH) faith-based charity, Carson City NV, 2005 and 2007-08

Carson City Methamphetamine Task Force Public Awareness Committee, 2005-06

Carson City School District Social Studies Textbook Selection Committee, 2004-05

Co-organizer, “Thank You” event honoring Carson City Waterfall Fire First

Responders, 2004

Republican Nominee, Assembly District 40 (Carson & Washoe Cities), 2002 & 2004

Chairman, Carson City (Water and Sewer) Utilities Advisory Committee, 2002-03

Associate Member, Carson City Area Chamber of Commerce, 2002-06

Nevada Republican Central Committee, 2002-07 and 2015-present

Candidate (non-partisan), Los Altos CA City Council, 1999

California Republican Central Committee, 1998-2001

Director, Santa Clara County CA Lungren for Governor Operations, 1998

Co-founder and Principal, Advocates for the Public Interest (San Francisco and Los

Altos CA), 1998-2001

Founder, Univ. of San Francisco Federalist Society. 1994-95; Advisor. 1997-2001

Senior Editor and Writer. University of San Francisco Law School Forum, 1994-95

Founding Board Member, Illinois Public Action Council, 1976-77

Co-founder and Executive Director, {llinois Power Project (Urbana IL), 1976-78

Chairman, Electric Load Forecasting Statewide Committee of Energy Experts to

Advise Illinois Legislature, 1975-76

Board of Directors, [llinois Committee on Freeways (Urbana L), 1975-76

Member and Secretary, City Board of Zoning Appeals, Urbana IL, 1974-78

Democrat Nominee, City of Urbana IL City Council, Ward 2, 1973

Senator and Steering Committce Member, Univ. of [llinois Student Senate, 1968-69

President, Independent Freshmen Men, University of [llinois, Urbana, 1967-68

Ran Freshman Cross-Country and Track, University of llinois. 1967-68

Southern Illinois Master Councilor and other positions, Order of DeMolay, 1966-68

Assistant Editor, HyNews, Belleville, [L Township High School (West), 1966-67

Class President, National Science Foundation Summer Math & Computer Science

Program, St. Louis University, 1966

Ran Cross-Country & Track. Belleville Township High School (West), 1963-67;

varsity letters, [965-1967; All-St.Clair-County Cross-Country Team, 1966

Master Councilor / other positions, Tancred Chapter. DeMolay, Belleville IL, 1964-68

Senior Patrol Leader & other positions, Cub and Boy Scouts, Belleville IL, 1957-64
31 January 2019



Additional Detail for Ron Knecht’s Previous Job Duties for Storey County 31Jan.2019

Controller’s Duties

The Controller is the Chief Fiscal Officer of the State of Nevada and as such has a very wide range of
duties, He also serves on Nevada's Board of Finance (which requires investment expertise), its Executive
Audit Committee {which needs audit experience) and the Board of Directors for the Department of
Transportation (which calls for a full range of policy, procedures and operations knowledge, including
subject matter understanding}. The Cantroller's office is charged with the day-to-day back-office
management and operations functions for the whole state, including:

* preparing the single audit and summary of prior year findings;
* running numerous financial and accounting systems;

* preparing the Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports (CAFRs} and the Popular Annual Financial
Reports(PAFRs, a/k/a the Controller's Annual Report, or CAR);

* overseeing the Government Accounting Board (GASB) implementations;

* making "Rainy Day" and Disaster Relief transfers;

* liaisan with external auditors;

* managing agency services to other state and local government departments;
* preparing the CMIA annual report and interest calculations;

* bank reconciliation oversight and processing reverted checks;

* various federal income tax oversight and reporting;

* garnishment review and signature;

* managing the office's internal information technology operations;

* working on speciat IT projects, including co-leading the all-agency, all-function enterprise resource
planning and management IT system [SMART21) development for 2022, including especially extensive
business processing re-engineering for all state agencies;

* working with IT vendors and other agencies and overseeing system implementations;

* identifying, tracking and assisting in compliance with laws, rules and regulations related to (T
operations {e.g. Pl and PCi);

* full coordination with state risk management department and operations;
* interfacing with other CIO agencies and providing help desk functions;
* preparing and managing the office's budget;

* registering vendors for state and providing necessary related services to them;



* running debt collection operations, inciuding processing payment plans, referring accounts for write-
off, and communicating with outside collection agencies and state agencies;

* automating debt collection processes and monitoring contracts for automation;
* reviewing and approving debt coilection transfers to agencies and the debt recovery fund;
* ensuring compliance with federal and state debt collection laws;

* writing and processing RFPs and RFQs for debt collection and other services and supervising
contractors,;

* hiring, managing (allocating}, supervising and disciplining staff and all other needed resources;
* interfacing with all other state branches and agencies as required; and
* preparing and presenting testimony before the Legislature and other bodies as required.

In addition to all these back-office functions, Nevada's Controller has a statutory duty promote state
frugality and economy, plus better management of the state's fiscal affairs and creditworthiness, and
better understanding of all these matters for everyone {public, press, legislators and other officials).
Openness, transparency and accountability are paramount in these areas.

The Controller also holds hearings on payroil overpayments and public employee union dues, and writes
decisions to resolve those matters. And answers Nevada Pubiic Records (FOIA-type) requests and
provides information to the public upon request and necessity.

R uti
One of 13 Regents on Board who:

* set mission, vision, policy and procedures for NSHE, two universities, five colleges and community
colleges, plus Desert Research Institute;

* selected and evaluated the performance of various employees (university, college, community college
and DRI presidents, athletic directors, and basketball and football coaches, plus NSHE chancellor,
general counsel and chief of staff for the board);

* set budgets and finances and oversaw compliance with them;

* managed operating and endowment funds, plus major projects, including planning and
implementation of massive all-system (and institutions) enterprise resource planning and management
system for student affairs, faculty and staff, and all finance and accounting matters;

* oversaw system auditing operation and results;

* oversaw growth and development of health sciences system operations and medical and dental
schools;

* oversaw research and economic development activities of NSHE, institutions and their coordination of
those functions with state and local government;



* oversaw cultural development and security activities of NSHE and individual institutions;
* oversaw education policy development and implementation at institutions;

* coordinate with college, university and DRI governing bodies, including those for students, faculty and
staff/administration, and assure their input was heard and given due weight in our decisions;

* recognized outstanding faculty, other scholars, staff and students;
* assured quality education for students, families and the people of Nevada;

* oversaw all operations of NSHE, its institutions, plus thousands of faculty and staff for over 100,000
students.

| served eight years on the Audit committee and seven on Budget and Finance Committee, chairing each
for two and as vice-chair of each for a year. | served seven years as a very active member of the
investment and Major Projects Committee, which oversaw over $1-billion in investments, plus the ERP
system and other major expansions. | also served on various institutional president selection and
evaluation committees, chairing two. And | served on four other committees. In particular, | was active
in seeking to assure fairness for community colleges, their students, faculties, staffs and communities,
which serve Douglas County.

PUCN Senior Economist Duties

Served as senior/principal analyst in full range of financial, economic, policy and technical analysis,
including especially cost of capital, fuel costs, operations and capitai costs, cost recovery, revenue
requirements, cost allocation and rate design, strategic business and resource planning, systems
modeling, discount rates, and generation and power supply costs, including conservation and
renewables. Served as expert witness in all these areas for commission staff and for commission before
other state and federal bodies. Worked extensively with all parties involved in regulation, energy and
other utility {electric, gas, water and communications) matters. See my detailed experience resume
{three pages in attachments) for the full range of subject matters with which | dealt in this job, my jobs
at the California Energy and Public Utilities Commission and my work in private business and consulting.
(Areas of Experience, Publication and Expert Testimony section)

Assembliyman’s Duties

All normal duties of a state legislator: determine the public interest in the full range of matters that
come before the legislature and act for that interest. Member of Government Affairs, Commerce &
Labor, and Transportation Committees. Represent constituents and provide services for them. Sponsor
bills and other measures; advocate for or against and vote on measures coming before committees, the
Assembly and Assembly/Senate conference committees. Work with full range of interest groups, and
seek to fashion compromise and effective measures. Qutreach to citizens/public, interest groups, press
and others to explain legislation, regulation, spending, revenues, finances, various public interventions,
other governmental matters, and the public interest. Supervise one staff person. Provide leadership of
ideas and action; think, write and speak.



D ET n

Full functions of president of a small consulting business and expert witness. Consulted to and testified
for the full range of parties involved in regulatory, utility and energy matters, including regulators and
staff, other public agencies, investor-owned and publicly owned utilities, private energy producers and
other private businesses, plus various public-interest, consumer, environmental and energy policy
groups. Full range of business development, management and billing responsibility, plus working and
coordinating with partners and sub-contractors.

Notably in this work, | led ETAG's engagement to perform the 1996-97 feasibility study for the City of
San Francisco on municipalizing electric utility operations there, including especially valuing the facilities
to be acquired and other policy, resource planning, operations, risk, technical issues and policy matters.

Also served as consultant and expert witness for Pacific Gas & Electric Co. before Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission on discount rates and policies for regulation. FERC adopted the analysis and
discount rate result | proposed, and when the opposing party appealed the matter to the DC Federal
Court of Appeals, the court also adopted it. To my knowledge, this is the highest court decision ever on
the subject of discount rates because the Supreme Court has never heard the issue.

Also served as consultant and expert witness for the Oklahoma Corporation Commission (which
regulates utilities in that state) on major review of prudence and reasonableness of the aoperation gas
gathering and transmission system and use of gas in electric generation by Oklahoma Gas & Electric
Company. Also consultant and expert witness on setting aveided-cost rates for acquiring electric energy
from private producers,

Served as expert witness in case before state court in Oklahoma in which | performed valuation of a
private power producing company and the damages to one of its partners for a breach by its CEQ.
Extensive wark as expert witness an cost of capital, finance, revenue requirements, cost allocation and
rate design in utility reguiatory matters. Consultant and expert witness for private power producers, etc.

D as m Econpmics, Inc. Vice nt

Essentially the same as those at ETAG in the 1990s, except | was VP, not President and CEQ. However, |
did mediate a truce and settlement of many business and financial issues between the PA central office
and the satellite offices in SF, SD & KC before leaving. Also was responsibie for business development,
management, etc. and did most of the same consulting and expert witness work as at ETAG. Did
extensive work for Oklahoma Corporation Commission client as at ETAG, plus work on diversification
and utility strategic planning for PG&E. Also, work for Southern California Edison Co. and San Diego Gas
& Electric Co. on their proposed merger. Work for Mabil Oil Co. and other private power producers at
CA Energy Commission. Various other projects and cases.

Duties as Section Supervisor & Principal Analyst in Four Areas at California Public Utilities Commission

Professional duties similar to those at PUC of Nevada in 2001-12. However, at CPUC | also had
substantial supervisory and management duties as a section supervisor and member of all four division



management committees and was involved in hiring and evaluating professional and support personnei,
as well as coordinating with other branches of the agency. AT various times | served as the CPUC’s first
Principal Analyst in the following four subject areas: economics, finance, policy and technical analyses.
In these capacities, | prepared analyses and testified as an expert witness on the full range of matters
involved as a staff member, including {without limitation) revenue requirements; finance; project and
resource economics; nuclear power, coal and all generating alternatives; cost allocation and rate design;
discount rates; system modelling and operation; fuel and capital costs and their recovery; incentive
ratemaking, etc. Managed CPUC’s last resource plan review for SCE and PG&E, involving proposed
three-state coal-fired power plant system with coal mining in Utah, slurry pipeline to Nevada and
transmission lines to California. Led completion of major CA Environmental Impact Review (similar to
federal EIS in volume and detail) for that project, supervising ~10 full-time staff members total in all
functions. Also led interdepartmental project team evaluating CPUC transportation regulation and
de/re-regulation, which resulted in significant deregulation. Also involved deeply in in restructuring and
reregulation of electric utility industry and promulgation of power purchase rates for utilities’
procurement from private power producers (mainly QFs). Many other high profile cases and events,
including testifying before CA legislature.

Duties as Partner, Consuitant and Expert Witness at Bertschi & Knecht Engineers & Consultants

Similar to duties later at ETAG, Spectrum & QED in professional and management matters. Major
project in 1976-77 was as consultant and expert witness far California Energy Commission on power
economics, especially on Sun Desert plant licensing docket. My consulting work included completion of
my masters project in Civil Engineering (power economics} at UIUC, which became a reference
document on those issues at CEC. Also consulted and testified for other clients on ratemaking and
resource planning issues.

B&K continued to operate in 1978-86, with me in Sacramento in 1978-79 and in SF in 1979-86; the State
of CA recognized the First Amendment rights of its employees, and thus | was allowed to do consulting
and expert witness work on the side while at CEC and CPUC. in fact, CA understood that such side work
out of state improved its employees skills, knowledge and quatifications and thus added value for CA
taxpayers while avoiding conflicts of interest (being out of state). SO, | consulted and testified on the
full range of clients in the full range of subjects on which | worked at CEC and CPUC.

My work in 2012-14 as a private consultant, which is not separately listed here, was similar to my work
at B&K, QED, Spectrum and ETAG, but without as much management cimponent.

Duties as Commissioner’s $enior Advisor and Principal Regulaotry Specialist at CA Energy Commission

Professionai duties essentially the same as at CPUC, but didn’t include much about ratemaking. Instead,
electric and gas resource planning, plus power economics, planning and technical matters and policy
analysis for energy, especially alternatives and conservation. As Commissioner’s Senior Advisor, | dealt
with all subject matter and procedural issues that came before the commission, plus policy, personnel
and management issues. Filed court testimony for commission as an expert witness on nuclear and
other power production matters.



Ron Knecht’s Attached Listings for Storey County Manager Application 31Janl9

Professional Associations

Member, State Financial Officers Foundation, 2016-Present

Member, National Association of State Comptrollers (NASC) and National
Association of State Auditors, Comptrollers and Treasurers (NASACT), 2015-2019;
served on numerous committees and as panel moderator at various conventions
Founder, Univ. of San Francisco Federalist Society, 1994-95; Advisor, 1997-2001
Member, Western Economics Association International (WEAI), 1998-present
Member and speaker at Society of Utility and Regulatory Financial Analysts
(SURFA), 2007-2009

Organizing Committee, Rutgers University Center for Rescarch in Regulated
Industries annual Western Conference, 2005-2007

Member, Mathematics Association of America, ~1970-1973

Honors & Awards

¢ & & & 0

Nominated for SFOF’s Outstanding State Financial Otticer award, 2018

‘Taxpayers’ Hero Award, Citizen Outreach (for leading opposition to Commerce Tax)
Outstanding Studeat Paper in Power Generating Economics, American Nuclear
Society, 1977 — paper based on my masters project at UIUC in Civil Engineering —
this paper did not find nuclear to be the least-cost option

Scnator and Steering Committee Member, Univ. of lllinois Student Senate, 1968-69
President, Independent Freshmen Men, University of Illinois, Urbana, 1967-68
Citizenship Award nominee, Belleville Township High School West senior class, 1967
Assistant Editor, HyNews, Bellevilie, IL Township High School (West), 1966-67
Class President, National Science Foundation Summer Math & Computer Science
Program, St. Louis Untversity, 1966

Ran Cross-Country & Track, Belleville Township High School (West), 1963-67,
varsity letters, 1965-1967; All-St.Clair-County Cross-Country Team, 1966 (2 team
IL Southwest Conference and district)

Master Councilor / other positions, Tancred Chapter, DeMolay, Belleville IL, 1964-68
Senior Patrol Leader & other positions, Cub and Boy Scouts, Belleville IL, 1957-64

Personal

The most important things in my life are my wife Kathy, our teenage daughter Karyn,
and our families. | was always active in a wide range of athletics and outdoor
activities. | enjoy ballet, modern dance, symphony, opera, rock & roll, country &
western, theater and film. | still collect sports cards and pursue other hobbies. Our
family has attended many activities in Storey County for a number of years and
enjoyed the friendship of many folks there. [t would be an honor to serve them and
the Commissioners.

In 1979-83. [ was a co-founder/CFO and later Chairman/CEQ of the Rainbow
Connection Restaurant in Springfield IL.. Lasting three-plus years, we beat the odds
and provided good food, service and atmosphere. Unfortunately, we continued to lose



money in great part because we had to turn our construction loan into permanent
financing after the October 1979 Saturday Night Financial Massacre drove interest
rates into the upper teens. In the end, we settled with the bank and walked away.

Yolunteer Experience

e Instructor, “Managing Your Life and Family Finances”, for clients of Friends in
Service Helping (FISH) faith-based charity, Carson City NV, 2005 and 2007-08

* Board of Directors & Legislative Chairman, Carson City Court Appointed Special
Advocates for Children (CASA), 2005-15; Chairman of Board, 2013-15

¢ Board of Directors, Carson City Kiwanis Club, 2002-04 and 2005-07; member of
Club’s Scholarship Board, 2004-07; Member, Kiwanis Club, 2001-present

¢ Co-sponsot, Carson High School Science Fair, 2004; other local-education support,
2002-present, including member of textbook of CC District textbook selection com.

e Carson City Methamphetamine Task Force Public Awareness Committee, 2005-06
Carson City Methamphetamine Task Force Public Awareness Committee, 2005-06

* Member, Carson City Navy 1.eague Chapter, 2004-12

Public Servige er

¢ Chairman, Carson City {Water and Sewer) Utilities Advisory Committee, 2002-03
Associate Member, Carson City Area Chamber of Commerce, 2002-06
Chairman, Electric Load Forecasting Statewide Committee of Energy Experts to
Advise lllinois Legislature, 1975-76

¢ Board of Directors, [llinois Committee on Freeways (Urbana IL), 1975-76

¢ I've been a founder, executive or director for 12 firms, charities, community-service
and public-interest groups; including a board member for Minimax Research Corp. in
1988-94.

o ['ve testified as an expert witness about 150 times in about 25 regulatory, judicial and
legislative jurisdictions on a wide range of subjects listed in “Areas of Experience ...”
in my three-page resume supplement.

¢ [n high school, [ had various hourly and piecework jobs, including running Christmas
tree lot, putting up seasonal decorations at shopping center, mowing lawns and
shoveling snow.

My Record as Controller
e Leading a 41-person office, we’ve compiled a strong record of nuts-and-bolts

ministerial and back-office functions: no turmoil, trouble or drama, just quiet and
effective day-to-day service. We cut spending by over 13% and returned over $1-
million to the state treasury in the first 18 months, while improving service. We
worked with all state agencies to modernize business processes and develop the
SMART?21 1l system to integrate all functions such as accounting, finance, payroll.
personnel and budget for all agencies. | worked hard with many of our staff, the
vendor, AG and others to rescue a large troubled IT project we inherited; it's now




producing $1.3-million new annual debt collection revenues for the state. We also
made great strides in I'T security and safety to protect folks' private information.

As controller, [ did unprecedented things under the statutory charge to promote
transparency and accountability and improving/reforming government performance. 1
published Nevada’s first three modern Controller’s Annual Reports (CARs), and the
first three won awards. (Awards for the current year have not yet been announced.)
They cover state spending, revenues, health and social services. education, state pay
and retirement benefits, the economic outlook and policy prescriptions - realistically
from the taxpayer and public-interest viewpoints.

[ led a group that produced a 2015 alternate budget to fund all state services
reasonably while not raising taxes. ['ve led effort to repeal the Commerce Tax, which
1s similar to and worse than the margins tax the voters rejected 79-21 in 2014,

I’ve also ied efforts for openness and accountability at PERS and to reform the
forecasting of retumns on state penston investments and expected employee
headcounts. The goal is to make the systermn safe and secure and avoid a crisis due to
underfunding (a crisis now affecting many states for the same reason).

Publications

Numerous papers and written testimonies and exhibits in my professional and expert
witness work listed in my three-page resume supplement under “*Areas of experience
Especially relevant to this application, [ wrote a chapter in the book Leadership
Secrets of Government Financial Officers 2.0, published in 2017 by the National
Association of State Auditors, Comptrollers and Treasurers.

Also see listings elsewhere in this application concerning my work as a columnist for
various online and print publications.



Austin Osborne, mea. pHr, sHrm-cp
C

Virginia City, NV 89440

January 26, 2019
Subject: Cover Letter for Storey County Manager Position
Decar Honorable Storey County Commissioners:

The County Manager position intrigues me because of the strong focus Storey County has on
economic development and improving the quality of life for Storey County and Northern Nevada
residents and businesses. Storey County's goals are closely aligned with my experience for the past
13 years with the Storey County team.

Snapshot: HR Generalist; SHRM-CP, PHR; land-use planning generalist; 5 years in HR with 10
years in management; University of Nevada, Reno graduate with Master’s Degree in organizational
leadership field.

Management Profile: Director of HR and Planning for Storey County performing the full-range of
administrative, operational, and leadership duties of both functions; strong expenence in general
county administration, budgets, economic development, land development, and project management.

1 am available to interview by any means that works best for you. Once you have reviewed my
attached resume, you will see that | am well-qualified to lead the Storey County team to a successful
future | look forward to an opportunity to share with you my experience and qualifications for this
position

Respectfully submitted,
o

e
- g
P

—

Austin Osborne. M Ed.. PHR, SHRM-CP

Enc.: 9 Letters of Recommendation



STOREY COUNTY

EMPLOYMENT APPLICATION
An Equal Opportunity Employer

Original Application must be received by the closing date listed on the job posting.
Faxed, e-mailed and post-marks are NOT acceptable.

I voue believe vou reguire an accommuodation during the sclechion process, please contact us 0 make appropnaie arrangemenis

AR

Name TR TSI X TR R AT Date '’
Addres STTNEED
(“.y eyt oaly State BN Zip Code A1

Telephone{(s) Home ;C d— Work _

Email adaress:  (QEENND

Position Applied for: Storey Count; Manaqer

How did vou hear about this position” [ Advertisement [ Walk-In [ Referral (by whom')

AR

O Other (explain)

If offered employment. when can you be available to begin? mrediately 3ftor ban wack 3t e

What type of employment will you accept”? & Full-Time 1 Pan-Time O Temporary
Will you be available for shift work”? @ Yes ONo
Will vou be available to work weekends and/or holidays if necessary” M Yes ONo
Have you been given a job description or had the requirements of the job expiained to you” i Yes ONo
Do you understand the job requirements”? [ Yes ONo
Can vou perform the requirements of this job with or without reasonable accommodation” B Yes ONe

To qualify for employment. applicants must be at least 18 years of age unless otherwise specified in the
job announcement If offered employment. can you fumnish proof of age” @ Yes O No

Afier an offer of employment. can you submit verification of your legal nght to work in the Linited
States” b2 Yes O No

AL
IR

[.1st other names, it any, you have used

EDUCATION RECORD

Did you graduate from high school or receive a GED certificate” O Yes O No
Hours | Diploma, Degree, or
School Name L.ocation Earned Ceruficate Major Field of Study

BusinesxTechncal: Vocational

o)

K olleged Imiverans of ndergrsdwane)

1

7

E iraduate Scheed

Audmli Aol e

Stotes € ounty Fage 1ol & Applicant Name
PO By |70
Vinginu Ciy NV K9440



STOREY COUNTY

LICENSES (Optional, unless required for the position for which you are now applying }

List current licenses, certifications, or registrations required for the position for which you are applying Indicate types, state
license numbers, and expiration dates.

s oty of Human Resources Ulertihad Profossmnal PHEC HRECI Protessional of Haman Basourn o
Woen e TRECOTT Navada State Public School Admusteator heensed 712 Nevada School Teacher

P et Fyblic OMicial

rer

Answer only if position requires

Do you possess a valid driver’s license? : . . B Yes ONo
If 50, license expires H2o7e? Class ' ‘ Restrictions (if any) Hilagses
For positions that require typing I certify that 1 can type at a speed of WPM.
In addition to English, list any other language abiliues you possess
Verbal fluency in Narie
None

Whnitten fluency in

[.ist any special skills you possess and/or equipment or office machines you can operate

Soeonn e and ks Microsoft Word Excel ang Cutiopk Adube Pro sictomelny ESRAL b s Tl sy Y
Foasne s bt range of standard ofice machines emergency raco svsterns ased by Stores, oeunt,

OTHER INFORMATION

Have you ever been disciplined in your employment related to workplace violence” OYes @No
It yes, please exptain

Tl
Do vou presently use illegal drugs? O Yes @ No
Have you ever been employed by Storey County” & Yes O No

[t yes, please provide the following information

Department 110 Pesunttes atrb e padion Tige S advns Githeet B Daresc tor e piassiied U e

g - : S Hiaport Seekitg peaiobog
Dates of Employment - ¢ present Reason for Separation sl employ et Seening pramato,

Are you related to anvone who is currently employed by Storey County” O Yes @ No
If yes, please provide the following information

Related person’s name N Department TR

Relanonship Mot

o Agstn Csbhorne
Storey Conty Pawe 2 ol § Applicant Name
PO Hos 176
Virgina Gy NV Ruddo



STOREY COUNTY

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY

Provide information regarding all paid, military, and volunteer work and how it may be related to the position for which you
are applying Descnbe your most recent position first, then list other positions in order held, beginning with the most recent
Use a separate block for each position, even if with the same employer Use additional sheets if necessary Do NOT use
references such as "See Résumé” in place of cornpleting this section

May we contact all employers listed? (Antach a list of any exceptions with an explanation.).... @ Yes O No

Present Employer 7!W(=V Caunty Present Position ~Cnmnstrative OHweartfd Dhvactar Plamieeg D

Address T From (MoYn) ™1 To(Morvr) e
City s @ Full-Time (30+ hrs/'wk) O Part-Time (- 30 hrs/wk)

State RERRG Zip Code  “tl Salary G

J_!. ,4.|-|5 l|

Supervisor's Name/Title Potnck Mbnbens O gty Mangeges Telephone ('.' )‘
Related Duties

[T

Manager of Storey County with full-range of leadership duties.

Reason for Leaving S employed  Seeking DIormotien

Emplover ST Loty Posiiion sespuor Frgroe
Address | - beee o From (Mo/Yr) ¥ 24 1€ To(Mo/Yr)y "~
City Sl @ Full-Time (30+ hrs/wk) O Pan-Time (30 hrs/wk)

State -l ZipCode Y salary (DD

Plean Moy O armmygmty Develnpioens D tor Telephone (." "ka'le- GUHyes

Supervisor's Name/Title
Related Duties

Building Official. Planning Administrator. Direct Supervisor

. 1 < atvar, Aitheey thes e aaf
Reason for Leaving ' ramoted to positian sathen the cmiples

Emplover Tty Scehool Distro U Davton thgn e Posiion £ -iv
Address M len Naley b From (Mo/Yr) 7 7 To(Mo/Yry =
City ey @ Full-Time (30+ hre/wk} O Part-Time (30 hrs/wk)

R _— ISR N
Swe Mt zmcoge M sairy G
Supervisor's Name/Title  Y<iv!1f faraiigss Hond iy Telephone E

Related Duties

Fuii-range of site principal duties and supervisor.

eyl anmeindr gty i e

Reason for Leaving

Sores Loounn Page Vat 3 Apphcant Name
PO Hos 176
Vicgnma Ciiv: NV Riddo



STOREY COUNTY

Employer Shereey U oty Position | lANNINeg Coainmis Sicnger
Address bt G 4 9 From (Mo/Yr) (15 20005 TO(MM’Y)("C‘ BeIoTHRD
City Aty O Full-Time (30+ hre/'wk) @ Part-Time (<30 hre/wk)

State v zipcode | B salary NENED

Supervisor's Name/Title  Buntd of Bloray Lounty Somms acners Telephone (GRINEENNED

Related Duties

Advisory commission to hear and recommend land-use applications.

" Began caraer o PLEoing aith Store, Coanty, Beaguurad o avond coothes b ingered
Reason for Leaving ' !

REFERENCES

N = “-1' N hrr[en Js_t_o:ev Lﬂﬁ& .Aanage; B - theﬂy_"m |
Address F’” ?c‘x 176 Virginia Cily. Nevada 89440

Name /& ﬂ Neyn_w__é'orey County Fire District Chief — _
adress P B0X 603 Virginia City. Nevada 83440

— tham B|II Maddox. Semm D:strrct Cour'Judge Phonet ”

Address ~ Carson Clty Nevada 89701

Please state below any other information that would be helpful in determining your qualifications for this position You may
include significant accomplishments, previous career highlights, or any other relevant information that is not requested in this
employment application

e e b head pesiine

| Austn Osborne
Stores € ounts Page 401 3 Applicant Name

PO o T
Vitgin Ly NV N0



STOREY COUNTY

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Please READ ALL of the following statements and INITIAL EACH of the lines 1o indicate you have read and understand
each of the statements If you have any questions, contact Storey County Human Resources Department at (775) 847-0968

—/& All offers of employment and all information regarding compensation and other terms and conditions of
employment will be made in writing Verbal statements may not be relied upon

\_/ﬂ' This application is the property of Storey Commty and will become part of my personnel file if | am hired

\_/@ | authorize Storey County to contact any employer or individual that I have listed on my employment application
and/or résumé or mentioned during job interviews to obtain from them any relevant information regarding my
previcus employment, military service, cnminal history. charactenistics or traits necessary for job performance, or
other relevant qualifications for employment and/or continued employment with Storey Couaty In addition, |
authorize Storey County to conduct a background search which includes criminal history and military history In
addition, if the position for which | am applying requires dnving a vehicle. |1 authorize Storey County to conduct a
Department of Motor Vehicles (DMV) search If the position for which | am applying involves contact with minors
or with any persons having diminished capacity to care for themselves, a search of ygovernment sex offender
registries may be conducted | further authorize Storey County to contact any institution and/or licensing authonty
to verify my possession of education, licenses, and/or certificates which may qualify me for employment

\_/‘galn exchange for Storey County consideration of my employment application. and/or any continued employment
with Storey County, | authonze anyone possessing information to furnish it to Storey County upon request, and |
release the organizations and all individuals providing the information or acquining the information, including
Storey County. from all claims, liability, and damages whatsoever claimed to be related to furnishing, obtaining, or
using said information This release applies to, but is not imited to. claims for defamation, libel, slander, infliction
of emotional distress, and interference with current or prospective economic relations

—4 1 further understand this consent will apply duning the entire course of my employment with Storey County should
| obtain such employment | understand and agree this consent shall remain in affect indefimitely

41 hereby certify that all statements made in this application are true | understand that any false statement of
matenial facts herein may cause forfeiture on my pan of all nghts to any employment with Storey County |
understand that any misrepresentation. falsification. or matenal omission of information may result in my failure 1o
receive an offer, or if | have been hired, in my dismissal from employment regardless of length of employment |
understand thal neither this document nor any offer of employment from Storey County constitutes an employment
contract unless a specific contract document to that effect is executed [ agree to undergo any job-related physical
examination and drug screening upon conditional offer of employment | further understand and agree that this
paragraph applies to any informaton supplied by me at a later date as part of this application

Addinonally. my signature below cemnfies that the informanion provided is true and correct to the best of my knowledge

Date (jt/,li:'//):

NOTE This Page MUST have onginal imtials and signature.
Photocopy or typed versions not acceptable

£ i
Storey {Counn Page 3ot 3 Appllcam Name /‘/J’\'f‘/ 2 M C I %] (/

YR 170
Vingiow Cinn NV ORI



GEEEEER \Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Austin Osborne

M.Ed., PHR, SHRM-CP

STOREY COUNTY MANAGER

Diverse Storey County experience in HR, planning, budgets, and operations.

Dedicated to economic development, lean government, and customer service.

Effective leader with elected officials, employees, civic and community groups, and public.
13-year servant to Storey County citizens, businesses, and stakeholders.

Promoted historic preservation, responsible growth, and rural community defense.

o oswp

EXPERIENCE
2013 to Present (Storey County)

Administrative Officer / Human Resource Director / Planning Director (concurrent)
Leadership
+  Framed Storey County Master Plan with meaningful community contribution
Led team in restructure following veteran departrment head retirements
Managed “360 HR investigations” increasing morale and productivity
«  Influenced landmark TRIC development agreement amendments
+  Infiuential member of annual budget team
. Balanced mining, community, and cultural resources in codes and permits
Eamed credibility and trust, and helped build employee-centric HR
Enhanced inter-agency relationships resulting in community projects
+  Effective leader with county commission and planning commission
Advocate for community stakeholders and businesses
Labor Relations
+  Chief labor contract negotiator, labor relations manager, and EEO officer
Negotiated reduced dependent healthcare costs in all three CBAs
Honor and faimess in all employee-employer issues
Defended county in spurious labor disputes
Operations
8 Realigned compensation plan to control accelerating staffing costs
+  Reduced premiums by influencing high-deductible/HSA health pian enroliment
Firm with carriers to reduce premium increases
Launched RFPs to seek better services with reduced costs
«  Wrote and administered federal grant for countywide energy upgrades
J Applied analytics and due diligence to policy and budget decisions
Reduced workers' comp. losses by seeking stronger contractor services
Lobbied and testified in Nevada Legislature
+  Worked with Congressional representatives and federal agencies for lands bills




Austin Osborne

«  Streamlined reguiations and increased entitlements in codes, policies, and plans
+  Project managed Courthouse parking lot construction
+  Worked regularly with construction, business, and development firms
= Served with team attracting and retaining businesses
»  Coordinated transportation improvements with regional agencies

Proposed building improvements increasing productivity and safety
*  Represented county in the court of law on wide-range of issues
+  Considered and implemented good ideas brought up by others

2008 - 2013 (Storey County Community Development)

Senior Planner

: Full-range of land-use planning duties
+  Supervised planning division staff

2005 - 2008 (Lyon County School District)
Dayton High School Teacher

+  Taught Government, Economics, U.S. History, World History, World Issues
Coached soccer, Nationa! Honor Society, junior and senior ¢lass council

EDUCATION & CREDENTIALS

' M.Ed. - Master of Education Leadership (School/District Business Administration)
University of Nevada, Reno - 2005

. B.S. - Bachelor of Science in Education
University of Nevada, Reno - 2002

*  Professicnal in Human Resources (PHR) certified
- Society of Human Resources Management-Certified Professional (SHRM-CP) certified
» Licensed Nevada State K-12 School and District Administrator, and 7-12 Teacher

ENGAGEMENTS

+  Board - Nevadaworks Local Eiected Official, LEO (former chair}
+  Board - State Land Use Planning Advisory Council (SLUPAC) (former chair)
+  Board - Carson Water Subconservancy District (CWSD), Carson River Watershed Committee
. Board - Comstock Community Television Board of Directors
+  Committee — Truckee River Flood Management Authority, Technical Advisory Committee
+  Committee - CWSD Legislative and Regional Water Systern committees
. Member - Society of Human Resources Management (SHRM)
Member - American Planning Association (APA)
Member - Comstock Classics Car Club
Former - Storey County Planning Commissicner (2005-2008)



STOREY COUNTY_ FIRE. PROTECTION DISTRICT
e oo
Virgima Crey. NV 89440
{773 847 O34 Phone & (773) 847 0987 Fux

January 15, 2019

Re: Recommendation for Austin Osbome

To whom it may Concern:

[t1s with great pleasure that | write this letter of recommendation for Austin Osborne for the
position of County Manager for Storey County. | have known him for several years and worked
with him professionally for the last 5 years.

In the time | have known Austin he has displayed a high degree of integrity, and responsibility.
He 1s definitely a go-getter and very knowledgeable in the leadership and operations of Storey
County Govemnment. Austin has a keen sense of humor and brings a refreshing outlook and
demeanor 1o everything he does.

Austin has been very involved in the governing and managing of Storey County since his very
first involvement as a Planning Commissioner 15 years ago. From that moment. he has thrown
himself into the inner workings of this county. As you may well know, Austin wears many hats
in this organization, from Administrative Officer to Human Resources Director to Planning
Director, as well as anything else that comes his way.

As a new fire chief, [ have taken advice from Austin on issues dealing with hiring, employee
issues, internal investigations, department morale. and most things in between. Austin is a wealth
of knowledge on many levels and is very well educated. He has been a voice of reason and logic
for me. We have negotiated a recent collective bargaining contract together, and have worked
hand in hand on numerous other projects such as job reclassifications and policy adjustments.
Austin exhibits honor and faimess with every project and assignment he leads or is involved in.
He has brought a unique environment to Human Resources to make it inviting for employees to
bring issues forward and not have intimidation or fear about it.

Austin was the driving force to rewrite the Storey County Master Plan, he engaged both
community members and leaders from the entire county. He has taken an important role in
cconomic development in Storey County and is part of the team that brings all of the large well-
known. as wcll as the small start-up companies here to call our county home. he has traveled to
other countries to tour facilities to make sure they are the right fit for our county. Austin works
with state and national leaders to make sure the voice of Storey County is heard about decisions
that are being made which directly affect us.

Austin has been a leader in providing the most cost effective and comprehensive health insurance
to county employees while working to reduce costs for both the county and emplovees. He has
worked eftfectively to bring agencies together to work as one on many projects both in the county



STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
B e
Virginia Cien, NV 89440
{773) 8347 0954 Phone @ (773) 847 0987 Fax

i

and with our neighbors. Austin has been able to restructure job classifications to improve morale
and proficiency along with compensation while reducing redundancies. He continues to rewrite
zoning ordinances and make amendments to codes as necessary.

Austin works hard for this county, its residents, visitors, and employees. It is not uncommon for
him to work twelve to fourteen hours a day to see a project or plan to completion. He is the
definition of due diligence. It is my honor to write this letter and give my full and unwavering
endorsement to Mr. Austin Osbome to be selected as the next Storey County Manager.

Siycrcly. A

y e e
¢ i . Z v —
STl £ T

/

Jeff Nevin
Fire Chjef

%
L



Jason Wierzbicki
5805 Lightning Ct.
Sun Valley, NV 89433

01/28/19
To whom it may concern:

My name is Jason Wierzbicki and | have known Austin Osborne for several years. | am the Public Works
Director for Storey County. | supervise a staff of 19 to 30 depending on the season.

I am writing to recommend that you consider Austin Osborne for the position of County Manager for
Sterey County. In all my years of experience, some people stand out for their great qualities and Austin
Osborne is one of those people. He is well known for his intelligence, work ethic, positive attitude,
teamwork mentality, leadership, diligence, etc. He is well respected throughout the organization for his
ability to get things done, for meeting short deadlines, for accomplishing tasks, etc. Throughout the time
I've known him, he has shown me time and again that he is a positive, motivated leader with amazing
potential.

During his time here, he has played an important role in the County as Administrative Officer, Human
Resources Director, and Planning Director.

In summation, due to his great attitude, dedication and excellent potential, | would heartily recommend
that you accept Austin Osborne for County Manager. | am sure that he would not let you down and
would be a great asset to Storey County as County Manager.

Please don’t hesitate to contact me if | can be of further assistance. | can be reached at Public Works or
775-229-9920 or at lwierzhicki@storeycounty.org.

Sincerely,

Jason Wierzbicki
Storey County Public Works Director

B



January 24, 2019

Storey County Board of Commissioners
P.0.Box 176
Virginia City, NV 89440

Honorable Board of Commissioners,

As your former Public Works Director, it is my absolute pleasure to recommend Austin Osbourne for the
position of Storey County Manager. | have known Austin for several years, having worked with him for
over ten years as part of the Storey County team.

| have come to know Austin as a truly valuable asset to Storey County. He is honest, dependable, well
educated and incredibly hard-working. His vast knowledge of federal, state and county government
operations would most certainly be a gigantic advantage in the position as County Manager.

Many times over the years that | have worked with Austin, he has put his skillset to work and
accomplished many important milestones for the benefit of Storey County. A few that come to mind
include his excellent abilities in the area of labor relations. He represents the county as its chief labor
negotiator for the counties three bargaining unions, always exhibiting honor and fairness. He also
shows that he most certainly has the leadership and operational skills necessary to adequately perform
the duties as our County Manager. He has shown his effectiveness in these areas, especially in the
framing of the updated Storey County Master Plan, reaching out to the various areas in the county to
gain community contributions necessary for the plan to be successful. He also continues to use his
analytical skills in performing due diligence to make sound policy and budgetary decisions. He is an
impressive problem solver who is always able to address complex issues with strategy and confidence.
Austin is inspired by challenges and is never intimidated by them.

Along with his undeniable talents, Austin has always been an absolute joy to work with. He is most
definitely a team player and always manages to foster positive discussions and bring out the best of
other employees.

Austin is also involved with the community, serving on many boards at the state and local level.
Without a doubt, | confidently recommend Austin Osbourne for the position of Storey County Manager.
As a dedicated, knowledgeable and all-around great person, | know he is the right choice for this

important position.

Please feel free to contact me at {775) 745-4354 should you like to discuss Austin’s qualifications and
experience further. I'd be happy to expand on my recommendation.

Sincerely,

Michael E. Nevin



William A. Maddox

Senior District Court Judge
Carson City, Nevada 89701

January 23, 2019

[.inda Ritter Consulting
4250 Hobart Road
Carson City, NV. 86703

Re: Austin Osborne

The purpose of this letter is to recommend Austin Osborne to vou for the position of County
Manager of Storey County. Nevada. In the various positions that [ have occupied over the last forty vears. |
have been asked to write many letters of recommendations. Writing a letter recommending Austin Osbomne
is the easiest letter that | have had to wnite.

I have been a lawyer in Nevada for 40 vears. In that time. | have been the elected District Attorney
of Carson City and Storey County. Nevada: the presidentially appointed United States Attomney tor the
District of Nevada and a general jurisdiction judge in the First Judicial District Court of Carson City.
Nevada. | practiced law privately for ten vears and | am presently a Senior District Court Judge. | have
worked with a number of administrators. | have represented the Carson City Board of Supervisors. the
Carson Tahoe Hospital. the Storey County Commission. the Storey County Planning Commission and the
Storey County School Board.

[ got to know Austin Osborne after | became District Attorney in Storey County. He and | worked
closely together for the four years I was in Storey County. He does an excellent job as the Planning
Director and the Human Resources Director. He was the person who evervone. including me, looked to if
there was a problem to be solved or if there was a project that needed to be done. He gets along well with
everyone with whom he works. He is professional but not overbearing. Finailly. Austin is constantly either
attending classes or training to improve his already impressive qualifications. He is in my opinion the most
gualified person to be the Storeyv County Manager. Nobody works harder than Austin Osbome.

I have a rule that | never write a letter of recommendation that is longer than one page. It is difticult
to write in one page everything good that [ might have to say about Austin Osborne. so if vou have any

questions please teel tree to call me.
Sincerely vours,
wl&% “ M nQLf

William A. Maddox



Community Chest, Inc.
PO Box 980
Virginia City, NV 89440
(775) 847-9311
{(775) 847-9335

January 28 2019
Re: Letter of Recommendation for Austin Osbomne
Dear Honerable Storey County Commissioners:

I am happy to submit this letter of recommendation for Austin Osbome for consideration as the next County
Manager for Storey County. Please keep in mind that this recommendation is not intended to be a slight
against any other candidate - indeed, Mr. Osborne is the only one |'ve heard who is applying -- but an
affirmation of belief in Austin’s character, abilities, and results-oriented style of engagement.

With respect to his character, Mr. Osbome has only ever proven himself to be a man of integnity and
honesty, a man of his word, a man of humility. At the same time, he is a fierce and committed servant of the
people of Storey County who will log whatever miles and work whatever hours it takes to get the task done.

As to abilities, not only has Mr. Osborne proven time and again that he is able to take the most complex of
tasks 1e, soliciting and pulling together input from all sectors of the community for the most recent
overhaul and update of the county’s master plan — but he has also proven himself an adept speaker and
presenter. This 1s a man who has that most rare of valued skills: an ability to work with a wide variety of
people and personalities, as well as an ability to manage the minutiae (i.e., budgets and county code) needed
to do the job.

And, finally, as to results, Mr. Osbore has consistently been a positive intluence and advocate for
Commumity Chest, Inc. As Planning Director, Mr. Osborne and his team assisted our organization in
obtaining necessary land and county permits that allowed it to expand the Virgima City Community Center.
Additionally, for the past decade Mr. Osborne has served on the Nevadaworks Adult Dislocated Worker
and Youth Out of School RFP committees, and his influence and active engagement on these committees
has assisted in CCl annually receiving approximately $300,000 for its two programs qualified under
Workplace Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA ). Mr. Osborne has also provided CCl assistance with
workforce development and retention programs at the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center.

CCI pnides itself on serving the needs of communities throughout Storey County and Northern Nevada, and
we deeply appreciate the hard work, dedication, and active support that Mr. Osbome brings to our
organization each vear. For these reasons, we ask that Mr. Osbomne be considered as Storey County s next
County Manager.

Please do not hesitate to contact me anytime with questions.

Sincerely,

Enk Schoen, Executive Director



AW
nevacaworks

L00rGinaL Ny, Worklorcy Develyonen: “or Norifert Nevada

January 9, 2019

Ms. Linda Ritter

Linda Ritter Consulting
4250 Hobart Road

Carson City, Nevada 89703

Dear Board of Storey County Commissioners,
It is my absolute pleasure to recommend Austin Osborne for the position of Storey County Manager.

Austin and | have had a working relationship for over eight (8) years. He is the Storey County representative on the
Nevadaworks Board and a member of the Nevadaworks Local Elected Officials Board. In addition, he serves on the
Executive Committee for the Board and the Executive Council of the Local Elected Officials. Over the years he has served
as both the Vice-Chair and the Chair of the Local Elected Officials.

Over the years, | have thoroughly enjoyed working with Austin. | have come to rely on his knowledge of Northern
Nevada and of Storey County, in particular. Austin brings his knowledge of the local workforce, his budgetary experience,
and his understanding of governmental procedures and processes to each discussion. Throughout the years he has been
an active member of many funding proposal committees which require extensive review and evaluation.

Austin is always prepared for every Nevadaworks meeting, bringing information and insight into the activities and needs
of Storey County, driving discussions related to Nevadaworks’ activities throughout the |3 Northem Nevada counties, and
offering suggestions and comments regarding Nevadaworks' policies and procedures.

Working with Austin in the professional capacities mentioned above has also allowed me to know him on a personal
level. | find Austin to be a positive person, with the ability to look at and evaluate all sides of an issue.  Austin has
a straight forward approach during discussions and is always open to hearing the opinion of others. He is incredibly
hard working and dependable, and 1 find him to be an asset to Nevadaworks.

| am confident Austin will bring all his skills to the pasition of Storey County Manager, and | highly recommend him for
this position.

Please feel free to contact me via email at jthurman @ nevadaworks.com or by phone at 775-284-1342 if you would like
to discuss Austin's qualifications and experience in further detad. | am happy to expand upon my recommendation.

Sincerely,

Foo= /
';’y!mi ; e

John H. Thurman
(EO
Nevadaworks

6490 South McCarran Blvd., Building &, Suite |, NY 89509-6119
www.nevadaworks.com 775-337-8600 Fax 775-337-9589

o~
AmericanjobCenter ot Nevada



JOIN:

“Traning Nevadans for Careers”

January 21, 2019

Board of County Commissioners
Storey County

PO Box 176

Virginia City, NV 89440

Dear Commissioners,

It is my honor to recommend Austin for the position of County Manager. As a colleague, | have worked
with Austin over the past eight years on various Workforce and Economic Development efforts. Not only
has he been a Local Elected Official key player on the Nevadaworks Board, he has become a trusted liaison
and advisor.

While Austin has found much success in his current and concurrent roles as Administrative Officer, Human
Resource Director and Planning Director aiding in the economic growth and expansion of Storey County,
he is looking to maximize his leadership for which he is qualified. Austin is poised to step into the role of
County Manager.

When [ think of Storey County, | think of your great Ambassador that is Austin Osborne. Austin can
visualize, plan, and continue to create vitality for your community. He is beyond knowledgeable of the
day-to-day business of the County. He is strategic thinker with his finger on the puilse economic trends
throughout Northern Nevada and recognizes the benefit of thinking regionally.

Austin has proven skill in the arena of relationships. He is an effective leader able to bring members of
government, business, civic and community groups, staff and residents together to accomplish goalis.
Austin is exceptional at hearing and considering all sides and opinions, ensuring everyone has their due
time and feels heard. His successful involvement, with the Storey County Master Plan, Renc Industrial
Center, Mining and Manufacturing industries, land use, department reorganizations, labor relations, are
just a few examples of his leadership, communication and negotiation abilities. Additionally, Austin’s
obligation to fiscal and efficiency due diligence shows in his Operational accomplishments to date.

in addition to his professional qualifications, Austin has personal qualities that make him a well suited to
leadership. He naturally falls into the role of “point person” in so many different circles in which we have
worked together. He is not afraid to share his opinion and offers direction and solutions. My experience
is that when Austin has something to say, people are genuinely interested and hold his opinion in high
regard. Austin’s is a person with a highly reputable reputation.

Headquarters Office: 716 N. Carson Street, Suite B, Carson City, NV 89701
(775) 461-3930 Fax{775)461-39333 www.join.org

~  a
americanjobcenter



JOIN:

“Traning Nevadans for Careers”

Austin has my highest recommendation for the position of County Manager with Storey County. | am
excited to see the direction in which Storey County grows under Austin’s leadership. Please feel free to
contact me for any further information.

Sincerely,

VLV 8

Denise L. Castle
CEQ

dcastle@join.org

Headquarters Office: 716 N. Carson Street, Suite B, Carson City, NV 89701
(775) 461-3930 Fax(775) 461-3933 www.joIn.oIg

- .
americanjobcenter



Seott Juicover
e Bos 1298

Cotntinn City, NV 897001 [ 298

by RN S IR A

Py 22 Mo

O N mAy cone e

't has been brougnt to my attention that Mr Qsborni 15 appiying tor the storey County Managers
position | have been blessed with knowing Mr. Osborne far well aver twenty years | et me hist the
qua ties Austin has that would support Austin in his role as a County Manager Honest, Moral,
Organreed, Fair, Balanced, 1ruthful, Educated, EXPERIENCLD, Poiite, Open minded, Firm, Ihoughtfut,
EXPrRIENCED, Local, Commumity invoived, County Involved, State involved, Nationally involved, did |
mention EXPERIENCED ¢ Austin does not just talk the talk, he walks the walk His actians speak
volumes compared to idie words. And it does not matter which side of the fence or 1sle you are on. He
cdn see both positions clearly and lands on the side of the iaws and reguiations thal are on the books
He s CAN DO not CAN'T DO Storey County 1s one of the most unrque Counties in the State of Nevadaf
not the whole United States. 1tis so important for the County to hire someone from within who
understands the Comstock. the culture, the County and the Narthern Nevada Rogion  Austin has been
present for the [ean imes and the exponential growth of the TRIC industrial park in the County and has
prown with the (ounty While the shoes of the current Starey County manager are way too big to fill
with anyone overnight, Austin is mature enough and young enough {but not too young) to tackle the
hard 1ssues in the years to come and eventually fill thase shoes. S0 why should you even gIve any

weleht to my “words”

Fwill teil you why. | have worked in Storey County and owned property in Storey Lounty for over 40
years | have seeved as Board Member, Vice-Chairman and Chairman of the Virginia City Tourism
Lutmmission. | donated the first prece of land to the Iri-County Rdilway Cominssion many ycars ago to
hick start the V & T Reconstruction praject from Carson City to Gold Hill. I ~erve o the Narthern Nevad.
Development Authonty Dewign and Construction Committee, and am o member of the Board ot Nevada
Wareo Lbuilt and awn a tourst attraction in Virgiia City L work lacally .n the commurity for a locai
M AR campanty  have interfaced many many tmes over the years with ALL ko - 0* Goverament and

ppartucularly Storey County Government



s e ol thee boed peocnle Per g e oo s the oo g b bbe Contbion o o obenne o Toee

fodease T dedicated, doyat, nend workings, knowe, thee systernn and would be an exce et Qe




COMSTOLK

January 22 2019

Mr. Carmona, Mr. McBnide and Mr. Gilman
Storey County Human Resources

Rt Storey County Manager

Gentlemen,

It is a pleasure to first acknowledge the superior accomphshments of Storey County and its
Quarterback, Afr. Pat Whutten, for the past decade, since [ moved to Nevada, and established my
trade and business here. Having worked internationally, nationally and regionally, | can
represent, first hand, that this County represents a model for public-private partnerships, citizen
government and socially responsible business and community. | have never witnessed or
experienced a more capable, dedicated government, for the people and by the people’s
representatives. This could never be accomplished without serious and dedicated governors (that
1s. vou, our County Commissioners), your delegees (an incredibly knowledgeable and competent
Planning Director and Planning Commission) and the enforcers of our laws (our independently
elected Distnict Attorney, Sheriff and Justice of the Peace). We don’t always agree on all issues,
but we all care about the County and its success, above our own. [t's remarkabie and very
uncommon. | am blessed to work and reside here with such a dedicated, interdependent County
team within an incredibly successful public service “system.” This alignment, knowledge and
capability “Is Not L.uck™ and could not succeed without the dedication of the whole team.

The County could neither succeed without such a caring, vested, dedicated team to execute its
master and strategic plans, operate the government on a day to day basis, and relentlessly drive
for what is nght, ensuring our decisions are not only good for the County, its businesses and
visitors, and its people, and their children and our children’s children. This selflessness has been
our differentiation and must continue to define our standards. The Patriots could not have won $
Superbowls and 9 American League Championships, without a fully vested owners, a dedicated
coach and an outstanding quarterback, who all believes in collaborating as a broader team,
selflessly, tirelessly and with full dedication. | know I have just described the Storey County
svstem and its quarterback Pat Whitten, but | am also describing the backup quarterback. our
own Austin Osborne.

I understand that Mr. Austin Osborne is applying for and is a candidate for the Storey County
Managers position. | have worked directly with Mr. Osbome, on some of the most critical,
contentious, complex and severest issues facing the County, and | have always found him
dedicated and determined to innovate, collaborate and achieve the best, right and most
sustainable answer, for the County and its future. | cannot emphasize enough. how critical the

Corrado DeGasperis. Executive Chairman & CEQ
PO BOX 1118 « 1200 AMERICAN FLAT ROAD « VIRGINIA CITY NV 89440
MAIN(775) 847 4755 « CELL (7751 B47 5310 « FACSIMILE 1775) 847 7595



experience, knowledge, and remarkable strength of character for always doing the right thing. for
the County, and all of its citizens, s to the County Manager position.

[ believe there could be other qualified candidates, but | am doubtful anyone could have the
knowledge, fortitude, commitment and relentless (and scemingly) tireless dedication that Austin
has always commtted for doing the right thing for Storey County. In this assessment, Austin is a
10 out of 10, more likely an 11. Where do we find ~11°s”” Any other assessment should be
secondary, for without these characteristics, we will lose too much and put our incredibly
prosperous and complex opportunities, that immediately in front of us, at nsk. Tourists,
entrepreneurs, industries and residents all come to visit, work and live in Storey because of its
unique history and culture, its commitment to its character, its enterprising spirit but most
importantly, tts relentless commitment and refusal 10 compromise on all of the above. Austin
has been a critical cog in this big machine and only those seeing it from the inside out can
truly appreciate that! His tireless “Can DO™ attitude and capability 1s truly extraordinary.

| know the County's attitude 1s not changing, but the capability on the ground will most certainly
change without the continued leadership that the County and Pat have established and Austin has
supported and can continue leading us forward, tirelessly, without missing a step.

I could not make a stronger recommendation for Storey County’s next County Manager than for
Mr Austin Osborne. He is vested in this Storey, it’s his home, and we are blessed to have him.

Sincerest Regards.,

Co e D

Commado DeGasperis

E:xecutive Chairman, Comstock Mining Inc.

Chairman, Virgima City Tourism Commission

Chairman, Comstock Foundation for History and Culture

Chairman, Comstock Real Estate Inc. {Owner of the Gold Hill Hotel)

COMSTOCK PAGE 2 OF 2



Marena Works, MSN, MPH, RN

Carson City, NV 89701 _

January 22, 2019

Linda Ritter Consulting
4250 Hobart Road
Carson City, NV 89703

Dear Ms. Ritter,

| was excited to hear about the recruitment for Storey County Manager. My professionalism, work ethic,
county/city management background and experience in cross disciplinary roles make me an ideal
candidate for this position.

I am well prepared for the challenge of serving as Storey County Manager. As director of Carson City
Health and Human Services | was able to expand the human services division to include workforce
development, add prevention programs and integrate the health department into the community by
building collaborative relationships with community partners during one of the worst economic
recessions, The health department at the time suffered from low morale and | spent time building
rapport with my team, encouraging a positive atmosphere and relating our jobs back to the purpose; |
am committed to having the best team and seeing value in my staff, even when they don’t see itin
themselves.

Spending a year and a half in the City Manager's office broadened and enhanced my experience by
adding to my responsibility over 500 full time employees and a 120-million-dollar plus budget. When the
City Manager unexpectedly retired five months later [ had a large learning curve to manage a
consolidated City-County operation. | stepped up to this challenge and learned a lot from others during
the process. | was able to move forward with a preliminary medical marijuana ordinance and the passing
of a 1/8 cent sales tax for infrastructure projects while concurrently negotiating with the elected officials
to be sure the projects included a new animal shelter.

in my current paosition with Nevada Health Centers, we contract with the Studer Group® who partners
with organizations to build a sustainable culture that promotes accountability and fosters innovation
using - o e o cned .| have benefited greatly with this relationship which has
continued to improve my skills in coachlng and developing employees in my department. This
partnership has encouraged me to look for ways to motivate and encourage leaders to perform at their
highest level, Furthermore, | take time to recognize performance, let the employee know they are
valued and appreciated, and strive to build a work environment that connects the heart and mind.

This past year | had the opportunity to contract with the Alliance for Innovation. This group wrote a
Playbook that is used to teach small government bodies, such as cities and counties, how to be
innovative within their areas. This group was subsequently asked by the Public Health National Center
for Innovations to write the Playbook with a public health focus and | was hired to find examples of
public health innovations across the country. This unique experience assisted in broadening my



Marena Works, MSN, MPH, RN

Carson City, NV 89701 O

knowledge with respect to community innovations, and encouraged me to view challenges from novel
viewpoints, a skill | was able to carry over into other aspects of my work.

My ambition is to be part of a high performing local government and connected to a smaller community
rather than a large urban area. i perform best in a region where | can develop personal connections and
integrate into the people and culture, and | especially fee! a rapport with Storey County. When 1 am not
at work, | am often hiking or walking dogs, volunteering and generally enjoying outdoor life which makes
Storey County perfect for my life-work balance.

As a hard, independent worker with a strong background in city and county governance, | would bring
energy, enthusiasm and skill into this position. The requirements of the Storey County Manager position
align with both my experience and my career goals. This opportunity would allow me to not only better
myself, but to allow Storey County to thrive by applying the skills and background to bettering this
community. | would be very pleased to meet and discuss my qualifications further at your convenience,
Thank you very much for your time consideration of my application.

Sincerely,

R o
i U U SR VO S

Marena Works



STOREY COUNTY

County Manager

EMPLOYMENT APPLICATION
An Equal Opportunity Employer

I en helion e vou reguibc anaccommedatten during e selection peocess, phease Confad i (o ke aopropriate arvanyoments

Name Marena L Works . ___Date _ January 10, 2019
address QNN @420
City _ Carson City oSt Ny Zip Code 89709 =

Telephone(s) Ilomg (‘el___‘_\\'urk_”
Email address: _ marenaiworks@gmailcom — R
Position ‘\')pli(’d for: Jley_MaDage_L_v

How did vou hear about this position’ O Adverusement O Walk-In d(Rct”err;tI (by whom?}  Stan Jones

0O Other (explaim)

It oftered employment. when can you be available to begin? within 30 Days

What tvpe ol employment will vou accept” Gt Full-Time O Part-Time O remporary

Will you be avarlable fon shitt work”? . i e e e R Yes O N
Will vou be avatlable to work weekends and/or holidays f necessary?. ... e kYes O Ko
Have you been given 2 job descniption or bad the requirements of the job explained to vou? . ... . R Yes O o
Do you understand the job requurements™? e . XY es T No
Can you perform the requirements of this job with or withoul 1easonable accommodation?. . . ... @ Yes O No

To quality tor cmploymient. applicants must be at least 18 years of age unless otherwise specified m the
job announcenmient. It ottered cimployment, can vou furnish proot of age? gy pesnnrg o DUYeS 01 a

After an offer ot employment, can you submit verificalion of your legal right 1o work 1n the United
SO Do s 50 0000 500 B Bl nosssll] : By o seovmans e BEYex O N0

Last other manes, 1f any. sou have used. Marena | Macera

EDUCATION RECORD

Ihd you graduate from high school or recerve a GED certificate? [XYes ONo
[ Hours | Diploma, Degree, or -
| School Name | Location Farned | Ceruficate | Major Freld of Study |
Rusiness Techmal v ocational § *
1. — — PRI AT A —— o s s e e T G S SR W R A sy
a 1
Erx;i-l—egéli_'}il\czkll) 18 ndberys aduoae) o R S oo ST -. o
IUNR - _Reno,NV. © B8N sk ...
2. WNC _ I CarsonCity, NV | ggi AS__  General Studies
aduate Sohool :
UNR - Reno, NV 63 : MSN/MPH Public Health & Nursing
I Pawe o3 Applicamt Name - Marena Works

Ptribey 170
M U, NV sudadn



STOREY COUNTY

LICENSES (Optional, unless requered for the position for which yvou are now applving. )

List cueeent licenses, certifications, or registrations required tor the position ter which you are applying. Indicate lvpes, state
license numbers, and expiration dates.

Answer only 1f posttion requares,

Do you possess a valid driver’s license? ... e, Y es O No
IMse Dicense expires oqygs2021 Class G Resinctions (ifany)
For positivns that require typing: Lcertify that [ can type at a speed of WPM,

In addition to English, list any other lanpuage abilitics you possess.

Verbal fluency in

Writlen Huency in

List any special skills you possess and‘or equipment or office machines you can operate

_ Microsoft Office; various HR web or cloud based systems I

OTHER INFORMATION

Have you ever been disciplined in your employment retated o workplace violence? O Yes GNo

il yes, please explam,

Deyoupresently use ol AlBHESE oo s wom s o sameimssomsammemmmesmenss Tl Y0s DN
Have you cver been emploved by Storey Coumty? ..o o e . O Yes N0

If yes, please provide the following information:

Depactves _ Position Trtle L L
Dates of Employment ~___ Rcuson tor Separatton e
Are yourelated to anyone whe ts currently employed by Storey County? L ne. L Yes I No

[f yes, please provide the following information

Related person’s name ) Department L
Relatiwonship _
Storvs County Panre * s Appheant Name . Marena Works

PO Rux | 76
Vinnna Uy, N 80430



STOREY COUNTY

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY

Provide information regarding all paid, nilitary, and volunteer work and how it may be related to the pusition for which you
are applying  Deseribe your inost recent position first; then bst other positions in order held. heginning with the most recent.
Use a separate block for each position, even if with the same employer. Use additional sheets if necessary. Do NOT use
references such as “See Résume” in place of completing this section.

May we contact all employers listed? (Attach a list of any exceptions with an explanation.).... @ Yes O No

Present Emplover - Nevada Health Centers . bresemPositon . Director of Clinica Services .
Address 3325 Research Way . From(Mo'Yr) lan 2017 lo(MoYr) Pregent
Cny Carsan City_. . .. X Full-Time {30+ hrs wk) O Part-Tune (30 hrs wk)

State NV ZipCede 89706 e salary _—__

Supervisor's Name/ Title Ali Shahin, MD, CMO . '['clcphom—__
Related Duties . . -
Direct responsibility for staff training throughout the organization; manager of employee health; prepare

and manage department budget; grant owner of Title X Federal grant;

Reason for Leaving _Still employed

Lmployer University of Nevada, Reno ... _Poswmon pstryctor .
Address 1664 Virginia Street From (Mo Yr) Aug 2018 Fo1MoYr) Present

City _Reno O Fuil-Time {3 hrs.wk) [X Part- Fime (=30 hrsiwk)

State NV Zip Code 89557 - Salary SN
Supervisor’s Name! Title _Moman AssociateDean =~ Telephone ) B

Related Duties
Responsible for all aspects of teaching CHS 101 (Community Health Sciences)

Reason for Leaving  Still employed; working concurrently with Nevada Health Centers . . ___

Employer Nevada Health Centers . _Poswen  Dirpgtor of Qperations narth
Address 3325 Research Way FromiMoYn May 2015 FotMaYT Dec 2016
Cuy QQ!’SQH.Q“X._ e X Full-Time (30~ hra'wk) L1 Part-Time (230 hrs'wk)

St NV 7ZwCede 89706 . L S

Supervisor's Name/Title  Karl Sundberg, COO o - '|'U|L'I‘“”“c_ S

Related Dulies
Oversight of 10 rural clinics including staffing, budget (6.4M), recruitment and community relationships.

Opened 2 new clinics during this time.

Rewon ton Leasing_ Request by Nevada Health Centers to develop the system wide role of clinical services

Storey Count, Fige 3o Applicant Name Marena Works
PO Box 170
Vg s Ny 29440



STOREY COUNTY

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY

I'rovide information regarding all paid. nulitary. and volunteer work and how it may be related 10 the posinon for which vou
are applyug. Describe your most tecent positien liest, then hist other positions n order held. beginmng with the most recent.
Use a separate block lor each positioa, even 1t with the sume employer. Use additonal sheets if necessary. Do NOT wse
references such as “See Résumeé” in place ol completing this section,

May we contact all employers listed? (Attach a list of any exceptions with an explanation.).... @ Yes O No

Present Employer  CC Senior Citizens Center  Present Position  Diractar
Address 911 Beverly Street L From (Mo Yr) Jan 2015 TeiMao Yf‘May2015

City Carson (:it!! 777777 ~ ¥ Full-Time (30+ hus wk) O Part- F'ime 1+ W hes wk)
State NV Ziplode 89706 - Salary _—__
Supervisor's Name/Tile  Nick Marano, City Manager telephone (R

Related Dulies
Direct responsibility to realign the senior center to a progressive center meeting the needs of the

seniors in the community. Responsible for the financial oversight of center income from the city general
fund and the 501¢3 corporation, .~~~
Reason oz Leaving 10 accept the position with Nevada Health Centers

Employer City of Carson City , Position  Deputy City Manager
Address 201 N Carson Street From (Mo Y1) m&%ﬁm‘_"rpﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁec 2014
City _Carson ¢ ;ihf } o [XTuli-Time (380t hrs'wk) O Part-Time (<30 hesiwk)

State NV ZipCode 8970 ) o Salary —_
Supervisor's Name/ 1tle_ Nick Marano, City Manager/ Larry Werner Tetephone (D

Related Dautics
Direct oversight of the Health Department, Community Development, Information Technology and

Senior Center. Assisted with all aspects of City operations including union negotiations, relationship
—building and trouble shooting with elected officials.
Reason for Leaving - Requested by the City Manager to fill the Senior Center role to realign the center

Employer City of Carson City Poswion — |nterim City Manager

Address 201 N Carson Street From (MuYr) Dec 2013 . TeMo Yo _june 2014
Cuty Carson City .  XFull-Time A0+ hrsiwk) L1 Part-Tume (30 hrs'wh)
State NV AwCede 89701 .. . Salay $125000
Supervisor's Name/Title  _Bob Crowell, Mayor __ Telephone (779 gg7.2100 .

Reluted Duties
Top appointed executive in the City reporting to the Board of Supervisors, responsible fo rover 500 full time

employees and 100 part time employees; responsible for an annual budget ot 120M.
Appointed tor the interim position at the request of the Mayor

Reason for Leaving_Tp step back into the Deputy CM pasition =~ e

Sty Coune Page Vot 3 Applicant Name  Marena Works
B Blon 17
Mian Uy NS N



STOREY COUNTY

FMPLOYMENT HISTORY

Provide information regarding all paid, military, and volunteer work and how it may be related o the position tor which vou
are applying. Describe your most recent position st then list other positions in arder held. beginning with the most recent
Use a separate block for each position. even if wath the same employer. Use additonal sheets if necessary Do NOT use
references such as “See Résumé™ in place of completing this section.

May we contact all employers listed? (Attach a list of any exceptions with an explanation ). .. B Yes [ No

Present Employuet &[Mﬂem&mmsdwscm Posttion  Nirector
Address 900 E Long Street From (Ma:Yr) lune 2008 'l'n(Mn:\r]May 2013

City Carsan ( ;im . (X Full-Tinw 30+ hrs wk) L3 Part Time (<30 hesowk)
State NV Zip Code 89706 ‘ salay (D
Supervisor's Name/Title Larry Werner, City Manager Telephone (779 887-2100

Related Duties
Direct responsibility to carry out NRS directives for a county human services program, public health

nursing, environmental health and animal services. Manage state and Federal grants and responsible
for disease prevention and control in Carson City and Douglas County.

Reason for Leaving _Request by City Manager to step into the Deputy City Manager role

Emplover Carson City Health & Human Services Position _Community Health Program Manager
Address 900 E Long Street FromMoi¥r) - June 2005 Te(Mo¥Yn June 2008

City Carson City LI Fall-Time (30 hrs-wk) O Part-Time (=30 hrs/wk)

State NV Zip Code 89706 Salary __u
Supervisor's Name/Title Daren Winkelman Telephone () unknown

Related Duties
Responsible for developing the clinic services of the public health department. Secured grants to

expand the program from immunizations only to wide range of community health nursing services.

Reason for Leaving _ Tp accept the Director position

Empleyer Carson City School District Posmion _Chief School Nurse

Address 1111 Saliman Street From (Mo:Yr) Qgt 1999 Te(tMo'Yn) June 2005
City Carson City o o X Full-Time (30~ uswk) O Part-Tune (<30 hrsiwk}

State NV ZipCede _B9701 . Salery (D
Supervisor's Names Title Ruth Aberasturi  (deceased) Tclcphon_

Related Dutics
Responsible for the health of the students in the district, policy development and ensuring compliance with
Stale and Federal laws in repards to student health screenings, individualized education plans and emergency

~ preparedness,

Reason for Leaving T aceept the position with Garson City Health & Human Services

SRIAFE ALY Page T Applicant Name Marena Works
PO Box 70
N ik O, VY R9440



STOREY COUNTY

Employer - Position o e
Address L L _From {Mo’Yr} letMorYny _
City ) e L Eull-Time (30+ hrsiwk) O Part-Time (=30 hrs wk)
State Zplode B ] Salary
Supervisor’s Name/Title o o _ lelephone (-

Related Duties

Reuson [or Leaving

REFERENCES
Name Stacey Giomi Phone# _
Address 2777 Ash Canyon Rd. Carson City 89703 rsgiomi@gmail.com

pronc: D

becrowell@carson.org

phonc: (R

mbruketta@carson.org

~ame Bob Crowell
Address 201 N Carson Street Carson City 89701
Name  Melanie Bruketta

Address  201.N Carson Street Carson City 89701 . ._

Please state below any other information that would be helpful in determining your gualifications for this position You may
in¢lude sigmificant accomplishments, previous career highlights. or any other relevant intormation that is not requested in this
cmployment appheation.

- During the 2009 H1N1 flu pandemic, | worked with Assemblywoman Bonnie Parnell to draft legistation

“to allow EMT's to administer vaccines. This Ieglslatlon was passed during the session.

- | secured a grant t_hrough the Robert Wood Johnston Fou'nldatlon to |mplement a cross Junsdlctlonal
sharing arrangement W|th Douglas County and Carson City for en\nronmental health services

- | have completed courses toward my Public Management certificate

- Nevada Al_umnl Assomatlon Professional Achrevement award in 2013

_- Submitted a successful proposal to the Carson City Board of Superwsors to mclude anew anlmal
shelter in their 1/8 cent sales tax |n|t|at|ve

- Negotlated electrical and other grounds |mprovements on FU]I Park and Fai rgrounds so there would

Sioney Counly Page 4 at » Applicant Name  Marena Works

'O HBox §7n

Mareiny Oy N NG



STOREY COUNTY

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Please READ ALL of the following statements and INITIAL EACH of the lines to indicate you have read and understand
each of the statements. If you have any questions, contact Storey County Human Resources Department at (775) 847-0968.

Tyl

LV o

Wi

A

' el
S

All offers of employment and al} information regarding compensation and other terms and conditions of’
employment will be made in writing. Verbal statements may not be relied upon.

This application is the property of Storey County and will become part of my personnel file if [ am hired.

1 authorize Storey County to contact any employer or individual that [ have listed on my employment application
and/or résumé or mentioned during job interviews to obtain from them any relevant information regarding my
previous empioyment, military service, criminal history, characteristics or traits necessary for job performance, or
other relevant qualifications for employment and/or continued employment with Storey County. In addition, |
authorize Storey County to conduct a background search which includes criminal history and military history. In
addition. if the position for which | am applying requires driving a vehicle, I authorize Storey County to conduct a
Department of Motor Vehicles (DMV) search. 1f the position for which [ am applying invelves contact with minors
or with any persons having diminished capacity to care for themselves, a scarch of government sex offender
registries may be conducted. T further authorize Storey County to contact any institution andsor licersing authority
to verify my possession of education. licenses, and/or certificates which may qualify me for employment.

[n exchange for Sterey County consideration of my employment application. and/or any continued emplovment
with Storey County. | authorize anyone possessing information to furnish it to Storey County upon request. and |
release the organizations and all individuals providing the information or acquiring the information. including
Storey County, from all claims, liability, and damages whatsoever claimed to be related to furnishing, obtaining, or
using said information. This release applies to, but is not limited to, claims for defamation, libel, slander, infliction
of emotional distress, and intcrference with current or prospective economic relations.

[ further understand this consent will apply during the entire course of my employment with Storey County should
[ obtain such employment. | understand and agree this consent shall remain in aftect indefinitely.

I hereby certify that all statements made in this application are true. [ understand that any talse statement of
material facts herein may cause forfeiture on my part of all rights to any employment with Storey County. |
understand that any misrepresentation. falsification, or material omission of information may result in mv failure to
receive an offer, or if  have been hired, in my dismissal from employment regardless of length of employment. |
understand that neither this document nor any offer of employment érom Storey County constitutes an employment
contract unless a specific contract document to that eftect 1s executed. [ agree to undergo any job-relaled physical
examination and drug screening upon conditional offer of employment. [ further understand and agree that this
paragraph applies to any information supplicd by me at a later date as part of this application.

Additionaily. my signature below certifies that the information provided is true and correct 1o the best of my knowledge.

Signature of Applicant o TR g, oo gl P B Date L= e e A

Aiiade Low o o7

NOTE: This Page MUST have original initials and signature.
Photocopy or tvped versions not acceplable.

Sterey Connty Pape Sof & Applicant Namwe Marena Works
Itk Boy |76
Virgmma Uiy, NV KRS0



Marena Works, MSN, MPH, RN, CNS-BC

Carson City, NV 89701 J

Leadership Profile

Accomplished and awarded community minded professional, passionate about serving customers and energizing the workforce
to carry out a designated mission while maintaining integrity of programs designed to support thriving, action-ocriented
initiatives throughout the greater community. Broad range of interest and experience in public and private sectors. Exceptional
communication and relational skills with a successful tenure serving in local city and public service capacities.

Leadership Strengths

- Community Outreach & Relationship Development - Executive Communication & Presentation Skills
Cross-Functional Leadership Collaboration - P/L & Performance improvement
- Employee Relations & Retention - Youth Program Leader

- Establish & Build High-Performing Teams
- 10 Years’ £xperience as a Senior Level Director
Licenses & Certifications
= Registered Nurse, NV RN27147
* Board Certitied by the American Nurses Credentialing Center for Advanced Public Health Nursing
® ICS {Incident Command System) 100, 200, 700, 800.B, 00808

Professional Experience

University of Nevada, Reno Letter of Appointment Instructor . 2018-Present
Teach in person and on-line introduction to Community Health Sciences

Public Health Consultant 2017-Present
Under contract with the Alliance for Innovation to adapt their Innovation Academy Playbook for a public healtt audience.

Nevada Health Centers (NVHC) . 2015-Present
Nevada Health Centers (NVHC) is a non-profit, Federally Qualified Heaith Center (FQHC).
Director of Clinical Services ... iccniiiiniisiiie e ee s e eeeeeas 2017 - Present

*  Own direct oversight and responsibility for medical assistant staff development throughout the organization; 125
medical assistants.

*  Developed and managed departments registered nurse program.

*  Manager of clinical services department budget.

» Developed an employee health program including best practices for employee immunization and 18 control.

*  Grant manager of agencies Title X Family Planning grant.

= Policy and procedure development and update for all sites

*  Promote positive relationships between medical assistants and providers within the organization.

Director of Operations, north rural... SRS . 2015 - 2017

=  Own direct oversight and responsublllty for opening and Idunchlng ? health clinics in October 2015, while maintaining
the integrity of the annual operating budgets for 10 separate clinics representing $6.5M, and implementing the 317
vaccine program throughout the entire organization.

*  Manage and mentor a staff of 75 in maintaining leadership accountability for 2 of the 3 facility hubs, while establishing
a Medical Assistant Training Program, ensuring enhanced skills competency throughout the arganization

*  Served as a leading contributor to writing the Title X Family Planning grant, representing a value of $189K, granted in
September 2016.

Marena Works, MSN, MPH, RN, (NS BC i



City of Carson City, Nevada __2005-2015

Senior Center Director Carson City, Nevada ....................................................... 2015

Developed and managed all Department goals, poficies and staffing initiatives for Carson City, while representing the
502¢3 Senior Center throughout the Carson City Departments and the greater community, increasing awareness of the
programs that were offered and supportied by more than 150 volunteers.

Prepared and managed grants and reports maintamning compliance requirements, while collaborating with leadership in
establishing the annual operating budgets of the General Fund of $600K, and $500K for the 501¢3 from the Carsan City
Question 4 Senior Citizens tax fund, and the Carson City Senior Citizens Cenler, Inc., 501¢3 non-profit account.

Enacted a customer friendly environment by reducing or eliminating oppressive policies and unnecessary fees.

Deptty City Manager...........oimiminne e nes 2013 & 2014 - 2015
Provided policy aversight and organization leadership for City departments in the administration of the day to cay opergtions,
functioned in the role of Chief of Staff

Collaborated and facilitated the development and imptementation of the City’s strategic plan, which included partnering
with the Finance Director in defining and managing the $120M annual budget, recognizing an allocation of $60M towards
enterprise funds and grants.

Managed, directed and maintain leadership oversight of the City’s labor relation programs, policies and procedures, with
the hinance Director and Human Resources Director, and maintaining trusted relationship with 7 individual employee
unions.

Owned direct responsibility for planning and carrying out the 2014 Nevada Sesquicentennial Fair, which included
management of more than 100 voelunteers, working together tc host an estimated 21,000 attendees.

Interim City Manager ... .. 2013 - 2014
Top appointed executive in the Cnty reportrng to rhe Board of Supermsors responsible for over 500 full- time employees and
100 part-time employees

Collaborated with the City's Management team in developing and recommending acoption of the annual budget of
S$120M representing $60M for the General Fund and $60M for the grant/enterprise while accelerating the
implementation of the infrastructure & resource plans.

Established and presented a 1/8 cent City ordinance as a sales tax to build a new animal services facility, multipurpose
athletic center and corridor improvements. This was approved in April 2014.

Petitioned for and received $170K in funding from the Redevelopment Authority for allocation to capital mprovements
at Fuji Park and Fairgrounds, which was applied towards lighting, safety, and updating electrical infrastructure, enabling
the facility to host a 5-day fair and improving the City’s ability to market other events at the Park and Fargrounds.

Carson City Health and HUMan Services.......cvmmoirmmmimmmsre e cebere e rere e 2005 - 2013
Director.. s 2008 2013

Divisions mc!uded Human Serwces WIC(Women J‘n)‘an!s and Chf.'dren) Amma! Services, Disease Investigation, Chronic
Disease Prevention, Nursing and clinic Operations, Public Health Preparedness, loil and luvenile Heolth and Environmental
Health; Managed 25 grants for the deportment

Managed and mentored a staff of 35 fuli-time and 20 part-time employees, while maintaining integrity of the 54 5M
budget, which is represented as $2.5M of General Fund and $2M in grants along with collaboration with the Nevada
State Health Division to ensure funding for public health programs, further expanding services into two adjoining
counties for public health preparedness.

Direct responsibility to carry out NRS directives for a county human services program, public heaith nursing,
envirgnmental health and animal services.

Prepared the Health Department for accreditation, proving instrumental in being accepted as a beta-test site for the
Public Health Accreditation Board {PHAB), and completed the first comprehensive Community Health Assessment and
Community Health Improvement plan for the department.

Instrumental in securing the Title X Family Planning grant directly from the Federal Office of Population affairs

Drove the application process, and was co awarded a Cross Jurisdictional Sharing Grant through the Robert Wood
Johnson Foundation. We were 1 of 16 Health Departments nationally to share in this funding.

Partnered with a local citizen in writing a proposal to change legislation allowing for the training of EMT's to administer
influenza vaccines during the 2009 HIN1 pandemic. This Bill was sponscred by Assemblywoman Bopre Parnell and
passed during the next session.

Community Health Program Manager/ Clinical Nurse Specialist ............ 2005 - 2008

Marena Works. MSN, MPH, RN, CNS BC 7753153136



*  Owned accountability for the Clinic Operations of the Carson City Health Department which included crganizing and
participating in annual County emergency preparedness exercises, and Points of Distribution (POD) flu climics, vaccinating
more than 5,000 individuals in a single, 4-hour period.

* Controlled grant budgets and compliance standards, whie supervising 8 clinic employees, and ensuring alignment with
all HIPPA compliance regulations and Federal grant guidelines.

*  Registered Nurse duties plus developed the health department immunization program and various clinical services.

REEISERIEO NUISE. ..o oo v ciiieiiis s eersrs e e s ceeransassreest s rs sances sas a1t 0 s mssaetecrasarnssasesssanssransn sasarrsnsssnasssnsssnrenresannseassenrnnnses LD I O-2 005
*  Hospice in home care; Carson Tahoe Hospital pediatrics; Carson City School District School Nurse and Chief School Nurse

Format Education

= Masters of Nursing & Masters of Public Health (MSN/MPH)
University of Nevada, Reno
Master’s Thesis: Meeting the Goals for Healthy People 2010: The Significance of Compus-Based Health Centers and
Their Role in Promoting the Health of Community College Students

*  Bachelor of Nursing (BSN)
University of Nevada, Reno

Presentations

= 2016 ... ...Presentation to Carson City Rotary. Wellness in the Workplace, an Overview.

& 2015 s Center for Sharing Public Health Services in-person Team Meeting Plenary Presentation. Efficiency,
Effectiveness and CJS: Reflections from the Field. Charlotte, North Carolina.

LI ¢ & [ P — Conference speaker at Carson City Health and Human Services Development Conference: Consider

A Culture of Health in All Policies
Nevada Health Rankings Conference speaker on the current rankings of Carson City.

Key Note Speaker, University of Nevada, Reno 5chool of Community Health Sciences MPH hooding
ceremany.

= 2008 ....... e Poster Session, Nevada Public Health Association Annual Meeting. The Significance of Campus-
Based Health Centers and Their Role in Promoting the Health of Communily College Students

= 2008 e Speaker for Nevada Immunization Learning Exchange (NILE}

Current Professional Memberships

*  Member........ .. UNR School of Community Health Sciences Advisory Board

*«  Member........... Carson Tahoe Regional Health Care Audit and Compliance Committee

»  Member......... Carson Tahoe Regional Health Care Community Benefits Committee

= Member............. Nevada Nurses Association

*  Member...... <o Nevada Medical Group Management Association

* Member.............. American Public Health Associatton and Nevada Public Health Association
*  Member............. Sigma Theta Tau Honor Society of Nursing

Awards and Honors

» 2013 ... .. . University of Nevada, Reno Alumni Association Professional Achievement

I o Graduate of Carson City Chamber of Commerce Leadership program

LI 3 I —— Qutstanding Medical Reserve Program

" 2011 ................... National Association of City and County Health Officials Survive and Thrive Fellow
= 2010 . .Graduate of Great Basin Pubtic Health Leadership Institute

* 2007 ... ... .. NevadaAgricultural Foundation Leader of the Year

M.arcna Waorks, MSN, MPH, RN, NS BC —



Memorandum

To:  Linda Ritter

cc: Pat Whitten, Storey County Manager
From: Joel W. Locke, Esq., Investigator
Date: March 11,2019

Re: _Phase Il Background Investigation on Candidates for Storey County Manager

PHASE 11

Social Security Verification: validates the applicant’s Social Security number, date of birth, and
former addresses.

Personal and Professional References: calls were placed to individuals listed as references by the
applicant.

Credit History: confirms candidate’s credit history
CANDIDATES

1. Candidate Ron Knecht

Social Security Number Verification:
e T —————————
current and former addresses.

Personal and Professional Refereaces:

Candidate Knecht provided six (6) personal and professional references three (3) of
which retummed calls from the investigator. A brief description of the conversation are as
follows:

* Mr. Lynn Hettrick: Mr. Hettrick has known Candidate Knecht since 2001. They
met when they both served in the Nevada Assembly together. Mr. Hettrick stated
that the Candidate’s strengths are that he has background in accounting and
financial matters which allows him to provide in depth analysis and approach
problems that way. Mr. Hettrick also stated that the Candidate ensures that a job
is done correctly. Mr. Hettrick said that the candidate’s weak point is that he is
not afraid to voice his opinion and is outspoken.

¢ Assemblyman Al Kramer: Mr. Kramer has known Candidate Knecht since 1999,
Mr. Kramer stated that Candidate Knecht has an incredible capacity for workload
and is able to focus on his work and is very detail oriented. Mr. Kramer also
indicated that Candidate Knecht is a good leader and works well with people. Mr.



Kramer stated that the candidate’s weak point is that he tends to overestimate the
importance of other people and underestimate his own ability.

* Mr. James Hindle: Mr. Hindle has known Candidate Knecht since 2012. They
met through the state party. Mr. Hindle stated that the candidate’s strengths are
that he has integrity, does what he says and has good follow through. He also
stated that the candidate is organized and is good at networking and building
relationships. Mr. Hindle said that the candidate is good at managing people and
keeping them to task. Mr. Hindle stated that the candidate is good at
communicating controversial and constructive information to the public. Mr,
Hindle stated that the candidate’s weak points are being succinct in conversation
and can be a politician.

Investigator left calls with Candidate Knecht's other three references: Congressman Mark
Amodei, State Senator James Settlemeyer and Assemblyman Jim Wheeler.

Credit History:

Investigators records indiciii ﬁt Candidate Knecht does not have neiative credit
history,

2. Candidate Austin Osborne

Social Security Number Verification:

Confirmed

current and former addresses.

Personal and Professional References:

Candidate Osborne provided three (3) personal and professional references, two (2)
returned calls from the investigator. In addition, Mr. Jim Hindle (Candidate Knecht’s
reference) indicated that he was aware that Candidate Osborne was also a candidate.
Investigator did not confirm or deny this. Mr. Hindle also wanted to provide a reference
for Candidate Osborne. A brief description of the conversations are as follows:

* Mr. Jeff Nevin: Mr. Nevin has known Candidate Osborne for several years. Mr.
Nevin stated that the candidate’s strengths are that he is very thorough and looks
at everything from all aspects before coming up with a reasonable solution. Mr.
Nevin also stated that Candidate Osbomne is willing to listen and does not judge
people. Mr. Nevin said that one of Candidate Osborne’s weaknesses is that he
sometimes sells himself short. Mr. Nevin stated that he believes Candidate
Osborne will do the best possible job for both employees and residents of Storey
County.



Judge William Maddox: Judge Maddox has known Candidate Osbore for eight
(8) years from when Judge Maddox was the District Attorney of Storey County
and Candidate Osborne was the planning director. Judge Maddox stated that
there is not a person in Storey County that works harder than Candidate Osborne
and that Candidate Osborne’s strong points are that if he does not know
something, he will educate himself on that particular topic and that he is hard
working and inteiligent. Judge Maddox did not provide Investigator with any
weak points for Candidate Osbome.

Mr. James Hindle: Mr. Hindle has known Candidate Osbome for four (4) years.
Mr. Hindle stated that Candidate Osbomne’s strong points were that he has good
integrity and is good at keeping things and people on task. Mr. Hindle also stated
that Candidate Osborne is very bright and an excellent leamer who wants to do
his work effectively and takes pride in what he does and make sure he does it
well. Mr. Hindle indicated that Candidate Osborne may need more experience to
develop his skills.

Mr. Pat Whitten: Mr. Whitten has known and worked directly with Candidate
Osborne for over a decade, and worked very closely with him since Candidate
Osborne started in his present position of Storey County Administrative
Officer/HR Director/Planning Director in 2013. Mr. Whitten stated that Candidate
Osborne has incredible dedication and work ethic to get the job done with the
highest level of quality possible. He is disciplined, thorough, and a quick learmer.
Mr. Whitten stated Candidate Osborne’s management style is good and growing,
and that he does not shy away from any challenges. Mr. Whitien stated that
Candidate Osborne’s only weak point was that the position requires a lot of
flexibility, and while Candidate Osbome is capable of attaining and learning this
flexibility, he does sometimes tend to be rigid in his work.

Credit History:
Investigators records indicate that Candidate Osborne does not have negative credit

history.
3.

Candidate Marena Works

Social Security Number Verification:

Confirmed current

and former addresses.

Personal and Professional References:
Candidate Works provided three (3) personal and professional references all of which
returned calls from the investigator. A brief description of the conversations are as

follows



* Mayor Bob Crowell: Mayor Crowell has known Candidate Works for ten (10)
years. They met when Candidate Works was the director of the Carson City
Health Department and also when Candidate Works was the acting City Manager
for Carson City. Mayor Crowell stated that the candidate’s strengths are that she
is passionate about health and fiscal responsibility. She stepped up for the city
and helped to create crossjurisdictional sharing between counties. Mayor
Crowell also stated that he was very impressed by Candidate Works® ability to
relate to young people and enjoys being involved in FFA, 4-H and other youth
related ranching programs. Mayor Crowell did not think that Candidate Works
has any weak points and wanted the Committee to know that Candidate Works
put on the first every County fair.

* Stacey Giomi: Mr. Giomi has known Candidate Works for seventeen (17) years
and has a social and working relationship with Candidate Works. Mr. Giomi
stated that Candidate Works' strong points are that she is loyal, intelligent,
compassionate. and has an innate ability to work with people to make things right.
Mr. Giomi stated that she is good at working in collaboration with people who
have different interest to find common ground. Mr. Giomi also stated that she is
singularly focused and communicates well with people and has good exposure to
the inner working of city govemment. Mr. Giomi did not think there was
anything that stood out as a glaring weakness with regard to Candidate Works.

® Melanie Bruketta: Ms. Bruketta has known Candidate Works for over 10 years
and that thcy were coworkers and are friends. Ms. Bruketia stated that Candidate
Works has built a large and well-performing county board of health and that it is
one of the best in Northem Nevada. Ms. Bruketta stated that Candidate Works
has a strong sense of community and takes great pride in being from Northern
Nevada. Ms. Bruketta also stated that the candidate wants to make the entity that
she works for the best in the area and has a competitive edge. Ms. Bruketta stated
that she did not believe Candidate Works had any weak points.

Credit History:
Investigators records indicate that Candidate Warks does not have negative credit history.

4850-5822-7338, v 1



-

Linda Ritter Consulting

775.720.2982  |lin Pinyon com 4250 Hobart Road Carson City, NV 89703

March 13, 2019
To: Pat Whitten, County Manager
From: Linda Ritter

Linda Ritter Consulting

Re: Unsolicited recommendation - Marena Works

I had the opportunity to visit with Ronni Hannaman, the Executive Director of the
Carson City Chamber of Commerce last week. She asked about my work in Storey
County and | told her who the finalists for the County Manager position were. She
gave a unsolicited, but very enthusiastic recommendation for one of the candidates. |
want to pass it along to you.

Ronni was very complimentary of Marena Works in regard to her work as Deputy City
Manager. She indicated that Marena was the person at City Hall she would go to
when she needed an issue addressed. Ronni told me that she could depend on
Marena to look at an issue, weigh options, and most importantly, take an appropriate
action. She thought that Storey County could not go wrong in selecting Marena to be
their next County Manager.

Please feel free to pass this along to the Board of Commissioners.



Pat Whitten
h

From: Concerned VC <concernedvc@yahoo.com>
Sent: Wednesday, March 13, 2019 5:35 PM

To: Pat Whitten

Subject: County Manager position opinion

Mr. Whitten, Mr. McBride, Mr. Gilman, Mr. Carmona,

[ wanted to give the commissioners my feelings about the new Storey County Manager position and that Austin
is not the best pick for that job. We need a leader who can make quick decisions and not get caught up in
bureaucracy which has been one of Storey's greatest strengths. My interactions concerning our projects with
Mr. Osbome caused constant delays that lasted several months and cost several thousands of dollars in changes
that ended up not being needed. Gary Hames on the other hand gave us solutions quickly to any problem that
arose. While Austin may be OK in his current position, I feel he would take the county back twenty years and
we would lose that “they are a great county to work with™ reputation.

While he received many recommendation letters from co-workers(who coincidentally were also on the

interview panel), | felt I need to express feelings as a citizen that we would be taking a step backwards with his
appointment.

Respectfully,

Concerned Storey County Business Owner



Pat Whitten
h

From: Shaun Griffin <shaungrif@aol.com>
Sent: Thursday, March 14, 2019 2:13 PM
To: Pat Whitten

Subject: Ltr fr Shaun

Dear Pat,

Please include the following letter in the Commissioner’s County Manager hiring packet.
Thank you.

Shaun

Dear Commissioners,

| am writing you to strongly support Austin Osborne and Marena Works. They both bring a sterling record of
achievement, valuable experience, and most important in my opinion, the temperament to do the job. As you know,
this position requires daily management of complicated and difficult tasks and situations. It also requires you to be
objective and considered in your decision making. Both Austin and Marena have these and many other skills. | have
worked with them both for several years and find them to be listeners and consensus builders. They support projects
and the people running them even when it may not be their first priority—another trait of a leader. They are smart
enough to see the greater good they will accomplish. This is the kind of person you want as the county manager. This
position needs someone who can evaluate different paints of view and choose thoughtfully to engage the
Commissioners and the public. They are public servants, first and foremost.

For all these reasons, | cannot support Ron Knecht. His extreme positions have repeatedly caused negative reactions in
his various roles in the past. He is not the kind of person the county needs in this key leadership role because he will
soon polarize people. You do not need that; you need someone who can be the connective tissue in an often tension-

filled environment.

Thank you for considering my comments. As you know, | have worked for over three decades to build a strong Storey
County.

| appreciate all that you do for this community.
Sincerely,
Shaun Griffin

Sent from my iPhone



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: March 19, 2019 Estimate of time required: 1+ Hours

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X ] Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Selection of a candidate to serve as the next
County Manager, conditioned upon passing the background investigation and successful negation
of salary with the current County Manager and Board Chairman. The Board may also direct the
current County Manager and our Consultant to take action(s) for other properly related matters.

2. Recommended motion: There are multiple motions that might be considered by the Board

e (Ifa specific candidate is found acceptable to a Board Member) ; 1, Commissioner
[name] move to appoint candidate (Ron Knecht or Austin Osborne or Marena
Works) as the next Storey County Manager, effective on or after July 1, 2019,
conditioned upon passing the background investigation and successful negotiation
of salary with the current County Manager and Board Chairman.

o (If additional time is desired to process information presented during the
interviews; [, Commissioner [name} move to continue this matter to the [date]
Commission Meeting at 10:00 am here in the Storey County Courthouse.

e (Ifno candidate is found acceptable toe a majority of the Board) ; A motion could be
given to direct staff to extend the open period of recruiting or other similar motion.

3. Prepared by: Pat Whitten
Department: Commissioners Telephone: 847-0968

4. Staff summary: The process is fully outlined in the above referenced agenda language and
optional motions.

5. Supporting materials: N/A

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: As budgeted Comptroller

7. Legal review required: No

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:



%y Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied (] Continued

Agenda Item No. /0



Storey County, Nevada

Commission Meeting Agenda Item Request

The Storey County Board of Commissioners has established a policy for placement of items on its
meeting agenda. The policy states that all requests must be made in writing and must include all
supporting documentation at the time the request is submitted.

The deadline for submitting a request for an item to be placed on the agenda is noon on the Monday
of the week preceding the Commissioners’ Meeting, (ltems received after the deadline will be placed
on the agenda of a subsequent meeting.)

Date of Meeting: March 19, 2019 Date Request Submitted: March 11, 2019

Agenda ltem Requested: Renewal of Residential Construction Tax

This item is intended for: D Discussion Only X Discussion/Possible Action (ar the Board's discretion)

X Supporting documentation is attached [C] No supporting documentation is necessary

Requested by: Storey County School District- Kristen Chandler

(please print name clearly)

Address: 124 South E Street Virginia City, NV 89440

Phone:775-847-0983 Email (optional): krchandler@storeynv.com

Please submit this completed form to:
or FAX to:

Storey County Clerk’s Office ,
PO Drawer D Storey County Clerk’s Office

775) 847-0921
Virginia City NV 89440 (779)

----- Fold at Arrows Here and Above to Place in a Window Envelope ---- - -—>

For Office Use Only

Date Request Received: Received: [ | InPerson []ViaFAX By:

(] Supporting documentation attached - # of pages Meeting date of this item:

For additional information, please contact the
Storey County Clerk’s Office
(775) 847-0969 or email vdufresne@storeycounty.org



STOREY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT TRUSTEES

POBOXC JEFF NEVIN, PRESIDENT
124 SOUTH E STREET DAWN MILLER, CLERK
VIRGINIA CITY, NV89440 COLLEEN CONLEY, MEMBER

GARY HAMES. MEMBER
THOMAS THOMPSON. MEMBER

TobDD HESS, SUPERINTENDENT

February 13, 2019

Storey County Commissioners
Marshall McBride, Chairman
Lance Gilman, Vice Chairman
Jay Carmona, Commissioner
Drawer D

Virginia City, NV 89440

Dear Storey County Commissioners;

Please accept this letter as a formal request to the County Commissioners to permit Storey County
School District to continue the Residential Construction Tax at a new rate of $1,000 per home unit
for FY20, $1,300 per home unit for FY21 and increase to $1,600 per home unit for FY22 & FY23

Storey County School District has been receiving $500 per home unit since 1981. After reviewing
NRS 387.331 and surrounding county rates, Storey County School District would benefit from the
increase to help pay for the maintenance of our aging schools. This request was approved

at our February 13, 2019 board meeting.

Please see attached documentation supporting the increase.

Thank you for your support!

Sincerely,

Storey County School Di
Jeff Nevin, President
Dawn Miller, Clerk
Colleen Conley, Me




_ ‘**a,f#} POLICY REPORT

capitai funding provided to school districts: (1) taxes authorized by the Legislature and counties; (2) voter-
approved funding; and (3) other local and Federal revenues. All of this funding must be deposited into
capital and debt funds and cannot be used for operational expenses. Actual funding received in FY 2014
for each revenue source is shown in Table 3. As presented in Column J of Table 3, revenues per pupil vary
greatly throughout the State. Details about these revenue sources and their limitations are provided
following Table 3.

Table 3: FY 2015 Actual Capital Funds Received**
D

A 8 C E F G H 1 3
Reskdential | Reat Property Total
Construction| Transfer Tax & Ad Valorem Governmental |Other Local} Federal per

District | Sales Tax| Tax RoomTax |(Voter-Approved)| Services Tax | Revenue Support Total pupll
Carson CRy] 0 0 0 5,551,923 493,103 55,387 0 6,100,413 811
Churchil 4] 11,610 0 3,683,337 338,081 274,500 109,389 4,416,917 1,266
Cark 1] 0 103,444,759 307,869,927 25,573,939 2,683,704 5,630,347 445,202,677 1,400
Douglas 1] 223,344 0 2,558,345 1,073,895 5,512 353,719 4,215,815 696
Eko 0 0 D 12,716,166 0 330,186 4] 13,046,352 1,323
Esmerakda 0 0 0 0 0 10,269 Q 10,269 139
Eurelka 0 0 0 55 0 0 0 55 0
Humboldt 0 0 1] 2,063,272 278,795 26,969 0 2,369,026 682
Lander [ [ 1] 0 [ 286,503 0 286,503 273
Lincoln 0 0 0 601925 166001 34435 0 802,361 751
Lyon 0 222,560 0 6,860,865 585,012 121,800 0 7,790,236 966
Mineral 0 0 0 350,128 42,342 568 0 393,038 827

€ 0 116,033 0 7,374,704 611,623 269,106 0 8,371,466 | 1,620
Pershing 0 0 [ 852,350 151,045 34,034 0 1,037,430 1,499
Storey 0 6435 0 737,653 50,288 2,270 0 796,646 1,987
Washoe 0 0 0 48,960,291 3,512,462 | 5,423,622 0 57,896,375 917
White Pine | 331,854 0 0 717,048 97,128 95,272 0 1,241,302 993
Statewide | 331,854 579,982 103,444,759 400,897,989 32,973,714 | 9,655,137 | 6,093,455 | 553,976,891 | 1,288

Source: NRS 387-303 Report and FY 2015 Nye County School District Audit2®
Note: Ad vatorem taxes {column E) are used primarily for servicing debt (payment of bonds).

1. Taxes Approved by the Legislature and Counties

School districts in Nevada receive several types of taxes that are specifically earmarked for capital needs.
These taxes present several challenges to school districts. First, school districts lack the authority to impose
taxes on their own. Instead, this authority rests with the Nevada Legislature. In some cases, the Legislature

4 Column G “Other Local Revenue” includes a number of items. For example, $3,160,773 of the $5,423,622 Washoe
County School District received in "Other local support” came from a one-time rebate from NV Energy for previous
expenditures for photovoltaic installations at several of the public school facilities.

9 > Ulo b2/ Centricity/ Domain .
ment%20Plan%202012-13. pdf
5 Column H “Federal Support” includes a number of items. For example, in Clark County, Federal support included a
subsidized interest payment. During the Great Recession, several new types of bonds were allowed by the Federal
government to spur infrastructure construction and create jobs. Collectively, this group of bonds were known as Buy
America Bonds and they involved a subsidy of interest expenditures from the Federal government. During this time,
CCSD issued debt under the Buy America Bonds (known as Qualified School Construction Bonds). While CCSD was still
obligated to service the principal and interest of the bonds, the Federal government has provided an annual revenue
to reimburse or subsidize the interest expenditures, effectively creating an interest-free borrowing. However, the
amount of subsidy was lowered during the sequester (2013) and has not been restored so the subsidy no longer fully
subsidizes the interest of the bonds.

Page 11



NRS: CHAPTER 387 - FINANCIAL SUPPORT OF SCHOOL SYSTEM Page I of 1

NRS 387.331 Imposition of tax in school district whose population is less than 55,000; limitation on amount;
deposit of proceeds.

II. The tax on residential construction authorized by this section is a specified amount which must be the same for
tacn:

(a) Lot for 2 mobile home;

(b) Residential dwelling unit; and

(c) Suite in an apariment house,

h‘- impaosed on the privilege of constructing apartment houses and residential dwelling units and developing lots for mobile
omes.

2. The board of trustees of any schoo! district whose population is less than 55,000 may request that the board of
county commissioners of the county in which the school district is iocated impose a tax on residential construction in the
school district to construct, remodel and make additions to school buildings. Whenever the board of trustees takes that
action, it shall notify the board of county commissioners and shall specify the areas of the county to be served by the
buildings to be erected or enlarged.

3. If the board of county commissioners decides that the tax should be imposed, it sholl notify the Nevada Tax
Commission. [f the Commission approves, the board of county commissioners may then impose the tax, whose specified
amount must not exceed $1,600,

4. The board shall collect the tax so imposed, in the areas of the county to which it applies, and may require that
administrative costs, not lo exceed | percent, be paid from the amount collected.

5. The money collected must be deposited with the county treasurer in the school district's fund for capital projects
to be held and expended in the same manner as other money deposited in that fund.

(Added to NRS by 1979, 1287; A 1983, 1635; 1989, 1924; 1997, 2358; 2001, 1987, 2011, 1247)

NRS 387.332 Duty of Nevada Tax Commission to review need for tax. The Nevada Tax Commission shall,
every 4 years after it has approved the imposition of a tax on residential construction in a particular county or area of a
county, review the need for tﬂe tax under the circumstances existing at the lime of the review. If the Commission finds that
the tax is no longer needed, it shall so inform the board of county commissioners of that county, who shall repeal the tax
as of the end of lfne current fiscal year.

(Added to NRS by 1979, 1288)

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-387.htm! 1/31/2019



27 S MAIN STREET
LyoN COUNTY
(775) 463-639]

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT  frx oo ses-ss0s

BUILDING * DEVELOPMENT ENGINEERING * PLANNING 34 LAKES BOULEVARD
DAYTON, NEVADA 89403
(775) 246-61133
FAX (775) 246-6147

GENERAL INFORMATION
BUILDING PERMITS ON RESIDENTIAL LOTS

This information is provided to aid in preparing applications to obtain required building permits
on residential lots in unincorporated Lyon County. Please review this information and the
application carefully. Due to office space limitations incomplete applications cannot be accepted
and held while missing information is gathered. Incomplete applications inadvertently accepted
may be returned. A deposit to cover plan review costs will be required with the permit
application.

Generally, all new construction, repair or remodeling of buildings or structures on residential lots
will require permits from the Building Dept. Exceptions include fences (call for height
limitations) and a detached accessory structure less than 200 SF with no electric or plumbing.

All structures must comply with the current (2012) building codes (including energy
conservation) adopted by Lyon County. Amendments to the published codes are as cited in
County Code Title 10, Chapter 7.

A residence must be the first building permitted, constructed and approved for occupancy.
Electric service to the lot must be associated with a building permit.

Under Nevada law you may apply as an Owner/Builder in certain circumstances. Appropriate
affidavits must be signed which acknowledge the requirements of an Owner/Builder permit.
Plans submitted must indicate Owner/Builder and be signed and dated. You must then occupy
the building for at least one year after final approval. (An O/B cannot construct a duplex.)

No application can be accepted unless provisions for water/sewer services are addressed.
Appropriate “will serve” letters from the utility district, well driller’s contract, septic application
with perc test data or evidence of existing utilities are required. Sewer/water facilities must be
on the same lot as the building being served. State law establishes minimum lot sizes which may
use a septic system (an additional reserve leach area is required). Single-family residences
cannot “share” a domestic water well.

Lots in FEMA designated flood hazard areas require a “Floodplain Development Permit” from
the Planning Dept. You must furnish an elevation certificate, on the prescribed form,
establishing the design and then verifying that the actual built lowest floor components are
elevated above flood levels per Lyon County Title 12 & 2012 IRC. In some areas the certificate
must be prepared by a licensed engineer or surveyor.

Properties accessing county roads or state highways must furnish a copy of the appropriate
access permit from the County Road Dept, or NDOT.

Site preparation involving mass grading of the lot (beyond excavation for building and utility
lines) will either require a grading permit (currently issued by the Planning Dept.) or may be
included in the building permit. In either case site plans prepared by a licensed NV civil
engineer will be required for review by the County Engineer for compliance with county
drainage requirements.



Each application must contain two complete sets of drawings and calculations as described in the
application forms. Although “Architect” quality is not required, the drawings must be neatly
drawn (straight lines, true angles, etc), fully dimensioned in proportional scale, and contain
sufficient detail that would enable a competent person to build exactly what you want, where you
want it. We will not accept “free-hand” sketches or the like. We cannot accept plans prepared
by out-of-state vendors/designers unless stamped by professional designers licensed in Nevada.
All structural engineering including required truss sheets must contain the “wet-seal” stamp of
the engineer. All plans must be prepared by NV licensed designers, licensed contractors for their
own scope of work, or an owner/builder. Each drawing must indicate the preparer with original
stamps, license numbers and signatures. Documents submitted for building permits are not
regarded as in the public domain. Copies may only be obtained with written authorization of the
preparer.

Taxes on new dwelling construction and lot development have been adopted for roads, parks and
schools. These taxes could typically amount to $3500.00 and are in addition to building permit
fees. Effective 7/1/2015 a processing fee of $25.00 will be charged in addition to building
permit fees for each permit that is issued.

EXAMPLES: 1600 SF house w/ 400 SF attached garage:

Building Permit & Plan Review Fee.................. $1950 + $25.00
Park Tax ..o e 1,000
Road TaX......ooooveiiiiiiii e, 900
Schon] Taxs s omeness 550 5 v 1,600
Estimated Permit Fee/Taxes................covvenn... $5,475%*

480 SF detached garage, Building Permit & Plan Review...$ 445.50 + $25.00
(No taxes for accessory buildings)

** Does not include utility connection fees, grading permit or road access permits.

7/2017



DOOS\O& Coo th\\

Inclusionary Housing (aka Inclusionary Zoning): Inclusionary housing programs aflow local
governments to either incentivize or else require developers to include a certain percentage of affordable
renter or owner-occupied units in new market-rate residential developments. To offset the development
cost, jurisdictions will often permit a density bonus in return for the provision of affordable units.

Low Impact Development (LID): Low impact development refers to development practices that reduce
stormwater runoff from sites by increasing on-site detention and natural filtering mechanisms, such as
swales. LID practices help to protect water quality and aquatic life and help to reduce the need for large
scale stormwater management systems.

Manufactured Housing: Manufactured housing is housing that is transported to a site on a chassis and
which is also known as HUD Code Homes. Manufactured homes previous to 1976 are usually still
referred to as mobile homes. The National Manufactured Housing Act regulates the inspection of these
homes, which are not regulated by local building codes. The Nevada Housing Division is responsible for
inspecting manufactured homes in Nevada.

Modular Housing: Modular, or Factory Built Housing, is constructed on-site and must comply with local
building codes.

National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS): The National Amblent Air Quality Standards
cover six different air pollutants regulated under the 1970 Clean Air Act and include ozone, particulate
matter, carbon monoxide, nitrogen dioxide, sulfur dioxide, and lead.

Nonpoint Source {NPS): A nonpoint source of water pollution means contaminants such as oil,
sediment, pesticides, bacteria, and nutrients are carried into surface water directly or through storm drains
when rain, snowmelt or irrigation water flows over developed land. There is no point or direct discharge
source for the pollutants,

Permitted Use: A land use that is permitted by right in a specific zoning district and requires no review by
the local planning department. Although a permitted use may be permitted by right, there may be specific
standards that apply. For example, home occupations may be a permitted use in all residential dwellings,
provided certain standards are met, such as no signage and no outside employees.

Poverty Rate: The poverty rate is the percentage of people below the federal poverty level. The 2016
poverty level for one person is $11,770 and the poverty level for a family of four is 24,250,

Prime Farmland: Prime Farmland includes soils that offer the best physical and chemical characteristics
for producing food, feed, forage, fiber, and oilseed crops.

Public Land: Public Land is defined as land or interest in land owned by the US and administered by the
Secretary of the Interior through the BLM without regard to how the US acquired ownership, except lands
located on the Outer Continental Shelf and land held for the benefit of Indians, Aleuts, and Eskimos
(source: Bureau of Land Management, Public Land Statistics, 2013).

Recelving Area: A designated location for development rights transferred off sending areas. A receiving
area is a future land use designation in the Douglas County Master Plan and does not change the
underlying base zoning district.

Residential Construction Tax (RCT): The residential construction tax is authorized under Nevada state
law to help jurisdictions pay for parks, schools, and transportation. In Douglas County, the RCT for parks
is either $1,000 or 1 percent of the valuation for each dwelling unit, $1,600 for schools, and $500 per
dwelling unit or $0.50 per square foot for non-residential development for transportation. The school RCT
is only permitted for school districts (counties) with less than 55,000 population.

GLOSSARY 3 WBA DRAFT OCTOBER 2017



Pahrump Building and Safety

250 N. HWY 160 Ste, 3
Pahrump, NV, 83060
Phone: 775-751-3773 Fax: 775-751-3778

Permit Requirements for Single and 2- Family Dwellings

Plan Review:

() Completed Permit Application(Must be Signed)

() 2 Complete sets of Plans (1 “Wet”, 1 “Copy”)

() 2 “"Wet Stamped” Soils Reports

() 2 “Wet Stamped” Truss Calculations/Structural Calculations
() Plot Plan

() Plan Review Fee (65% of Permit Fee)

There will be a 10 business day turn-around on Plan Reviews

Permit:

() Approved Zoning/Plot Plan

() Flood Permit Application ($175 if in Flood Zone)

() Septic Application (If Applicable)

() Road Encroachment permit

() Owner/Builder Affidavit and Copy of Driver’s License (If Applicable)
() Permit Fee

() Impact Fee ($1995.66 per unit New Construction)

() School Tax Fee ($1600.00 per unit- New Construction)

Please be advised that a Certified Copy “Wet” of the Pad Certification and a “Wet”
Elevation Certificate for projects in flood zones will be required prior to the
issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy (C of 0).

Revised June 2016 fms



Storey County School District Board of Trustee Meeting Agenda
Virginia City High School Training Room
95 South R Street
Virginia City, NV.

Date: Wednesday, February 13, 2019 Regular Meeting 5:30pm
Members: Jeff Nevin-President, Dawn Miller- Clerk, Colleen Conley, Gary Hames and Tom Thompson
L. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE ACTION
I ADOPTION OF AGENDA ACTION
II1. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Please complete a “‘Request to Speak Form™.) DISCUSSION
Iv. CONSENT ITEMS (All items will be considered as a block.) ACTION
1. Approve Warrants
2. Approve Minutes of January 9. 2019
3. Class Size Reduction Proposal for 19-20 School Year
4. Amended Class Size Reduction — Quarter 2

V. REPORTS and PRESENTATIONS DISCUSSION
5. Superintendent Report
a. Students in the News
b. Four (4) day school week information gathering proposal - ShawnMarie Chapman &
Jake Turner
¢. Presentation on Naviance Program (College & Career Readiness) - Caren Baum
6. Board Reports

VL NEW BUSINESS
7. Elect Board Clerk for 2019 DISCUSSION/ACTION
8. Elect NASB Alternate for 2019 & 2020

9.  Elect Legislative Chairperson Alternate for 2019 & 2020

10.  Request for Renewal of Construction Tax

Il. Request to postpene new 360 Superintendent Evaluation from March 2019 to April

2019
VIL. | PUBLIC COMMIENTS (Please complete a “Request to Speak Form™.) DISCUSSION
VIII. | FUTURE MEETINGS AND AGENDA ITEMS DISCUSSION

(To be placed on the agenda. call 847-0983 five days prior to a scheduled meeting)
e Next Board Meeting — March 6, 2019

IX. ADJOURNMENT ACTION

Public Comments will be taken during agenda items. No action may be taken on a matter raised under any item until the matter is included
on an agenda as an item on which action may be taken. Comments will be limited to 3 minutes per person for each agenda item and for each
general public comments item. In accordance with the Attorney General's Open Meeting Law Manual, the Board Chair may prohibit
comment if the content of the comment is a topic that is not relevant to, or within the authority of Storey County School District, or if the
content is willfully disruptive of the meeting by being irrelevant, repetitious, slanderous, offensive, inflammatory, irrational or amounting to
personal attacks or interfering with the rights of other speakers. Time may not be transferred to another person. Board may take items out
of printed order.

Note: This legal notice has been posted at the following locations: U.S. Post Office. Virginia City: Storey County School District Office and (4)
four Storey County Schools. Members of the public who are disabled and require special accommodations or assistance at meetings are requested to

notify the Supcrijcndcnt's office in writing at P.O. Box C, Virginia City, Nevada 89440 or by calling (775) 847-0983 prior to the meeting,

o 2465

Todd Hess - §1'1;')\t'ri'nf97{dent Date




Storey County School District Board of Trustee Meeting Minutes
Virginia City High School Training Room
95 South R Street
Virginia City, NV,

Date: Wednesday, February 13, 2019 Regular Meeting 5:30 p.m.
Members: Jeff Nevin-President, Dawn Miller, Cleck, Colieen Conley, was excused from attending, Gary
Hames and Tom Thompson
I CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE — J=ff Nevin called the meeting to | ACTION
{ order at 5:36 p.m_All stood for the Pledge of Allegiance. _ J
| f
i II. ADOPTION OF AGENDA - Gary Hames moved to adopt the agenda as submitted. Dawn ACTION ;
i Miller seconded the motion. Motion passed. f
I .
il L. |
(I | PUBLIC COMMENTS - There were no public comments, | DISCUSSION !
I | ! |
Iv. CONSENT ITEMS - Gary Hames moved to approve the consent items and the wamrants in | ACTION l

the amount of $1.243.601.08. Dawn Miller seconded the motion. Motion passed.
1. Approve Warrants J
2 Approve Minutes of Januany 9. 2019

3. Class Size Reduction Proposal for 19-20 Schoal Year I
4. Amended Class Size Reduction - Quarter 2

- Jump Start and Social Worker grants. Superintendent Hess also informed the hoard that he

REPORTS and PRESENTATIONS I
5. Superintendent Report - Superintendent Hess was excited to report that our Grant Writer.
Holli Kiechler called over the weekend t inform him that $212.000 in grants have just been
received  This will be the first time that Sworey County School District will have a tully
funded Literacy Speciahst for Read By Three Next month we should know if we received the

had spoken with Senator Settelmeyer and Assemblyman Wheeler on the proposed funding [
formal which would be a 30", total loss for Storey County. Superintendent Hess congratulated
the “Stlver Bricks™ for their Championship Win and their trip to the World Championship in
Houston. TX and the Hillside Archery Team on taking second place in the State.
Superintendent Hess also thanked all those that have been insolved in the snow removal
around the district which included Jacob Dillon. Molly Burnet, Jake Tumer. Steve Schieberl.
Ryan Brandon and the County Crew. Superintendent Hess then spoke about Digital Days and |
what Washoe County and the State have been reporiing. [t looks like Digital Days will have
to gain front of legislation to get a final answer. Superintendent Hess also commended i
Jultana Carmona for her singing of the National Anthem at the basketball games and what a f
termific job Amanda Eddy has done with band and choir. Superintendent Hass then thanked |
Casey Kelley. the Storey County Jeep Posse and the VOMM for their generosiy [0 one the ;
SCSD employees who 13 going through d:fficult times. |
5b - Four (4) day school week information gathering proposal - ShawnMarie Chapman |
and Jake Turner - Superintendent Hess read a statement regarding how the four (4) day
informational proposal came about. ShawnMarie Chapman and Jake Tuner then gave a
presentation regarding the four (4) day school week and then opened up the floor for
questions. ]
3¢ — Presentation on Naviance Program (College and Career Readiness) — Caren Baum -
Caren Baum gave a presentation on the Naviance Program and opened up the floor for
questions.

6. Board Report - Tom Thompson stated that he participated in the NASB training in Reno
last month and that it had a lot of good information. Gary Hames spoke about the four day
school week and tutoring options. Gary Hames stated that he would like to see the artendance
1ssues being addressed now if a student is in crisis mode. Dawn Miller stated that she had the
opportunity to sit with the new Governor and the teachers unions on the Nevada Plan. Jeff
Nevin congratulated the girls basketball team on their successful season and the boy's for their
season as well. Jeff Nevin also congratulated Shiann Loncar on winning the Poetry Out Loud
Contest for Storey County,




NEW BUSINESS
7 Elect Board Clerk for 2019 — Gary Hames moved to nominate Dawn Miller as the Board

| i Clerk. Tom Thompson seconded the motion Motion Passed.
[ 8. Elect NASB Alternate for 2019 & 2020 - Gary Hames moved to nominated Tom

-
=

Thompson as the NASB Alternate for 2019 & 2020. Dawn Miller seconded the motion,
Motion Passed
9. Elect Legislative Chair Alternate for 2019 & 2020 - Tom Thompson meved to nominate
Gary Hames as Legislative Alternate Chairperson. Dawn Miller seconded the motion
Motion Passed. !
10. Request for Renewal of Construction Tax: Kristen Chandler spoke about the ;
construction tax. After some discussion. Tom Thompson moved to approve the construction
tax as presented  Dawn Miller seconded the motion. Motion failed with 3 nays. After further |
- diseussion. Dawn Miller moaved to approte the construction tax as follows FY20) S1.090.
SFY2D S1300and FY22 & FY23is S1.600 per honte unit. Tom Thompson seconded the | !
|
|

Cmoton Motion Passed

I

|

F _ 1. Request to Postpone New 360 Superintendent Evaluation from March 2019 to April
2019 — After review of the letter from Jim Huge and discussion. Tom Thompson moved to

! approve the posiponement of the New 360 Evaluation from March 2019 ta Aprtl 2019, Dawn |

|

- Muller seconded the motion. Motion Passed.

(VI PUBLIC COMMENTS ™ There were na public commgny, o ]
CVHL T FUTURE MEETINGS AND AGENDVTTENIS “Four (3 day ohoolweek posaibly T DISCUSSION T T
maving torward Jumpstart Policy. Comstock T adies and Amanda 1 dus :
CLobe placed on the azenda. call 83709523 [ive davs prior o a scheduted meeunsz) ‘

- extBoard Meeting - March 6, 2019

|

|
; B o s i i pip _spesess —oops w  seem e o s e L
CIX CADJOURN .\II-'_.\'li—”J_L_-ﬁ' ‘\E'\'Ll'ljl(_ljt_)_lg'l_‘u‘(] the meceting at 7:59 p.m. Jr

ACTION

'
—— S e PRI, - e PRI, S e

Public Comments will be taken during agenda items. No action may be tahen on a matter raised under anmy item until the matter i included
o azendaais an item on which action may be takhen. Comments will be limited to 1 minutes per persen for each agenda itemn and for each
seneral public comments item. bn accordance with the Atturney General's Open Meeting Law Manual, the Board Chair may prohibit
comnweat it the content of the comnent is 3 topic that i~ not relesvant to, or within the authority of Storey County School District, or if the
content is willfulty discuptive of the mecting by being irrelevant, repetitious, slanduraus, offensive, inflammatory, irrativnal or amounting to
puersonal attacks or interfering with the rizhts of other speakers. Time may not be transferced to another person. Board may take items out
if printed order.

oo This Leaal notiee Fas been posted at the followin
A Storey Cney Sebiools Memhers ot the public who are disabled ded reguire special acconmod gions or assistance
s e Supintedlent's office in w riting at PO Box CoVirginia City . Nevada 89440 o hy calhing (775) N47-0983 prior to the mecting

A TS I/ feongy
M—\C\lcrk Date
66?(\7 Hﬂ:ﬂt’_ﬁ”ﬂclﬂas ((g,‘lé

locanons U8 Post Office, Virgea Ciny, Siores Courts School Dostict Ottiee and (4)
Ak ameetings are reguested to




Storey County School District Board of Trustee Meeting Agenda
Virginia City High Schoo! Training Room
95 South R Street
Virginia City, NV 89430

Date: Wednesday, March 6, 2019 Regular Meeting 5:30pm
Members: Jeff Nevin-President, Dawn Miller - Clerk, Colleen Conley, Gary Hames and Tom Thompson
I [ CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE | ACTION j
IL. ADOPTION OF AGENDA o ACTION
111 PUBLIC COMMENTS (Please complete a “Reqﬂest to Speak Form™.) ) DISCUSSION
A | CONSENT ITEMS (All items will be considered as a block ) ! ACTION |
| I 1. Approve Warrants ‘
| -. Approve Minutes of February 13.2019 o B
V. | REPORTS and PRESENTATIONS ) ) o DISCUSSION ]

3. Superintendent Report

a. Students in the News

b. Recognition of Comstock Ladies

¢. Recognition of Music Program - Amanda Eddy
4. Board Reports o o o | o j

i VI NEW BUSINESS DISCUSSION/ACTION
‘ 3. Approve Hillside 5™ Grade Students to Attend the Great Basin Outdoor Schoul
6. Approve HGE 4™ Grade Students to Attend Great Basin Naturalists
;7. Discussion and Possible Action on Stakeholder Participation in this vear's Superintendent
i Evaluation, :
& Approve Commitiee to begin Research. Surveys and Town Hall Meetings tor Four (4) 5
Day School Week '
9. Approve 2019 2020 School Calendar
I 10. Approve Jim Sciarani & Co. as the Auditor for the 2018-20 19 Fiscal Audit B
|
L VIL ‘ PUBLIC COMMENTS (Please caomplete a “Reguest to Speak Form™) o | DISCUSSION
VI | FUTURE MEETINGS AND AGENDA ITEMS DISCUSSION
(To be placed on the agenda, call 847-0983 five days prior to a scheduled meeting)
. e _Next Board Meeting — April 10, 2019
L .
LIX. | ADJOURNMENT ACTION

Public Comments will be taken during agenda items. No action may be taken on a matter raised under any item until the matter is included
on an agenda as an item on which action may be taken. Comments will be limited to 3 minutes per person for each agenda item and for each
general public comments item. In accordance with the Attorney General's Open Meeting Law Manual, the Board Chair may prohibit
comment if the content of the comment is a topic that is not relevant to, or within the authority of Storey County School District, or if the
content is wilfully disruptive of the meeting by being irrelevant, repetitious, slanderous, offensive, inflammatory, irrational or amounting to
personal attacks or interfering with the rights of other speakers. Time ma» not be transferred to another person. Board may take items out
of printed order.

Note: This legal netice has been posted at the following locations: U.S. Post Ottice, Virginia City: Storey County School District Office and (4)

iy Schools. Members of the public whe are disabled and require special accommodations or assistance at meetings are requested to

cnd-%iﬁfﬁfm writing at P.O. Box C. Virginia City, Nevada 89340 or by calling (775) 847-0983 prior to the meeting.
Q ' 4 . \“w’ i _;
4 : b

s i

four Storey Co

Todd Hess - Superintendent Date



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: o 14 J 20¢1€ Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [ x] Public hearing required [ ]

pa—

. Title: Selection of an Auditor for Storey County for the year ended June 30, 2019,

2. Recommended motion
Per NRS 354.624, the Storey County Commissioners due hereby select DiPietro and
Thornton, CPA, LTD as the auditor for the fiscal year ended June 30, 20195.

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 847-1006
4. Staff summary:
This was DiPietro and Thornton, CPA’s second engagement with Storey County. The
changing of the guard is never easy, however DiPietro and Thornton, CPA have done an
excellent job of providing audit compliance, accounting and auditing advice and financial
statement presentation to Storey County. Their work is professionally done and their rate

is more than reasonable. In addition, any questions or meetings that may be needed are
accomplished at no additional charge.

5. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: __x _ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[y
[S——

Agenda Item No. | )



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

LIQUOR BOARD

Meeting date: 3/19/19 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [ | Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: First reading for Non-Profit On-Sale Liquor License for the Escurial Masonic Lodge #7.
PO Box 34, Virginia City, NV 89440.

2. Recommended motion: [ motion to approve the first reading for Non-Profit On-Sale Liquor
License for the Escurial Masonic Lodge #7. PO Box 34, Virginia City, NV 89440,

3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Administrative Assistant
Department: SCSO Telephone: 775-847-0959
4. Staff summary: I motion to approve the first reading for Non-Profit On-Sale Liquor License for

the Escurial Masonic Lodge #7. PO Box 34, Virginia City. NV 89440. Applicant is James
Clark, Member Trustee.

5. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
_X__ Department Head Department Name: Gerald Antinoro

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[ ] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e

Agenda Item No. |Z.\._



STOREY COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE

Gerald Antinoro
Sheriff

March 13, 2019

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office
Pat Whitten, County Manager

Fr: Brandy Gavenda

Please add the following item(s) to the March 19, 2019 Commissioners Agenda:

LIQUOR BOARD

A. First reading for Non-Profit On-Sale Liquor License for the Escurial
Masonic Lodge #7. PO Box 34, Virginia City, NV 89440.

PO Box 498
205 South C Street
Virginia City, NV 89440
Office: (775) 847-0959 Fax: (775) 847-0924



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meetinn date:! 3 19.49 Estimate of time required: 0-5

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -- Approval
2. Recommended wmotion: Approval
3. Prepared by:. Sarah Dillon
Department: Community Development Telephoae: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meeting. A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to the

Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

5. Supporting materisls: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscsl impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review reguired:

___ _ District Attomey

B. Reviewed
X 5 \x Department Name:
% e,

County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
(] Approved [1 Approved with Modifications
[] Denied {1 Continued

Agenda Item No, ‘ (O




Storey County Community Bebelopment
Buginess o Licensing

P O Box 526 « Virginia City NV 8844Q « (775) 847-0966 « Fax (775) 847-0935 - mfield@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office March 11,2019
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email
Fr: Sarah Dillon

Please add the following item(s) to the March 19, 2019 COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

Storey County Building Department has inspected and found that the following businesses meet code
requirements necessary to operate in the county:

LICENSING BOARD
SECOND READINGS

A. WINGS N THINGS, LLC - Food Truck / 1213 Jacob Ln ~ Fernley, NV

H & D CONSTRUCTION, LLC - Contractor/ PO Box 10025 ~ Reno, NV

J HARRIS INDUSTRIAL - Water Services / 3151 Sturgis Road ~ Oxnard, CA
295 CABLING, LLC - Contractor / 1359 Lublin Drive ~ Sparks, NV

PAC MACHINE CO. INC Contractor / 8570 23" Ave ~ Sacramento, CA
ELKO OVERHEAD DOOR - Contractor / 1076 River Street ~ Elko, NV

=moOw

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office
Commissioners’ Office Comptroller’s Office




